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SAHRA COUNCIL
Title

NAME

STATUS

APPOINTMENTS

Prof

Somadoda Fikeni

National

Appointment

Ms

Irene Mafune

National

Appointment

Mr

Cameron Dokoda

Eastern Cape Province

PHRA

Adv

Ronee Robinson

Western Cape Province PHRA

Mr

Khonanan Khorommbi

National

Appointment

Ms

Laura Robinson

National

Appointment

Adv

Nothemba Mlonzi

National

Appointment

Mr

David Nkaiseng

Gauteng Province

PHRA

Dr

Chitja Twala

Free State Province

PHRA

Mr

Moses Makhweyane

Mpumalanga Province

PHRA

Ms

Sibongile Van Damme

SAHRA CEO

By Council

Front row: Ms Irene Mafune (Deputy chairperson), Prof Somadoda Fikeni (Chairperson), Ms Sibongile Van
Damme (CEO)
Back row: Mr Cameron Mavuso Dokoda, Ms Laura Robinson, Mr Khonanani Khorommbi, Dr Chitja Twala
*Absent: Mr David Nkaiseng, Adv Ronee Robinson, Mr Moses Makhweyane
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which had been non-existent or inadequate, therefore exposing SAHRA to a
range of governance challenges. The Council identified policy and system gaps
and had to approve policies on an unprecedented scale in order to normalise
the entity and make it compliant.
The SAHRA Council also led a process that produced a new strategy anchored
on the following pillars: a) The development of a proper governance system;
b) the development of a compelling business case; c) capacity building that
include both finance and personnel; d) the identification of high impact flagship
programmes, especially those addressing skills and economic development; and
e) effective development and promotion of the SAHRA brand.
During the same period, the Council established a fully constituted audit committee as part of foregrounding governance and compliance issues. The SAHRA
Council also approved the proper constitution of specialised committees that
deal with technical heritage assessments and approvals of applications and submissions.
Given the SAHRA mandate, core business issues had to be attended to
simultaneously and with equal vigour. The grading and declaration of graves
of the founding fathers of the liberation struggle followed on the heels of the
similar declaration of graves of prominent women in the South African liberation
struggle. During the same period SAHRA declared the Voortrekker Monument
a national heritage site – the first declaration of an Afrikaans heritage site, thus
contributing to reconciliation and social cohesion.
SAHRA has been undergoing a process of devolving some of its functions
to the provinces whilst consolidating its role at a national level. Mindful of
its mandate to assist and capacitate Provincial Heritage Resources Agencies
(PHRAs), SAHRA accelerated the process of assessing and giving permission to
the provincial entities to conduct provincial heritage work.
Both Eastern Cape and Western Cape were re-assessed and found to be
competent to perform functions in their respective provinces, whereas other
provinces were being assessed with the aim of granting similar permission or a
facilitating process of building their capacity.
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SAHRA also took a principled position to assist in the grading and subsequent
declaration of the South African Liberation Heritage Route – a project that has
already been adopted by the national cabinet as one of the strategic heritage
programmes to assist in stimulating local economic growth and tourism.
A centre for heritage training, research and education (CenTRE) was launched
in Grahamstown and is in partnership with Rhodes University. The primary aim
of the CenTRE is to build capacity of heritage practitioners, especially those in
the provincial and local municipal spheres, whilst also conducting research on
heritage issues.
The extensive mandate sanctioned by the SAHRA Act of 1999 is severely
constrained by the meagre resources allocated to SAHRA, which, in many
ways, has contributed to a sub-optimal staff capacity to deliver on the mandate.
The Department of Arts and Culture has been engaged to properly cost the
SAHRA Act with the aim of reviewing the current financial allocation to the
organisation. The department has welcomed this request and the process of
costing the Act is about to commence.
SAHRA has a disclaimed audit opinion in various areas. The Council is acutely
aware of this situation, hence its prioritisation of governance issues – particularly controls.
SAHRA has consequently approached the Department of Arts and Culture to
assist in effecting the turnaround strategy, given the limitations of the internal
staff capacity. Optimal performance of SAHRA, and its adherence to good
governance practice, is imperative, and the SAHRA Council is fully committed
to the process of achieving a clean audit and effectively discharging its mandate
as a premium heritage institution.

Yours sincerely
Prof Somadoda Fikeni
Chairperson

SOUTH AFRICAN HERITAGE RESOURCES AGENCY ANNUAL REPORT

| p11

What you can’t measure, still exists –
Arjen Wals 1997
In fulfilment of our statutory responsibility to
the people and parliament of the Republic
of South Africa, I hereby present the South
African National Heritage Resources Agency’s
(SAHRA) annual report for the year 2011-12.
In writing this report I was reminded of Arjen
Wals’ famous paper that was used by scholars
in the Environmental Sector in the late 1990s,
entitled What you can’t measure, still exists. As the
CEO of SAHRA I am blessed to have noted the
increasing dedication and drive of my colleagues
in a difficult time when the institution was
being restructured to promote the mandate of
SAHRA, as articulated in the National Heritage
Resources Act 25 of 1999. What was achieved
this year was done as a collective, and what we
did not achieve we will strive to do in the future.
We acknowledge that we have been entrusted
with resources from the state to meet the
mandate of custodianship over cultural heritage
in the country.
The mandate which the National Heritage Resources Act of 1999 sets out for SAHRA is
very broad and challenging. The broad aims of the Act are to:
•
introduce an integrated and interactive system for the management of the
national heritage resources;
•
promote good government at all levels;
•
empower civil society to nurture and conserve their heritage resources so that
they may be bequeathed to future generations;
•
lay down general principles for governing heritage resources management
throughout the republic;
•
introduce an integrated system for the identification assessment and
management of the heritage resources of South Africa;
•
establish the South African Heritage Resources Agency together with its council
to coordinate and promote the management of heritage resources at a national
level;
•
set norms and maintain essential national standards for the management of
heritage resources of national significance;
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•
•
•
•

control the export of nationally significant heritage objects and the import into
the republic of cultural property illegally exported from other countries;
enable the provinces to establish heritage authorities which must adopt powers
to protect and manage certain categories of heritage resources;
provide for the protection and management of conservation-worthy places and
areas by local authorities; and
provide for matters connected herewith.

The audit outcome of the year 2011-12 is testimony to the slow pace at which the
National Heritage Resources Act has been implemented. According to the dictates of the
National Heritage Resources Act, the devolution of heritage assets, liabilities, functions
and responsibilities should have been spearheaded by 1999. All along SAHRA has been
assisting with some of the responsibilities of most provinces with exception of the
Western Cape and KwaZulu-Natal.
In this year of reporting we would like to congratulate the Eastern Cape Province
for having a fully competent Provincial Heritage Resources Authority (PHRA). Other
provinces, such as the Northern Cape and Free State, have achieved different levels
of competency. The challenge for most provinces is competency in the management
of archaeological and palaeontological resources. All efforts are being made with the
support of the Department of Arts and Culture in getting all provinces competent to
carry out their mandate.
To focus on its national mandate, SAHRA had to downscale its operations. This was done
with the closure of its offices in all the provinces to allow provinces to pick up on their
mandates. Council approved a new organogram for Heritage Resources Management, as
well as other key functions in May 2011. This meant that SAHRA has a new unit, namely
Heritage Protection, which has a monitoring and evaluation role in the management of
heritage resources. SAHRA’s head office still remains 111 Harrington Street, Cape Town,
and has a new satellite office at 237 Lynnwood Road, Pretoria. Added to this is the
heritage resources CenTRE for Training, Research and Education in Grahamstown, with
the Old Gaol as its physical structure, which still needs to be restored.
The restructuring process was a mammoth task and an extremely difficult exercise which
occupied the Human Resources Unit of SAHRA intensively. SAHRA’s strategy to achieve
this was through the establishment of partnerships of mutual benefit with institutions that
have common or related mandates to that of its own. In March 2010 SAHRA has signed
a MoU with Rhodes University to conceptualise and deliver on its mandate on Heritage,
Training, Research and Education. SAHRA is the title deed holder of the Old Gaol in
Grahamstown, a property well positioned to be its administrative offices for a Training,
Research and Education Centre.
According to a study conducted by the Department of Arts and Culture in 2008 through
Price Waterhouse Coopers, to audit skills in the Heritage Sector:
“It is recommended that partnerships be established with private local and international
bodies/ organisations for the sharing of knowledge and expertise.”
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Section 5(2) of the NHRA stipulates that:
In order for SAHRA to ensure that heritage resources are effectively managed,
a)
the skills and capacities of persons and communities involved in heritage
		
resources management must be developed; and
b)
provision must be made for the ongoing education and training of 		
		
existing and new heritage resources management workers.
									Section 5(2)
It is further maintained that heritage resources contributes significantly to research,
education and tourism, and that they should be developed and presented for these
purposes in a way that ensures dignity and respect for cultural values.
As a result SAHRA negotiated partnerships with the Culture Arts, Tourism, Hospitality,
Sport Sector, Education, and Training Authority (CATHSSETA), as well as the Construction
Education and Training Authority (CETA). These were signed in the current financial year.
As a result of this partnership three training modules and one elective were developed,
and 45 students had enrolled. This has been done in an effort to ensure that SAHRA
plays a role in making sure that, as it moves out of the provinces, the necessary capacity
is in place. Most learners are from Heritage institutions throughout the country.
The Heritage Objects Unit once again had its hands full with processing a permit
application from the Qatar Museums Authority for the permanent exportation of the
‘Arab Priest’ by Irma Stern. SAHRA refused to issue the permit based on the significance
of the artwork to South Africa. After an appeal against SAHRA’s decision, the permit
committee approved the application and granted a temporary export permit for a period
of 20 (twenty) years, where either a further temporary permit will be applied for, or,
alternatively, a permanent export permit.
The Built Environment Unit of SAHRA suffered the loss of Ms Beverley Crouts-Knipe
at the beginning of the financial year – a major loss to the institution. SAHRA declared
the Voortrekker Monument in Pretoria as a national heritage site. This was a significant
declaration which was commemorated by the Department of Arts and Culture. The
declaration of the Kaditshwene Cultural Landscape also took place, spearheaded by the
Palaeontology and Archaeology Unit and with the necessary support from the Grading
and Declaration Unit. Grading and declaration has now become a function within each
of the HRM Units.
The South African Heritage Resources Information System (SAHRIS) was developed – a
tool aimed at enabling the accessibility and integration of the management of heritage
resources in the country. This system is also aimed at taking stock of the heritage resources
of the country; first by surveying them and then designing an appropriate system to
migrate all data into it. This is a big success as SAHRA has struggled through the years to
set up the system as prescribed by the Act.
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The Burial Grounds and Graves Unit has had its hands full with an increasing awareness of
the need to manage, protect and declare graves of heroes and heroines of the liberation
struggle. The graves of Steve Biko, R.M. Sobukwe, O.R. Tambo, P. Seme, S.M. Makgatho,
J.T. Gumede, A.J. Luthuli, R.Z. Mahabane, A. Xuma, and L. Dube were graded and
approved for declaration. SAHRA further signed a MoA with the Heritage Foundation
based at the Voortrekker Monument to cede responsibilities for the conservation of the
Burger Concentration Camp burial sites and prisoners of war. The programme for the
declaration of the graves of heroines of the liberation struggle is still on track with the
grading of the grave of Rahima Moosa as a national heritage site. It will be declared a
national heritage site in the 2012-13 financial year.
The partnership with the Netherlands-based Centre for International Heritage Activities,
on raising awareness on maritime and underwater cultural heritage, has been concluded
and raised awareness of the importance of this resource. It has facilitated a network
of partnerships – one very strategic one with Robben Island. For the past three years
Robben Island Museum has hosted learners and teachers on the island in partnership with
SAHRA and the Department of Arts and Culture. A Facebook page has been developed
where learners from all the provinces, who participated in this programme, can interact.
The Unit is currently working on the declaration of Lake Fundudze as a national heritage
site.
In all these achievements the CEO and staff of SAHRA would like to thank all individuals
and varied stakeholders, as well as the media, for the amount of support that we received
to deliver on our mandate. A lot of thanks particularly go to the provinces for the patience
and understanding that they are displaying as SAHRA embarks on devolution.
I would just like to emphasise that the future (and success stories) of professional heritage
resources management lies within the cooperation between SAHRA, the provinces and
various municipalities.
A big thank you goes out to the SAHRA Council for their wisdom in their guidance.
A final thank you goes to the Department of Arts and Culture for its constant support
and guidance. Minister Mashatile has kept a watchful eye and interest in the activities of
SAHRA, for which we are very grateful.

Yours sincerely
Sibongile van Damme
SAHRA CEO
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Figure 1: Sahra Head Office
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T

he main purpose of the Corporate Affairs Branch is to provide support to the organisational
divisions within SAHRA in order to enable the organisation to achieve its strategic objectives.
This requires the development and maintenance of effective and efficient internal business
processes, infrastructure and information that will support Heritage Resources Management and
other business units. This also includes the maintenance and management of SAHRA’s heritage
properties, as well as the National Inventory.
Most of the functions performed within the Corporate Affairs Branch are ongoing routine functions
necessary for the efficient functioning of the organisation. However, Corporate Affairs Units also
launch projects annually that enhance the continuous improvement of the organisation at large.
The Corporate Affairs Branch had its annual planning workshop from 1 to 3 February 2012. The
main purpose of the workshop was to develop the Corporate Affairs Operational Plan for the
2012/2013 financial year, as well as the promotion of teamwork within and between the different
Corporate Affairs Units. The Operational Plan will serve as a basis for the performance management
of individual staff members within the Corporate Affairs Branch during the forth-coming financial
year.
On 5 and 6 March 2012, the Corporate Affairs Branch conducted a successful workshop for all
SAHRA staff members to introduce new systems, policies and procedures adopted during the
current financial year. These include the South African Heritage Resources Information System
(SAHRIS) and File Classification System, as well as approved IT and Travel Policies.

INFORMATION AND
AUXILIARY SERVICES UNIT
The Information and Auxiliary Services Unit
comprises of the following sections: Registry,
Library, Information Technology and Auxiliary
Services. The Auxiliary Services are further
subdivided into Travel Administration, Catering
and Facilities Management.

THE SAHRA ARCHIVES
SAHRA’s Archives repository is housed at the
organisation’s Head Office and forms part of
the Registry section. Effective record keeping
is a critical element that ensures SAHRA’s
successful and efficient day-to-day operation.
It is also fundamental for good governance and
effective and efficient administration.

The Registry staff frequently assist researchers,
heritage consultants and other members
of the public with enquiries relating to the
heritage conservation information on the files
in the SAHRA archives. About 150 requests
for information were dealt with during the
reporting period.
In the period under review, SAHRA continued
with the process of designing a new File
Classification System. This forms part of the
process to develop one uniform filing system
that will enhance service delivery to both
SAHRA staff and external researchers. The File
Classification System Plan was submitted to
the National Archivist and approved in January
2012. Another segment of this project was
the revision of the Registry Procedure Manual
which was completed in October 2011.
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Figure 2: Sahra Head Office

The Unit Head: Information and Auxiliary
Services attended a conference in “Developing
and Implementing an Electronic Records
Management System” which was held in
Sandton during April 2011. The attendance
of this conference forms part of one of
the objectives on the Corporate Affairs
Branch Operational Plan, which is to
investigate the implementation of electronic
preservation of heritage management records
through digitisation.

THE SAHRA LIBRARY
The SAHRA Library is based at the
organisation’s Head Office in Cape Town. The
establishment of this library is in accordance
with the stipulation of Section 13(2)(b) of
the National Heritage Resources Act, No.
25 of 1999, being that SAHRA is required
to establish a national heritage resource
library to serve both SAHRA officials and the
general public.
The library, which is regarded as the leading
stockist of heritage conservation literature,
contains about 13 000 books which had been
acquired over the years by way of purchases as
well as donations.
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During the past year 163 books were
accessioned, of which 100 were purchased
and the remainder donated. Library staff
catalogued 453 books and 250 journal articles.
Furthermore, 550 heritage related articles that
were published in the media, were scanned
and circulated to staff.
The Book Review Committee, representing
the main Heritage Resources Management
disciplines within SAHRA, had two meetings
during the period under review to assess
literary material for procurement purposes.
The library put together eight book displays
around important public holidays, events
and people. A special display, focusing on
firearms books and posters, was done on
30 June 2011 when the Heritage Objects Unit
was interviewed by SABC 2 for an insert on
their actuality programme, Fokus. During a
youth outreach project held in October 2011,
a display on underwater cultural heritage
management was set up in a mobile unit at the
Simon’s Town harbour. In addition, a quiz was
constructed in order to motivate the students
to meaningfully interact with the materials.

The library also accommodated a UCT student
in performing her library fieldwork by providing
her with an opportunity to obtain practical
experience in a specialised library.
During the review period, the library received
310 enquiries for heritage related information
and, in addition, 2 129 staff visitations and
110 researchers.
From 2 to 7 October 2011, one of the library’s
staff members attended the annual conference
of the Library and Information Association of
South Africa (LIASA) held at the Conventional
Centre in East London.

Figure 3: SAHRA Library

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
SAHRA, like so many other public sector
institutions, is facing rapid, inevitable change
and pressure to improve service delivery.
The pressure to maximise administrative and
operational efficiencies through the effective
use of Information Technology, is ongoing.
One of the main objectives of the Information
Technology (IT) Section is, therefore, to
ensure a reliable IT infrastructure and software
solutions that will enable SAHRA to fulfil its
heritage resources management mandate
within the boundaries of the available resources.
In order to promote internal customer
satisfaction, protection of critical business
information and assets, as well as the alignment
with the organisation’s strategic objectives,
the IT Section needs to ensure that good IT
governance practices are in place and being
followed. These practices have emerged as being
one of the fundamental business imperatives in
any organisation.
The IT Section provides IT support to staff
at SAHRA’s Head Office. It furthermore
offers telephonic support and management of
service providers that provide on-site support
to SAHRA’s satellite office in Pretoria, its Built
Environment Unit and Underwater Cultural
Heritage Unit at the Castle of Good Hope
in Cape Town, as well as the Grahamstown
Training, Research and Education CenTRE.

The IT Section makes provision for annual
site visits to the remote offices. During these
visits users are assisted in terms of one-on-one
training, updating of patches and software on
the server and desktops, as well as checking
back-ups and user directories.
The IT Section strives to make provision for at
least one substantial IT upgrade project every
financial year. In terms of auditory requirements, one of the IT Section’s main functions is
to ensure the security of SAHRA’s IT systems.
Adequate firewall protection for all SAHRA’s
servers as well as desktop anti-virus programs,
are key requirements. Based on the above,
SAHRA did a complete roll-out of a new anti-virus software package on all desktops and
notebooks throughout the organisation.
Another large project which was completed is
the upgrading of the existing Accpac system
used in the Finance Branch. A performance
management system that is based on open
source technology is also considered for use
in the Human Resources Unit, and should be
installed during the next reporting period.
SAHRA’s IT staff members are required to
stay abreast of the ever-changing environment
of Information Technology. The attendance
of various workshops related to Information
Technology security, collaboration and improved
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systems, forms part of the IT Section’s strategy
to stay informed of and in touch with new and
improved technology. The IT staff attended
a Windows 7 Deployment course in July
and September 2011, as well as the SITA IT
Governance Workshop held in Durban in
September 2011.
The implementation of the outcomes that
were generated from the review of the IT
function within SAHRA during the 2010/2011
financial year, formed a significant part of the
focus area for the IT Section during the current
review period. During the workshop on
Corporate Affairs Policies, held in March 2012,
SAHRA’s staff was introduced to the newly
developed IT General Policy and IT Security
Policy and Procedures, as well as the new
IT Employee Code of Conduct. Additional
CobiT processes have been identified and
will be rolled out annually, based on priorities
identified and aligned with the organisation’s
strategic objectives.

AUXILIARY SERVICES
Travel administration, catering and
reception

The SAHRA Travel Administrator is responsible
for the travel arrangements of all SAHRA
staff and interviewees for vacancies, with the
exception of the CEO, Executive Officers and
Council members. The Travel Administrator
works closely with Flywell Travel, a travel
agency that was appointed in November 2011
after a formal tender process.
During the review period 203 bookings were
made of which 12 were group bookings. A
total of 46 catering orders were placed during
the same period.
The Travel Policy and Procedure was revised
and approved by the SAHRA Council in
November 2011. This was done in order to
improve compliance with auditory requirements
and also to create an increased cost-effectiveness
and efficiency of travelling and accommodation
arrangements within SAHRA.
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The organisation’s Telephone Policy and
Cellular Phone Policy were also revised,
approved by the SAHRA Council in November
2011, and implemented.
Facility management

The Auxiliary Services Section must ensure
that the SAHRA Head Office premises is
adequately maintained, that the infrastructure
complies with organisational requirements,
and that the environment in which the staff
members need to function, is clean, hygienic
and secure. This section is also tasked with
the procurement of furniture, equipment and
vehicles, essential for the effective functioning
of the organisation.
The process of upgrading the air-conditioning
system, which commenced in the previous
review period, was continued by going
out on formal tender. After evaluation and
adjudication, the contract was awarded to
KRB Projects. In addition, reports showed
that the electrical supply to the SAHRA Head
Office premises was inadequate for the airconditioner upgrade and, therefore, a process
has commenced, under the supervision of a
consulting electrical engineer, to upgrade the
electrical supply.
Minor maintenance projects at the Head Office
premises included the painting of the roof deck
of this premises, remedial maintenance to the
gutters, downpipes and shutters, varnishing of
the timber floors, as well as the painting and
varnishing of external timber on the building.
As far as security is concerned, a new contract
was entered into with City Bowl Armed
Response. With the commencement of the
contract the entire alarm system throughout
the Head Office building was assessed, serviced
and found to be fully functional. A system of
allocating individual alarm pin codes to staff
members has also been implemented. In order
to strengthen access control and security further,
a process has commenced for the installation of
an effective access card control security system.
The contract with Guardian Integrated Systems
for the quarterly servicing of the fire detectors
on the premises was renewed.

SAHRA has recently undergone a restructuring
process that has resulted in the closure of its
provincial offices. This process has led to an
increase of the staffing compliment at the
Head Office and Satellite Office premises due
to the deployment of provincial staff at these
offices. It has resulted in a need for additional
office space at SAHRA’s Head Office. A formal
tender has commenced to acquire suitable
office space with the relevant infrastructure that
would accommodate 16 extra staff members.
PROPERTY UNIT

SAHRA’s property portfolio currently
consists of 36 properties which include
buildings, cemeteries and memorials of
historical significance. Several properties are
rented out to institutions and individuals for
various purposes.
Collecting the rentals due to SAHRA by
tenants, remains a challenge. The services
of Grant Gunston Attorneys – to assist with
the collection of outstanding debt – were
terminated. Debt collection is currently
handled internally by SAHRA’s Legal Section.
A rental collection procedure was developed
to facilitate the collection of debt.

The fire hydrant system on the whole farm
was repaired, as well as the irrigation system
at Non Pareille. This enabled the use of
dam water rather than municipal water for
gardening purposes.
After occupying the premises for 16 years, the
tenant at the Roggeland Guest House did not
renew his lease agreement. He vacated it in
May 2011. Suitably qualified and experienced
service providers were invited to bid and submit
proposals for the leasing of the guest house for
a period of five years. However, no tenders
were received. The non-occupation of the
Roggeland premises created serious security
risks. Therefore, a security guard company was
appointed to protect the premises from thefts
and vandalism.
It was decided not to renew the 20-year lease
agreement with a local farmer for the lease of
the agricultural land at Dal Josafat. After the
site has been properly fenced, proposals for
the leasing of the agricultural land at a market
related price will be considered per open
tender. In the meantime negotiations have
started with the Rastafarian Herbal Council for
the leasing of a portion of the farm to them for
organic gardening purposes.

Funding for the repair and maintenance of
SAHRA’s properties remains limited. A number
of urgent remedial actions, all within the
boundaries of the limited resources available,
were nonetheless undertaken to ensure the
preservation of SAHRA’s properties.
Burglaries, theft and vandalism have increased,
especially at SAHRA’s Dal Josafat property
near Paarl, resulting in additional security and
repair cost. Replacing non-paying tenants with
new tenants has become difficult because of
the high crime rate on the site. This resulted in
buildings left unoccupied, which, in turn, led to
further theft and vandalism. In order to address
the security risks, burglar bars were installed at
the Onderdal School, the Garden Cottage at
Roggeland, and the Manor House and Cellar at
Goederust. New flood lights were also installed
at the Onderdal School and Non Pareille.

Figure 4: SAHRA HQ old property
model taken from Roeland and
Harrington Steets elevation
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It is important that the vegetation at SAHRA’s
properties is trimmed regularly to prevent it from
becoming a fire hazard. Therefore, the Van Riebeeck
Hedge in Bishopscourt, Cape Town, was trimmed
and alien vegetation removed. Alien vegetation was
also removed on the two vacant plots in Tulbagh.
The outer perimeter of grass that surrounds the
buildings at the Dal Josafat property was cut and the
trees trimmed. The grass next to the Fishermans’
Cottages in Struisbaai was also cut and the trees and
shrubs trimmed.
After the tenant at the Old Residency in King
Williamstown was evicted, vandalism occurred at the
property. A security firm was employed to protect
the property from further theft and vandalism.

A heritage architect was also appointed to develop
specifications for the repairs at the Krugerhof
Museum in Waterval Boven, Mpumalanga.
The valuation of a selected number of properties
was carried out in March 2012 by external
service providers, as is required by SAHRA’s
accounting practice.
The site supervisor at Dal Josafat, Mr Arthur Xola,
retired at the end of June 2011. He was replaced by
Mr Claude Conradie, who commenced services on
1 August 2011.

A heritage architect was appointed to give advice on
the location and design for the ablution facilities at
the Labourers’ Cottages at Goederust. The architect
will also provide drawings, and specifications for the
consideration of SAHRA’s Built Environment and
Landscape Committee. The building of the ablution
facilities will commence in the next financial year.

Figure 5: Mrs Rehana Brittow, SAHRA front line at reception and switchboard desk
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Figure 6: Quarterly book displays by the library allows Ryan to
read The long walk to freedom

Figure 7: Corporate planning session

Figure 8: Corporate Affairs 2012 Strategic Planning Workshop, Clara-Anna Fontein in Durbanville
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Figure 1: Genadendal slave bell
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The National Inventory Unit fulfils SAHRA‘s role in compiling, maintaining and managing heritage
resources information in support of SAHRA’s heritage resources management mandate. Its activities
are therefore focused on maintaining and managing an inventory of the National Estate, defined
as heritage resources of cultural and other significance, as required by Section 39 of the National
Heritage Resources Act, No. 25 of 1999.
Inventory of the National Estate

During the period under review, the focus remained on updating information on those heritage
resources that have been given formal protection in terms of the National Heritage Resources Act.
Attention was given to the population of spatial information fields for sites in the Eastern Cape. The
staff of the National Inventory Unit visited the Cacadu and Amathole Municipalities from 13 to 16
March 2012 to obtain the required spatial data for a selected number of sites in this province.
The table below indicates a significant data growth in the Eastern Cape, from 24% in 2011 to 82%
populated records in 2012. This data gave rise to the compilation of the first version of a national
heritage resources map, illustrating the distribution of the recorded formally protected sites.

Province

Records

2011 LAT/
LON%

%

58

2012 Lat/
Lon Data
Populated
200

KwaZulu-Natal

345

Northern Cape

628

29

182

29

Eastern Cape

624

24

514

82

Gauteng

242

20

60

25

Free State

220

18

39

18

North West

64

13

10

16

Western Cape

1391

7

509

37

Limpopo

28

7

4

14

Mpumalanga

55

4

3

5

Total

3 597

20

1 521

42

58

In addition to the above, 92% of selected fields for National Heritage Sites and 79% of fields relating
to SAHRA’s heritage properties, were populated. Over 900 ownership records were also updated.
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This information, when fully completed, will
highlight areas that require intensive engagement
with stakeholders and accounting authorities
in the identification and documentation of
heritage resources.
National audit

The collections selected for inclusion in the
National Audit Project, are the Genadendal
Mission Museum collection in the Western
Cape and the anthropology collection in the
library of the Walter Sisulu University. Both
these collections were selected on the basis of
their historical significance, as well as the lack of
systematic inventories which are essential in the
management of movable heritage resources.
These projects started off with the signing of
Memorandums of Understanding between
SAHRA and the respective institutions, and
the development of project plans. A SAHRA
collections manager was then installed at both
institutions for inventorying purposes.

It was decided not to continue with the
intended audit of the South African Post
Office Museum collection, reported on during
the previous review period, due to the delays
in signing the required Memorandum of
Understanding.
Genadendal Mission Museum Collections Audit
Genadendal was established in 1738 by
the Moravian Mission Society and is the
oldest mission station on the continent of
Africa. The missionaries and community
at Genadendal played a leading role in the
promotion of education, printing and music.
Items representing these various activities form
part of the Genadendal collection of about
5 000 objects, declared as a cultural treasure.
The collection includes locally manufactured
copper articles, knives and chairs, the oldest
pipe organ and fire engine in South Africa, and
the first nursery school book and Afrikaans
novel published in South Africa and printed at
Genadendal.

Figure 2 & 3: Mr Ben Rodgers, Chief Registry Clerk in the archive filing strong room
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In order to execute the project, computer
hardware and software, as well as photography
equipment, were made available to the Genadendal
Mission Museum. Nine community members were
recruited and trained in museum best practice
and photography in order to equip them with the
necessary skills to perform the work effectively
within the set time frames. The Genadendal Mi
ssion Museum management and its board were
very supportive and contributed to the successful
implementation of the project.
WSU Library Collections Audit
The Walter Sisulu University Library has about
2 000 objects, largely representative of unique
Xhosa beadwork. This anthropological collection
is considered to be of cultural significance as it
constitutes items that are no longer in production.
To facilitate the smooth execution of the
project, computer hardware and software were
made available to the library. A professional
beadwork specialist and photographer were
appointed
to
document
the
collection.
Special appreciation is given to the WSU management
for their support and contribution towards ensuring
the successful execution of this project.

Figure 4: A sample from the beadwork
collection at the WSU Library

The projects’ progress is as follows:
Genadendal: July 2011 –
February 2012

WSU Library: February –
March 2012

Objects tagged

2 436

603

Objects documented

4 413

670

Objects photographed

2 657

493

Electronic database records

3 607

622

In order to facilitate the process of selecting
subsequent collections for possible inclusion in
the National Audit Project, a Collection Selection
Committee was established. A collections
nomination form and selection criteria were
developed in consultation with the Collection
Selection Committee. This would ensure that
selected collections fit the specified criteria,
therefore adding the element of objectivity to the
selection process.

Undertaking these audit projects has contributed to
the growth of the Inventory of the National Estate. The
involvement of various stakeholders has also ensured
that SAHRA contributed significantly to the skills
development necessary for improved heritage
resources information management. It is also
worth noting the opportunities created for staff
development, as well as the establishment of
stakeholder partnerships, despite the challenges
experienced.
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Figure 5: Part of the collection of clocks at the Genadendal Mission Museum

Figure 8: A sample from the Genadendal
Mission Museum Music Collection
Figure 6: One of the many music
instruments making up the Genadendal
Mission Museum Music Collection

Figure 7: A sample of the beadwork
from the beadwork collection at the
WSU Library
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Figure 9: Two local women working on documentation of the WSU Beadwork
Collection

The staff of the National Inventory Unit
attended the annual conference of the South
African Museum Association in October 2011.
The Unit Head also attended the GISSA
conference in the same month.

provincial heritage resources authorities to
achieve compatibility with their information.
The tool produced will thus contain archival
data to ensure continuity and interoperability
between various SAHRA business units and
external stakeholders.

SAHRIS development
The development of the South African Heritage
Resources Information System (SAHRIS)
is being funded by the Department of Arts
and Culture as part of the National Audit
Project. The aim in developing the SAHRIS
is to provide the heritage sector with a tool
that will enable accessibility and integration
of the management of South African heritage
resources.
The year started with a project progress review.
As a result of an internal IT governance audit,
Mr Nicholas Wiltshire was appointed as Project
Manager for the SAHRIS in November 2011.
This facilitated rapid in-house development
of the SAHRA collections manager, a standalone application intended for inventorying
collections.

To date, the case file development has
progressed as far as the testing stage. This
includes the lodging of online applications
for developments, and comments on impact
assessments. The design of the site record forms
and sites tables has also been completed. Apart
from debugging the input forms and testing the
workflow of the system, the first version of the
system will be rolled out in two phases. The
first being internally at SAHRA during April
and May 2012. The second being the online
live release of the system to identified external
stakeholders later in the forthcoming year.
The implementation of the new SAHRA
website will dovetail with the setup of
the SAHRIS, as the CMS will be able to provide
a much more sophisticated backend to the
website.

Based on the terms of reference previously
developed, an open source Content Management
System (CMS) – called Drupal – was selected
to build the SAHRIS. The CMS uses the PHP
programming language and stores its data on
a MySQL database server. A demo of the
SAHRIS has been uploaded online for testing
and setup purposes.
A review and survey of existing heritage
resources management databases was
conducted internally to design the appropriate
fields in the SAHRIS for the data migration
which will take place once the input forms
have been debugged and tested.
Heritage Western Cape was consulted
frequently to align the design of the SAHRIS
with some of their new processes. The same
engagement will be undertaken with other
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Figure 1: The SAHRA head quarters heritage team
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S

AHRA’S people strategy is to have competent people who are inspired and committed to
the organisation’s vision and strategic plan. People are the key enabler of strategy. SAHRA is
committed to attracting, developing and retaining competent individuals and teams who are
motivated to perform to SAHRA’s strategic intent.

ORGANISATION DESIGN
SAHRA has completed Phase 1 of the
organisation’s redesign for heritage resource
management – the latter then also being its
core function. Phase 1 was based on an analysis
of the NHRA (National Heritage Resources
Act), with a focus on delivering to its national
functions. Additional resources were reallocated to its national functions based at the
head office and the satellite office. The design
(focusing on heritage resource management)
was streamlined and adjusted to fit in with the
existing allocated funding and salary cost. This
design is an interim design to better deliver to
SAHRA’s national mandate and will be used
until a business case is developed to motivate
for funding that will be aligned to the delivery
requirements as specified in the NHRA.
The restructuring resulted in the closing of the
SAHRA provincial offices, the consolidation
of its national functions into the SAHRA head
office and a satellite office in Pretoria as well
as establishing of a Training, Research and
Education CenTRE based in Grahamstown.

The balance of the impacted staff relocated or
chose voluntary severance packages.
As a result of this restructuring process,
two of the core function units have been
allocated additional positions and are now
fully resourced. These are the Graves Unit and
Grading Unit as well as the Archaeology and
Palaeontology Unit.

TEAM ALIGNMENT AND TEAM
BUILDING
Team alignment and team building are
ongoing leadership initiatives to align people
to the delivery of the SAHRA strategic and
operational plans, to build leadership capacity,
to build morale, close expectation gaps, and
to improve communication. The institution
completed one team alignment session for
the year after the restructuring process was
concluded. The restructuring process had
a significant impact on the morale of the
staff and the team alignment was used as a
building block in creating a shared mindset for
the future.

RESTRUCTURING
SAHRA has closed all its provincial offices
and has concluded the restructuring process.
Impacted staff was offered positions at the
SAHRA national offices and its satellite office.
In some instances, where vacancies existed,
impacted staff took up positions with provincial
departments, as an alternative to relocating.
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EXPENDITURE TABLE
TABLE 1.1:
PERSONNEL COST FOR 2011/12

Total
expenditure

Personnel
expenditure

R23 337 414

Training
expenditure

R23 129 361

Consultancy
services

R208 053

Average
personnel

Personnel cost
as a % of total
expenditure

0

Cost per
employee*

99%

R285 548

*The average number of employees for the year is 81

TABLE 1.2:
SALARIES, HOUSING SUBSIDY, MEDICAL ASSISTANCE, PENSION FUND CONTRIBUTIONS AND
OTHER ALLOWANCES, LEAVE GRATUITIES, BONUSES AND STATUTORY LEVIES FOR 2011/12

Salaries

Amount

Housing allowance

Salaries
as a % of
personnel
cost

R14 836 293

64

OTHER ALLOWANCES
(Car and Cell Phone)

Amount

R326 096
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Allowances
as a % of
personnel
cost

1.41

Amount

Medical assistance

Housing
allowance
as a % of
personnel
cost

R430 486

2

LEAVE GRATUITIES

Amount

R137 254

Leave
gratuities
as a % of
personnel
cost

0.59

Amount

R968 543

Pension fund

Medical
assistance
as a % of
personnel
cost
4

R1 053 539

R2 473 520

11

STATUTORY LEVIES

BONUSES

Amount

Amount

Pension
contributions
as a % of
personnel
cost

(UIF and WCA)

Bonuses
as a % of
personnel
cost

4.55

Amount

R102 383

Statutory
levies as a %
of personnel
cost

0.44

EMPLOYMENT CHANGES
ANNUAL TURNOVER BY OCCUPATIONAL LEVELS: 1 APRIL 2011 – 31 MARCH 2012

The high labour turnover is a direct result of the restructuring process and the closing of the
provincial offices. Staff members were offered relocation, but a number of staff opted for voluntary
severance. This impacted on the annual labour turnover. Most of the staff who opted for voluntary
severance were from the administration and general assistants categories. Two staff members were
from heritage, the core function of the organisation. Some staff members were absorbed into the
provincial departments in their areas of residence.
Occupational levels

Top management
Senior management
Professionally qualified and
experienced specialist
Skilled technically and
discretionary decision making
Semi-skilled and defined
decision making
Unskilled and defined decision
making
Total permanent employees

Number of
employees
as at 1 April
2011
1
4
16

Appointment Termination Turnover
rate

2

4

31%

Number of
employees as
at 31 March
2012
1
4
13

26

3

6

28%

21

18

5

7

37%

16

9

10

6

46%

13

74

20

23

34%

68

REASONS FOR TERMINATIONS
Termination type

Number

Percentage labour
turnover

Resignation

7

10%

Voluntary severance
Voluntary retirement
Disability retirement
Total

14
1
1
23

20%
1%
1%
34%
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EMPLOYMENT EQUITY
During the current financial year, the Employment Equity Report for the period 2010/2011 was
submitted to the Department of Labour. The next Employment Equity Report and Income
Distribution Statement are due on 1 October 2012 which will coincide with the end of the remaining
period covered in the Employment Equity Plan.

SAHRA WORKFORCE PROFILE: 31 MARCH 2012
Occupational levels

Top management
Senior management
Professionally qualified and
experienced specialists
Skilled technically and
academically qualified

Figure 2: Senior Registry Clerk Mr P Yekani,
in the SAHRA Heritage Registry Office

Semi-skilled and discretionary
decision making
Unskilled and defined decision
making
Total permanent
Employees with disabilities
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Designated
Males

Non-designated
White Foreign
male
national

Females

Total

A

C

I

A

C

I

W

White
male

Male

Female

0
1

0
0

0
0

1
1

0
1

0
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
4

2

2

0

2

5

0

0

2

0

0

13

4

4

0

7

0

0

4

1

0

1

21

2

5

0

5

3

1

0

0

0

0

16

0

6

0

2

5

0

0

0

0

0

13

11
0

13
0

0
0

19
0

10
0

2
0

5
0

3
0

0
0

1
0

68
0

RECRUITMENT FOR THE PERIOD OF 1 APRIL 2011 TO 31 MARCH 2012
Occupational levels

Male

Top management
Senior management
Professionally qualified and
experienced specialists
Skilled technically and
academically qualified
Semi-skilled and
discretionary decision
making
Unskilled and defined
decision making
Total permanent
Employees with disabilities

Female

A
0
0

C
0
0

I
0
0

A
0
0

C
0
0

I
0
0

W
0
0

White
male
W
0
0

Foreign
national
Male Female
0
0
0
0

Total

0

0

0

0

1

0

0

1

0

0

2

0

0

0

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

1

0

3

0

0

3

0

2

0

0

0

8

0

4

0

0

5

0

0

0

0

0

9

0
0

3
0

0
0

1
0

3
0

0
0

2
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

20
0

Total
0
0

PROMOTION FOR THE PERIOD OF 1 APRIL 2011 TO 31 MARCH 2012
Occupational levels

Top management
Senior management
Professionally qualified
and experienced
specialists
Skilled technically and
academically qualified
Semi-skilled and
discretionary decision
making
Unskilled and defined
decision making
Total permanent
Employees with
disabilities

Male

Female

A
0
0

C
0
0

I
0
0

A
0
0

C
0
0

I
0
0

W
0
0

White
male
W
0
0

Foreign
Total
national
Male Female
0
0
0
0
0
0

0

0

0

0

1

0

0

0

0

0

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

1

0

0

0

0

0

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0
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TERMINATIONS FOR THE PERIOD 1 APRIL 2011 TO 31 MARCH 2012
Occupational levels

Top management
Senior management
Professionally
qualified and
experienced specialists
Skilled technically and
academically
Semi-skilled
and decision
making
Unskilled and defined
decision making
Total permanent

Male

Female

A
0
0

C
0
0

I
0
0

A
0
0

C
0
0

I
0
0

W
0
0

White
male
W
0
0

Foreign
national
Male Female
0
0
0
0

0
0

1

2

0

1

0

0

0

0

0

4

2

0

0

2

0

0

2

0

0

0

0

0

6

0

1

0

0

0

0

7

0

0

0

6

0

0

0

0

0

0

6

3

2

0

15

0

1

2

0

0

0

23

0
0

Total

6

SKILLS DEVELOPMENT
The Grahamstown Training, Research
and Education CenTRE, in partnership
with Rhodes University, has developed three
heritage modules and one elective for training
in the new financial year. These modules will be
available for up-skilling heritage professionals at
the PHRAs and within the heritage sector. The
modules that were developed are:

Group training interventions are focused
on management development, systems
implementation, and issues of governance. The
training is targeted and takes place with large
groups of SAHRA employees. Areas focused
on include:

•
•

•

•

•
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Heritage Policy and Legislation
Heritage Resources Management I:
Definitions; Types of heritage resources;
Why should we conserve heritage?;
An integrated approach; Implementing,
assessing and reflecting; Exploring heritage
management practices
Heritage Resources Management II:
Theory, ideology and heritage manage
ment practices; Heritage management and
social transformation; Contested nature of
heritage – implications for management
practice; Strategies for heritage management; Introducing contextual complexity
and planning for implementation
Elective: Heritage Impact Assessments

•

•
•
•
•

Team alignment, focusing on strategic
plans, business plans and values;
Disciplinary procedures – code of conduct
and disciplinary polices;
Competency based recruitment;
Supply chain management;
Corporate affairs: policies and practices;
and
Accpac (finance team).

Figure 3: SAHRIS Project Manager, Mr N. Wiltshire, in
the Inventory Office

Other training courses and conferences attended by SAHRA staff during the reporting period
included individual courses in line with their personal development. These courses and workshops
included policy development, Microsoft Windows, financial management systems, VIP training and
GIS.
Training and development investment also included conferences that were attended by various staff
members, as well as funding allocated for staff bursaries.
Training and development costs
Training interventions
Cost
Disciplinary training
R75 496
Competency based recruitment
R68 000
Supply chain management
R65 000
Team alignment
R48 000
Conferences/workshops (personal development)
R73 348
Bursary funding
R32 302
Master’s programme (sabatical leave)
R58 332
Accpac training (finance )
R34 086
Personal development/functional/technical
R56 722
Total
R511 286
A number of people who applied for bursaries subsequently cancelled their studies. The full allocated
budget was R65 000. The total training cost is 2.35% of the total payroll, which is within the benchmarked standards and ranges between 2% and 3% of the payroll.
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TOTAL NUMBER OF STAFF WHO RECEIVED TRAINING FROM 1 APRIL
2011 TO 31 MARCH 2012
Occupational categories
Legislators, senior officials and
managers
Technicians and associate
professionals
Clerks
Total

Male

Female

Total

A

C

I

W

A

C

I

W

4

1

0

2

5

6

0

1

19

5

2

0

0

7

0

0

3

17

1
10

6
9

0
0

0
2

5
17

1
7

1
1

0
4

14
50

Figure 4: Train the Trainer group discussion at the Environmental Learning Centre at Rhodes
University

Figure 5: Professional heritage course planning session with some participants at Rhodes University
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SICK LEAVE
Salary band

Total
days

% days with
medical
certification

Number of
employees
using sick
leave

%
employees
using sick
leave per
category

Average
days per
employee

Estimated
costs
(R’000)

Lower skilled
16
19%
9
69%
3
R8 959
(Levels 1-2)
Skilled (Levels 3-5)
173
25%
16
100%
9
R138 590
Highly skilled
production
62
21%
16
70%
4
R50 634
(Levels 6-8)
Highly skilled
supervision
46
34%
10
77%
5
R49 171
(Levels 9-12)
Senior management
29
17%
5
100%
6
R51 473
(Levels 13-16)
Total
326
25%
56
82%
6
R298 829
Note: There has been a 37% increase in the total number of sick leave days taken compared to last year.
During this period there was extended sick leave for two employees with serious illnesses.

DISABILITY LEAVE
Other than the normal sick leave, no disability sick leave occurred during the current review period.

ANNUAL LEAVE TAKEN FOR THE PERIOD OF 1 APRIL 2011 TO
31 MARCH 2012
The average number of days taken has increased from an average of 20 to an average of 22.24 per
employee. This is positive and should assist in keeping the leave provision under control. It could be
an indication of better management control and recording of leave.
Salary band

Total days taken

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2)
Skilled (Levels 3-5)
Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8)
Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12)
Senior management (Levels 13-16)
Total

96
361
365
250
129
1201

Average per
employee
19
17
23
25
26
22
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CAPPED LEAVE AS AT 31 MARCH 2012
All capped leave days are forfeited upon resignation. Capped leave is only paid upon retirement.
Salary band

Total days of capped leave

Lower skilled
Skilled

43
63

Number of capped leave
taken
0
0

Highly skilled production
Highly skilled supervision
Senior management
Total

76
67
52
301

47
0
0
47

LEAVE PAYOUTS: 1 APRIL 2011 – 31 MARCH 2012
Capped leave is only paid on retirement. The high current leave payment is as a result of the
restructuring process.
Reason

Total amount
(R’000)

Number of
employees

Leave payout for 2011/2012 due to non-utilisation
of leave for the previous circle
Capped leave payout on termination of service
for 2011/2012
Current leave payout on termination of service
for 2011/2012
Total

0

0

Average
payment per
employee
0

R39 005.05

1

R39 005.05

R98 249.21

13

R7 557.63

R137 254.26

14

R46 562.68

INJURY ON DUTY
There were two incidents of injury on duty reported during this reporting period.

LABOUR RELATIONS
• DISCIPLINARY ACTION:
				
• GRIEVANCES:		
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3 written warnings were instituted
1 disciplinary investigation was conducted
1 grievance was instituted

Figure 6: The SAHRA head quarters heritage team are hands on
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Figure 1: Rhodes University
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Progress Report: Year 2
Background information

I

n 2010 SAHRA started to develop the programmatic framework for a Centre for Training, Research and Education (CenTRE), to be located in the historical premises of the Old Gaol (“Old
Jail”) in Grahamstown. This heritage site currently requires upgrading, renovations and ongoing
management efforts to further the CenTRE’s development.
The CenTRE’s main focus will be to try and bring together national expertise and strengthen skills
development for the cultural heritage management sector – more particularly, to provide in-service
professional development training opportunities for cultural heritage management practitioners,
teachers and the provincial heritage authorities.
The CenTRE will be servicing the training needs of SAHRA and will extend outwards to provide
education and training on cultural heritage management practices in South Africa. In order to
develop the educational foundations for such a programme, SAHRA formed a working partnership
with Rhodes University’s Environmental Education Unit (now called the Environmental Learning
Research Centre), which has a long history of educational research and course design for professional
development in the area of cultural and natural heritage management.
A key function of Rhodes University under this partnership will be to provide heritage education
research and professional development research support to SAHRA, who is in need of a series of
education and training programmes that can be run from the CenTRE.
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Figure 2,3,4,5: Participants working on module delivery with Train of Trainer workshop
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Progress in Year 2

•

Development of modules: Appointment and orientation of authors were
done during the two workshops held in
Grahamstown. Authors were contracted
between November and December to
compile the modules. By the end of
December 2011, drafts of all six
modules had been submitted to the
editor. The modules are now nearing completion, with editors and layout
designers adding their final inputs.

•

Accreditation research to inform
the course design and implementation
is underway, with a series of workshops
and meetings with the CATHSSETA and
other interested stakeholders having been
done. An accreditation specialist was hired
to work with the CenTRE team and help
speed up the process of getting the course
accredited. Her aim is to ensure that the
assessment criteria and unit standards being developed are in line with the current
demands of the SETA system. The idea is
that, once the modules are accredited by
CATHSSETA, SAHRA will apply to be the
course provider. This way all certificates
will be offered by SAHRA and not Rhodes
University. A lot of progress has been
achieved in this regard.

•

Course marketing: A course flyer was
developed through a very consultative and
participatory process. To date this flyer,
which is aimed at marketing the professional
development course, has been sent out via
SAHRA and the Department of Arts and
Culture’s websites, as well as other e-mail
distribution lists. We are now receiving inquiries and applications for the first course.
In a similar case, a call for expression of
interest in the trainer course to take place
during April 2012, was also developed and
sent out.

Introduction
In Year 1 and 2 various actions were undertaken
to lead the way towards the development of
a professional development certificate course.
The latter was to be rolled out in May this year.
Alongside this research, the restoration of the
Old Gaol is underway, which may make this
a suitable venue for the ongoing hosting of
training programmes.
Actions undertaken during Year
1 and 2 include:
•

Contextual profiling research,
involving interviews with various unit heads,
and five PHRAs were conducted, and reports written. Findings of this process have
been used and are still used to guide the
progress of the professional development
course, as well as inform the development
of a research agenda for SAHRA’s CenTRE
project.

•

A consultative workshop, consisting of various unit heads and other
important stakeholders, was held in
Grahamstown. Rhodes University is to chart
a way forward and bring on board all the
important units of SAHRA, this way creating the synergy required for the success
of the CenTRE project. (See pictures of
workshop on the left.)

•

Emerging out of the workshop
was a clear vision for the CenTRE and
a deliberative curriculum comprising of
six key and strategic areas, namely Heritage Policy, Management Practices I and
II, Heritage Impact Assessment, Heritage
Education, Monitoring, Inspection, and
Compliance. These were identified as key
elements to an effective and integrated
heritage management framework – one
of the things SAHRA is mandated for by
the NHRA to do.
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•

•
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Fundraising and networking: As
noted in the consultative workshops, part
of ensuring the sustainability of the CenTRE
project is networking and partnerships, and
currently new partnerships and networks
with relevant government and non-government sector organisations are being established. Networking with PHRAs, local municipalities, consultants and training institutions
is going well. This also ties in with the need
for fundraising with CATHSSETA, CETA
and DAC, who assured their support in the
envisaged course in the long-term. Just recently, a generous amount of R400 000 was
granted to the project by DAC for professional development. This will go a long way
in helping to support the first group of participants to the course. African World Heritage Fund agreed to support the CenTRE’s
objectives by providing financial assistance
on the condition that the CenTRE expands
and reaches out to include Southern African
Development Countries (SADC) as well.
Business plan for restoration
of the Old Gaol: A comprehensive
business plan for the restoration of the
Old Gaol – which is supposed to be used
as the central premises for the Research
Education and Training courses – was set
in place. Tenders for the appointment of
an architect who will lead the project have
been circulated, and a briefing meeting
was held. All things are moving according
to plan and the restoration process will be
completed by March 2013.

•

Partnership and collaboration efforts: The restoration of the
Old Gaol in Grahamstown is linked and intertwined with a Memorandum of Understanding between SAHRA and Construction SETA. The latter will provide funding
for youth learnership training (artisan) on
the restoration of the old building.

•

Consultation and briefing
meeting with prospective architects: Terms of reference for the restoration and rehabilitation of Old Gaol were
developed and shared with professional
architects who are interested in the project. Due to technical aspects, the Regional
Department of Public Works was introduced to the project and they are
willing to assist, based on SAHRA’s terms of
reference and procurement processes.
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Figure 9: Prof Odonoghue of Rhodes
University with participants in class
Figure 8: Trainee trainers working in group
session

Figure 7: Proceedings in the second Train
of Trainer workshop

Figure 6: Competency based workshop for
interviewing, held for staff managers in March 2012

Figure 1: Pemba Yellow Pitcher
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The increasing awareness by the majority of South Africans and the demand for recognition and
conservation of their heritage resources posed a major challenge for the under-resourced line
functions. The increasing identification of heritage resources by communities puts pressure on
the heritage resources management units to respond to this increasing expectation. In addition to
community expectations, adherence and compliance to regulatory frameworks is critical. Failure to
adhere to these can result in appeals and litigations which impact negatively on service delivery, as
was the case with Irma Stern’s artwork, ‘Arab Priest’.
The process of identifying and conserving new sites to diversify the cultural landscape added more
responsibilities to SAHRA. The legislative prescriptions for the involvement and participation of both
interested and affected parties, i.e. communities, landowners, heritage practitioners, administrators
at local, provincial and national government, necessitated intensive public participation processes.
These processes had an enormous negative impact on SAHRA’s resources and timeframes, i.e. the
Graves of Liberation Struggle Icons, the Lutheran Church Complex, the Lake Fundudzi, etc.
The administrative functions, as prescribed by the legislation, are the corner stone for the effective
and efficient management and conserving of heritage resources. Adjudication of permit applications
and review of heritage impact assessments are critical components of conservation. The introduction
of the Heritage Protection Unit will assist in the evaluation and monitoring of heritage resources.
The following units are responsible for the identification, conservation, protection and promotion
of heritage resources:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Archaeology, Paleontology and Meteorites
Burial Graves and Grounds
Built Environment
Heritage Objects
Heritage Protection
Maritime and Underwater Cultural Heritage
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Figure 1: Cradle FSI - November 2011 courtesy Peter Mills
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T

he Unit’s performance throughout the year has been directed towards achieving the
organisation’s strategic objectives, as they relates to the effective management of archaeological
and palaeontological resources and meteorites.
These objectives are:
• to improve the management and conservation of heritage resources through review, development and implementation of policies, procedures and standards for heritage management; and
• to ensure that archaeological and palaeontological resources and meteorites are conserved and
effectively managed by developing a strategy to improve on the management of archaeological
and palaeontological resources and meteorites.
This report provides a review of the Unit’s activities, achievements and challenges over the past
year.

Staffing
After the resignation of Mrs Nonofho
Ndobochani, Mrs Colette Scheermeyer took
over the management of the Archaeology,
Palaeontology & Meteorites (APM) Unit in
November 2011. Three contract staffing
positions (Dr Mariagrazia Galimberti, Mr Phillip
Hine and Mr Andrew Salomon) continue to
assist with the processing of archaeological and
palaeontological impact assessments related to
development and mining notifications.

Permitting processes
The challenge to undertake functions on
behalf of the Provincial Heritage Resources
Authorities (PHRAs) has impacted on the
effectiveness of monitoring sites as well as
ensuring compliance with heritage legislation.
However, a great deal has been done in
mitigating these challenges – one of which
has been an emphasis on getting PHRAs
capacitated, assessed and managing heritage
resources. With the recent appointment of a
new archaeologist at the Eastern Cape PHRA,
SAHRA APM is working towards finalising
the handover of the APM Unit’s functions to
the PHRA. The Unit continues to encourage

PHRAs that are still to appoint professional
qualified archaeologists, to do so.
The processing of permit applications remains
a core part of the duties the Unit executes (see
Figure 2 for permits processed), and the Unit
continues to deliver effectively in this regard.
The Archaeology, Palaeontology, Meteorites,
Heritage Objects and Burials (APMHOB)
Permit Committee makes decisions and advises
on the issuing of APM permits. Members of
the APMHOB Permit Committee are:
Mr Jaco Boshoff (Chairperson), Dr Amanda
Esterhuysen, Dr Alex Schoeman, Dr David
Pearce, Dr Maria van der Ryst, Prof Ciraj
Rassol, Ms June Hosford, Dr John Rogers, Mr
Tim Hart, Dr Shadreck Chirikure, Dr Deano
Stynder and Dr Coen Nienaber.
The SAHRA APM manager serves on the
SAHRA Built Environment and Landscape
Permit Committee, as well as on the permit
committee of the Western Cape PHRA,
Heritage Western Cape, in addition to advising
on permit applications through electronic
mailing of Amafa/Heritage KwaZulu Natali.
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Impact assessment
processes
There has been a significant increase in the
number of renewable energy development
projects in South Africa. Solar and wind
energy have emerged as identified sources
of alternative “green” energy. This is evident
in the number of development assessment
applications which the Unit processed in the
past year.
Looking at broader development notifications,
Eastern Cape and Northern Cape have
the highest number. Provinces such as
Mpumalanga, Gauteng and Limpopo follow,
and the Free State and North West have the
fewest number of notifications.
Archaeological impact assessments and palaeon
tological impact assessments that were processed
are summarised in Figure 3. The challenge
remaining is that of implementing sufficient
monitoring and compliance interven
tions. It is
envisioned that this will be less of a challenge once
all the PHRAs have appointed archaeologists
and palaeontologists in the provinces.

Given the extent and nature of the work,
it is believed the PHRAs would need to be
supported with human capital and financial
resources by their respective provinces if they
are to maintain, and possibly improve, norms
and standards set by SAHRA. In this regard, the
SAHRA APM Unit is working towards finalising
the updating of two policies, namely the
Minimum Standards for Archaeological Impact
Assessments and the Minimum Standards for
Palaeontological Impact Assessments. The
Unit has also recently started working with the
newly created heritage Protection Unit within
SAHRA, and it is envisioned that long-term
collaboration between these two units would
further improve the efficiency of the APM Unit
in its monitoring and compliance role.

Monitoring and
evaluation
The Unit continues to work with the Cradle
of Humankind World Heritage Site Managing
Authority (COH WHS MA) with regards to
the conservation and management of nationally

Figure 4: Fossilised limb bone of a rhino-sized Karoo reptile, courtesy John Almond
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Figure 5: Lime Kiln fossil site, Cradle of
Humankind, Gauteng Province, courtesy
Peter Mills

Figure 6: Petrified wood from the ancient Karoo, De Aar,
Nothern Cape Province, courtesy John Almond

declared fossil sites within this World Heritage
Site. The parties are working towards finalising
the drafting of a new Memorandum of
Understanding. Two bi-annual site inspections
were undertaken to determine the state of
conservation and management at the declared
fossil sites within the COH WHS.

The UNESCO and ICOMOS
Reactive Monitoring
Mission
The Vele mining developments, encroaching
on the Mapungubwe National Heritage Site
and World Heritage Site, have highlighted
the need for more vigorous “on the ground”
monitoring as well as ensuring compliance with
heritage legislation. This is a matter to which
the APM Unit has given its attention over the
course of the year and continues to do so. In
this regard, unit representatives were present
at the UNESCO and ICOMOS Monitoring
Mission at the Vele colliery and Mapungubwe
Cultural Landscape in January 2012.
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Palaeotechnical reports
A service provider was appointed for the
compilation of three palaeontological technical
reports for the Free State, Gauteng and
Limpopo provinces. A draft of the reports has
been produced and the Unit is working with
the consultant to provide an end product which
would be adapted to booklets, pamphlets and
posters to educate communities, developers
and consultants about palaeontology. Previous
reports produced for the Northern Cape and
Eastern Cape are used daily within the Unit
as a reference tool when assessing impact
reports for palaeontology in these provinces.
These reports are essential and very useful
tools that the Unit is developing – not only for
the heritage management authority, but also
for the public.

Conservation projects:
Capital works
The Unit has managed capital works
projects within this financial year. Funding for
conservation at Wonderwerk Cave in the
Northern Cape entailed the finalisation of
design plans for boardwalks, handrails, viewing
platforms and a lighting system at the site.

Figure 7: Mapungubwe cultural landscape, Limpopo Province

Figure 8: Gosopertis leaves, courtesy Robert Gess
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The final design proposal was presented at a
meeting of the APMHOB Permit Committee
in October 2011 and at a meeting of the
SAHRA Built Environment and Landscape
Permit Committee in November 2011.
Both committees approved the finalised
design proposal, with the project moving
into the implementation phase in the next
financial year.
The project undertaken within the Kaditshwene
Cultural Landscape, North West Province,
entailed the surveying and documenting of
stone walls sites and metal/iron working
sites, description of the general archaeology,
GEO referencing and mapping of these sites,
documentation of indigenous knowledge, and
the formulation of an integrated management
plan. The surveying of the stone walling,
research of metal working, and documentation
of indigenous knowledge has been finalised.

Stakeholder relationships
SAHRA continues to hold annual meetings

with the Palaeontological Society of Southern
Africa (PSSA) and the Association of
Southern African Professional Archaeologists
(ASAPA). In January 2012, at a conference of
the Cultural Resources Management (CRM)
section of ASAPA, several staff members
presented on the minimum standards
for archaeological impact assessment
reports and APM permitting processes.
SAHRA’s aim was to engage actively with
professional archaeologists in order to
improve understanding of the requirements
of the NHRA and for SAHRA to promote
and encourage best practice and good
management of heritage resources.
The Unit continues to work with the
Department of Environmental Affairs and the
Department of Mineral Resources, since their
roles overlap in the management of impact
assessment processes, where they relate to
development and mining applications. The
Unit will therefore continue engaging with
all stakeholders to ensure the efficient and
effective management of these resources, as
guided by the NHRA.

Figure 9: Wondercave, Cradle of Humankind, Gauteng Province, courtesy Peter Mills
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Figure 10: Shell Midden, Thuyspunt, Eastern Cape Province

Figure 11: Fossil site, Swartkrans, Cradle of Humankind, Gauteng Province, courtesy Peter Mills
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Figure 12: Archaeopteris (Progymnosperm) fronds from Waterloo, Eastern Cape Province, courtesy Robert
Gess

Figure 13: Fossil site, Sterkfontein, Cradle of Humankind, Gauteng Province, courtesy Peter Mills

Figure 14: Diplacanthus
(acanthodian fish) from Waterloo, Eastern
Cape Province, courtesy Robert Gess
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Figure 1: Maphikela House entrance
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T

he financial year of 2011 started on a very sad note with the untimely passing of the Built
Environment Manager, Mrs Beverley Crouts-Knipe, on 19 April 2011. This tremendous loss
left an enormous gap – not only for SAHRA, but also for the broader heritage community,
both nationally and internationally. Her dedication and commitment inspired many of her colleagues
and she will be sorely missed.

CONSERVATION: HERITAGE RESOURCES MANAGEMENT
NHRA: Duties and functions (routine and agency functions)
The Built Environment Unit (BE), functioning as secretariat and coordinator to the Built Environment
and Cultural Landscape Committee (BELCom), a committee of the SAHRA Council, prepared and
presented all submissions related to Grade 1 and national heritage sites. In this regard the BE Unit
wishes to express its gratitude to the committee members for the generous donation of their time
and expertise.
The following table illustrates the applications processed during 2011-2012:
PROVINCE

DEVELOPMENTAL CONTROL
(S 8, 27, 29, 34, 38)
NATIONAL AND GRADE 1 SITES
Cape Winelands Cultural Landscape –
Dwars River Valley and Simondium, Groot
Drakenstein

WESTERN CAPE

RoD/
PERMIT
LETTERS
ISSUED

HIA/HS
CMP

7

Cape Winelands Cultural Landscape – Idas
Valley

2

Cape Winelands Cultural Landscape –
Constantia-Tokai Valley

1

Cape Winelands Cultural Landscape – Dal
Josafat Cultural Landscape

6

Table Mountain National Park

3

District Six

3

Waenhuiskrans Cultural Landscape –
Kassiesbaai

12

Bo-Kaap

12

1 (HS)

Langa

2

2 (HIA’s)

Parliament (comment)

1

1(HIA)

1 (HIA)
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PROVINCE

FREE STATE

DEVELOPMENTAL CONTROL
(S 8, 27, 29, 34, 38)
NATIONAL AND GRADE 1 SITES

RoD/
PERMIT
LETTERS
ISSUED

HIA/HS CMP

Mapikela House and Wesleyan School

1

1 (HIA/HS)

Mvezo proposed interpretive centre

1

1 (HS)

Matters related to development while
ECPHRA was being assessed

8

NORTH WEST

Taung Skull WHS

2

KZN

Dube Gravesite

1

NORTHERN
CAPE

Wonderwerk Caves

1

EASTERN CAPE

Total

65

1 (HIA)
1(CMP)

9

Grading and declaration
The closing of the Grading and Declarations Unit meant that the Built Environment Unit now also
has to perform the function of grading and declaring two outstanding sites.
IDENTIFICATION AND DECLARATION (S3, 5, 6, 7, 8)
PROGRESS

Lutheran Church
Complex
nomination

The BE Unit facilitated the submission and presentation to the Grading
and Declarations Committee. The matter was referred to the SAHRA
Council for approval.

West Coast Fossil
Park

The BE Unit was involved in the discussion with Heritage Western Cape
(HWC) regarding its declaration as provincial heritage site.

Figure 2: Bo-Kaap – c/o Pentz and
Dorp Streets – site of ongoing
development

SITE
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Figure 3: The UDF memorial being
unveiled by the Premier of the Western
Cape, Ms Helen Zille, the Mayor of Cape
Town, Ms Patricia de Lille, Dr Alan
Boesak and Mr Tony Ehrenreich

Information management
and service delivery

ICOMOS “Shared Built Heritage
Conference”, Castle of Good Hope,
4-8 July 2011

The BE Unit attended to general concerns and
enquiries raised by the public, government
bodies, NGOs, researchers and educational
institutions on an ongoing basis. These actions
are inclusive of assistance given to the Eastern
Cape Provincial Heritage Resources Agency
whilst their competency was being assessed.

The above conference was convened by the
Shared Built Heritage Scientific Committee of
ICOMOS with the BE Unit involved in arranging
and participating in the conference. SAHRA
Public Relations also hosted a gala dinner for
the guests at the end of the conference.

Outreach, Education &
Public Relations
Conferences and workshops
The South African Museums
Association (SAMA) Western Cape
Regional Conference 2011 and
Annual General Meeting

The theme of the conference, held on 11-13
April 2011, was “Museums and Memory”. A
member of the BE Unit served on the SAMA
WC Executive Committee and was actively
involved in the planning of this event.

Cape Peninsula University of
Technology

The BE Unit, through its engagement with this
academic institute, has sought to promote
SAHRA through the presentation of an annual
book award handed to the best students
in History (Architectural Technology) and
Environmental Studies (Town and Regional
Planning).
Department of Arts and Culture
Parliament Portfolio Committee

The BE Unit briefly hosted the committee
at the Castle of Good Hope on its visit to
SAHRA’s premises.
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Involvement with professional
bodies

Representatives of the BE Unit serve on the
following committees:
•
•
•
•

The Castle Control Board
ICOMOS South Africa
South African Museum Association
(SAMA)
Association of Professional Heritage
Practitioners (APHP)

CONCLUSION
The staff for the 2011/2012 financial year
consisted of Mrs Sonja Warnich-Stemmet,
Heritage Officer: Heritage Planning; Mr Gregory
Ontong, Heritage Officer: Conservation;
Ms Mandisa Tantsi, Senior Administration
Assistant; and Mr Peter Cedras: General
Assistant. The staff wishes to extend their
gratitude to all stakeholders during the past
year for their assistance.

Partnerships, cooperative
governance and heritage bodies

Partnerships include relationships with the
District Six Museum, Iziko Museums of
Cape Town, Archaeology Department of
the University of Cape Town, Cape Town
Tourism Office, and the Peninsula University
of Technology.
Other
stakeholders
include
working
relationships with the Department of Arts
and Culture, Heritage Western Cape, the
Department of Environmental Affairs and
Development Planning, Department of
Public Works, Department of Correctional
Services, Table Mountain National Park,
SANParks, Waenhuiskrans/Arniston Conservation
Development Trust, Kassiesbaai Vissersunie
(Fisherman’s Union), City of Cape Town
(Heritage Branch), City of Cape Town Heritage
Trust, and the Robben Island Museum.

Figure 4: Site visit to Wesleyan School,
Waaihoek, Bloemfontein. From left to
right: Ms Nolitha Ngcai (Objects Unit),
Mr Gabriel Thlapi (Dep. Dir.: SACR, FS),
Ms Regina Isaacs (Head Objects Unit) and
Ms Mimi Seetelo (BGG)

Policy development and transformation of
SAHRA
Re-profiling and transformation of SAHRA
A series of policies have been drafted to
assist the BE Unit in functioning optimally in a
transforming world. These include the revised
SAHRA BELCom Terms of Reference, revised
fee structure and operational guidelines that
are currently underway.
Devolution of heritage functions to the
provinces
The BE Unit has given inputs with regard to the
assessment of PHRAs particularly pertaining
to the Northern Cape and the Eastern Cape
PHRA assessments.
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Figure 5: Mrs Sonja Warnich-Stemmet,
facilitator of the presentations session at the
APHP Workshop held on 29 October 2011.
Photo courtesy of APHP

Figure 6: Groot Constantia House

Figure 7: Maphikela House
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Figure 1: The grave of a fallen soldier, J.A Lakay of the Cape Coloured Auxilliary Horse Transport – La Somme, France
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IDENTIFICATION
Graves of the liberation struggle icons (founding fathers)

A

s part of the ANC Centenary Celebrations, SAHRA was invited to develop and submit a
project plan aimed at identification, assessment of conservation needs, and formal protections
of graves of liberation struggle icons as national heritage sites. The Burial Grounds and Graves
Unit (BGG) embarked on archival research and further identified graves of the ANC, PAC and Black
Consciousness Movement, between May and July 2012.

Graves of the South African Native
Labour Contingency –
Arques-la-Bataille and Delville
Wood - la Somme

SAHRA was requested by the South African
High Commission in France to participate in
the joint identification of graves of the South
African Native Labour Contingent (SANLC),
and to advise on exhumation and centralising
of all graves of fallen South African casualties
within France.
This was aimed at working towards an inclusive
annual commemorative event as part of the
national transformative imperative. Further
to that, research for identification of families
within South Africa and symbolic reparations
was mooted through commemorative events
and memorials within communities from which
the fallen combatants were drawn. Discussions
were also held with the Anne Frank Museum
and Impunity Watch in the Netherlands,
to develop co-operative relations aimed at
memorialisation projects in a post-conflict
democracy.
The Matola raid

The SAHRA BGG Unit’s Divisional Manager
was appointed to serve in the Ministerial
Reference Group for the Matola raid
memorial project. The brief of the reference
group was to verify information on the fallen
combatants of the African National Congress

and Mozambican civilians who fell during
a cross border raid on 30 January 1981.
Further to that the Unit was to advise on the
conservation measures for 22 graves of South
Africans, primarily associated with the raid, and
other incidents of political assassinations that
took place in Mozambique. The memorial as
well as an interpretative centre, currently in a
final phase of construction, will be unveiled in
July 2012.
Angola

In October 2011, the SAHRA BGG Unit was
invited to participate in an intergovernmental
committee for the identification of graves of
South Africans who fell in Angola, as well as
the development of conservation measures
and construction of a memorial as part of a
presidential capital project.
Protection

As part of the continuation of the project
aimed at celebrating the heroines of the
liberation struggle as well as literary and musical
icons, the grave of Rahima Moosa (1928-93),
one of the leaders in South African history,
was graded and approved for declaration as a
national heritage site (NHS).
The following graves were graded as potential
national heritage sites and subsequently
approved for declaration: Reverend Z.R.
Mahabane (ANC President – 1924-27, 1936-
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Treasurer), A.J. Luthuli (ANC President
– 1952-67), J.T. Gumede (1927-30), S.M.
Makgatho (1916-24), P. Seme (1930-36), O.R.
Tambo (1967-91), A.B. Xuma (1940-49), R.M.
Sobukwe ( Founder of the PAC 1924-78),
Steve Biko (Founder of the BCM – 1946-77)

on foreign soil. Key sites within the country
that were under threat were prioritised for
sustainable conservation measures.

Conservation projects

During the course of development,
approximately 15 cases of accidentally
discovered human remains were reported to
SAHRA. A number of cases were reconstructed
and buried in situ. The other cases were issued
with emergency permits for exhumation and
relocation of the remains.

SAHRA signed a heritage agreement with
the Heritage Foundation based at the
Voortrekker Monument, allowing for ceding
of responsibilities for the conservation of
the Burger concentration camp burial sites
and prisoners of war (POW) camps located

Regulatory
monitoring/Development control

Figure 2: Klerksdorp grave site

The work at the Crown Mines, where an
informal burial site of mineworkers was
exposed by soil erosion, continues. A total
of 180 human remains have been rescued
thus far and are in storage, where physical
anthropological studies are being conducted
to check vital forensic information on causes of
death, ethnic origins and age.

Figure 3: Heidelberg grave site – before

Figure 4: Heidelberg grave site – after
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CAPITAL PROJECTS
Queen Thomozile ka Ndwandwe reburial
– R61 450.00
Crown Mines rescue of remains
– R 28 158.00
Figure 5: Krugersdorp grave site – before

Haenertsburg rescue of remains
– R4 558.06
Heritage Foundation Restoration Programme
– R750 000.00
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Bergendal Memorial
Bethulie Concentration Camp
Bronkhorstspruit Memorial
Doornbult (Orange River Station)
Kroonstad Concentration Camp
Springfontein Concentration Camp
Winburg Concentration Camp
Mafikeng Concentration Camp
Heidelberg Concentration Camp
Turffontein Concentration Camp
Vereeniging Concentration Camp
Maitland Burger Graves
Merebank Concentration Camp

Figure 6: Krugersdorp grave site – after

Figure 7: Krugersdorp grave site clean up

Figure 8: Middelburg, Totius Street

TOTAL: R844 166.06
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Figure 9: Desiré de Villiers headstone, Church Street

Figure 10: Winburg concentration camp – before

Figure 12: Winburg Old Municipal
Cemetery – cross before
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Figure 11: Winburg concentration camp – after

Figure 13: Winburg Old Municipal
Cemetery – cross after
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Figure 1: Regina Isaacs and Christopher Peter view
artwork exhibit
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T

he period under review was both challenging and exciting, as history was made after processing
the permit application to export the artwork, ‘Arab Priest’, by Irma Stern. In short, the work
of the Heritage Objects Unit (HOU) can be summed up as the year of learning how to manage a
family jewel with a distant relative...
Initially, SAHRA received a temporary export permit application from Bonhams Auction House in
London to exhibit the artwork in London and New York. The permit was approved. SAHRA then
later received a permit application to permanently export the artwork to Qatar Museum Authority
(QMA). SAHRA refused to issue the permit on the grounds of the significance of the artwork. QMA
appealed against SAHRA’s decision. Although SAHRA had once before received notice of an appeal
against a decision, it was the first time in the organisation’s history that an appeal against a SAHRA
decision to refuse to export a heritage object, was carried through.
The Appeal Committee was made up of council members: Advocate Mlonzi, Advocate Ronee
Robinson and Ms Laura Robinson; Experts: Mr Toby Orford (Chairperson), Prof Pippa Skotnes and
Dr Eunice Basson. Ms Rooksana Omar and Mr Shekesh Sirkar from Herold Gie Attorneys made up
SAHRA’s appeal team. QMA was represented by Van Huyssteens Attorneys, and the Irma Stern
Trust was represented by Norton Rose South Africa.
On 16 November 2011, before the appeal hearing started, there was an indication from QMA’s
legal representative that QMA would like to discuss the matter concerning the appeal with SAHRA.
The discussions took place for most of the day, whilst the Appeal Committee awaited the return of
the two parties concerned.
During the discussions which were, at times, held separately and at other times were directly
between SAHRA and QMA, an understanding was reached that was carved into a Record of
Understanding and signed by both parties. The basis of the understanding reached was that QMA
would apply for a temporary export permit and that the appeal hearing would be postponed,
pending the outcome of the temporary export permit’s application.
QMA duly applied for a permit to temporarily export the artwork. The Permit Committee approved
the application and granted the temporary export permit for a period of 20 (twenty) years, where
after either a further temporary permit will be applied for, or, alternatively, a permanent export
permit. In addition:
•

•

The artwork must be returned to South Africa for an aggregate period of 4 (four) years
over the permit period. The artwork should return to South Africa for an average of
12 (twelve) months in every 5 (five)-year cycle during the 20 years whilst the artwork
is on loan to QMA.
Representatives from QMA, SAHRA, Iziko Art Collections, and Irma Stern Museum
would form a monitoring body to coordinate the movement of the artwork to and
from South Africa, chaired by QMA. The first Monitoring Committee meeting was held
on 26 March 2012.
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QMA complied and SAHRA expresses
appreciation to them for making the artwork
accessible to South Africa.
Following the issuing of the temporary export,
the appeal fell away and the processes were
set in motion to exhibit the artwork in order
for the public to view it.
SAHRA, in collaboration with the Department
of Arts and Culture (DAC) and the South
African National Gallery (SANG), planned
an exhibition of the artwork at the gallery.
The exhibition was opened at the SANG on
28 March 2012. The Honourable Minister, Mr
Paul Mashatile, Minister of Arts and Culture,
was represented by the Director General,
Mr Sibusiso Xaba, who was the keynote
speaker. His Excellency, Dr Bashier, Al Shirawi,
Ambassador of Qatar to South Africa, also
addressed the approximately 120 invited
guests which included officials of the Irma
Stern Trust and Irma Stern Museum.
As a result of the unanticipated functions
related to the permit application, as well as
capacity challenges, the strategic objectives of
the HOU, however, remain incomplete.

UNIT MANAGEMENT
Staffing and Workload

On 13 February 2012 the HOU was joined
by Ms Nolitha Ngcai who will be responsible
for declarations and monitoring of Specifically
Declared Collections.

CONSERVATION OF HERITAGE
OBJECTS
Permit Applications

The permit applications received by the
HOU mainly range from applications to
permanently or temporarily export heritage
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objects. Permanent export permits applied
for are largely for the sale of heritage objects,
whilst temporary export permits are largely
for exhibition purposes or for conservation of
specifically declared heritage objects.
The Appeal Panel, appointed by the SAHRA
Council, assesses the significance of artworks
and makes recommendations to the Permit
Committee as to whether or not an artwork
may be exported. The Art Panel is made up of
Prof Ciraj Rassool (Chairperson), Mr Andrew
Lamprecht, Mrs Carol Kaufmann, Ms Christine
Jikelo, Mr Christopher Peter, Mr Emile Maurice,
Mr Hayden Proud, Ms Marilyn Martin, Dr
Melanie Hillebrand, Prof Michael Godby, Dr
Rayda Becker and Mr Sipho Ndabambi.
SAHRA expresses its appreciation to the
members of the Art Panel who make their
expertise available to the organisation, free of
charge.
Art Panel meetings were held on 17 February,
9 September and 23 September 2011.
The Archaeology, Palaeontology, Meteorites,
Heritage Objects and Burials Permit Committee
(Permit Committee) is mandated to make
decisions that relate to permit applications
on behalf of the council. The names of the
members are published elsewhere in the
report. The HOU expresses appreciation to
the Permit Committee members who also
make their time available to SAHRA, free of
charge.

The HOU received and processed 37 permit applications to export 48 heritage objects. Amongst
these were two temporary exporting permit applications – one was for conservation and nine
permit applications were refused:
NO.

DESCRIPTION

TYPE OF
PERMIT

DECISION

1

Brass telescope with tripod stand and wooden accessory
box containing six eye pieces and three optical tubes

Export

Permit declined

2

Irma Stern, ‘Arab Priest’

Export

Permit declined

3

Conservation of 26 low-fired ceramic vessels

4

Two oil paintings

Export

Permit issued

5

J.H. Pierneef, “Kransberg, Rustenburg”

Export

Permit issued

6

P.H. Naude, “Coastal Landscape”

Export

Permit issued

7

F.D. Oerder, “Apies River, Pretoria”

Export

Permit declined

8

J.H. Pierneef, “Eastern Free State”

Export

Permit issued

9

F. Krige, “Xhosa Girl”

Export

Permit issued

10

V.G. Tretchikoff, “Still Life with Poinsettias”

Export

Permit issued

11

Alexis Preller, “Still Life with Bottles”

Export

Permit issued

12

C. Rolando, “A British Encampment”

Export

Permit declined

13

P.H. Naude, “Washing Day by the Riverside”

Export

Permit issued

14

P.H. Naude, “Lagoon with Moored Boat, Port St John”

Export

Permit issued

15

Irma Stern, “Still Life with Black Lilies and Pumpkin”

Export

Permit declined

16

Wolf Kibel, “Portrait of a bearded man”

Export

Permit declined

17

Alexis Preller, “Girl in the Rain”

Export

Permit issued

18

Alexis Preller, “Wounded Sculpture”

Export

Permit declined

19

A. van Wouw, “The Student”

Export

Permit declined

20

P.H. Naude, “The Doge’s Palace, Venice”

Export

Permit issued

21

P.H. Naude, “Mombasa, Fort de Jesus”

Export

Permit issued

22

Terence McCaw, “Cape Farm Scene”

Export

Permit issued

23

R. Everard, “Nude seated on Green Cushion”

Export

Permit issued

24

G. Sekoto “Donkey Cart”

Export

Permit issued

25

F. Lock, “Still Life with Lemons”

Export

Permit issued

26

Wolf Kibel, “Gardens”

Export

Permit issued

27

C. Coetzee, “Two Brides in Blue”

Export

Permit issued

28

P. du Toit, “The Farmhouse”

Export

Permit issued

29

Alexis Preller, “Still Life with Lilies”

Export

Permit issued

30

E. Esmonde-White, “Hanging the washing, Malay Quarter”

Export

Permit issued

Permit issued
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31

C. Higgs, “Basuto Washer Women”

Export

Permit issued

32

Irma Stern, “Portrait of Vera Poppe Playing the Cello”

Export

Permit issued

33

Wolf Kibel, “Nude Study”

Export

Permit issued

34

Irma Stern, “African Girl”

Export

Permit issued

35

Beadwork

Temporary

Permit issued

36

Irma Stern, ‘Arab Priest’

Temporary

Permit issued

37

J.H. Piernief, “A View of Chuniespoort”

Permanent

Permit issued

38

Irma Stern, “Portrait of a Young Indian Woman”

Permanent

Permit issued

39

J.H. Pierneef, “South West African Mountains”

Permanent

Permit issued

40

J.H. Pierneef, “Transvaal Scene with a Dam in the
foreground”

Permanent

Permit issued

41

J.H. Pierneef, “Landscape with Trees”

Permanent

Permit issued

42

J.H. Pierneef, “Okahandjeberge”

Permanent

Permit issued

43

J.H. Pierneef, “Mountain Landscape”

Permanent

Permit issued

44

J.H. Pierneef, “Elim K.P Naby Bredasdorp”

Permanent

Permit issued

45

Irma Stern, “Books on a Table”

Permanent

Permit declined

46

Maggie Laubser, “Portrait of a Lady Wearing a Blue Dress
and Hat”

Permanent

Permit issued

47

Pieter Hugo Naude, “Coastal Scene near Hermanus”

Permanent

Permit issued

48

Maggie Laubser, “Farmstead with Mountains Beyond”

Permanent

Permit issued

During the 2010/2011 financial year, SAHRA
received 35 permit applications. As long as all
the key role-players are not co-operating and
the desired capacity and infrastructure are not
in place, the number of permit applications is
bound to remain low and may contribute to
owners illegally exporting heritage objects by
listing them as domestic goods.

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES
Heritage Agreement

The draft Heritage Agreement to be signed by
SAHRA, SANParks and UP was submitted to
the SAHRA Council Heritage Objects Unit for
finalisation.
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Restitution Policy

The draft Restitution Policy was submitted to
the council for approval, but was referred to
the SAHRA Council Heritage Committee for
their consideration.
Firearms Policy and guidelines

A meeting was held with the heads of the
Archaeology and MUCH Units for their inputs
on the management of firearms of heritage
value. Given the lack of capacity in the HOU
office, a consultant has been appointed to
finalise the firearms guidelines.

PRESENTATIONS

CONCLUSION

A representative of the HOU attended
a conference on Illicit Traffic from 13-16
September and made a joint presentation with
Reinette Stander (DAC).

For the first time in SAHRA’s history, the
Permit Committee did not approve of a
recommendation made by the Art Panel,
which presented a new set of challenges.

ENQUIRIES/CONCERNS/
MATTERS ADDRESSED
•

•

•

•

•

•
•

Viewed the Broster Bead Collection
identified for declaration since the
conservation assessment and was
pleased that, although some of the
recommendations were adhered to,
Walter Sisulu University has yet to identify
proper storage space for the collection.

THE HERITAGE OBJECTS UNIT
WOULD LIKE TO ACKNOWLEDGE
THE FOLLOWING (AND MANY OTHER
EXPERTS) WHO ASSIST SAHRA WITH
THEIR EXPERTISE:
•

The Appeal Committee, chaired by
Toby Orford

•

John Nicholas Middleton

•

Captain Mtala

•

Stephen Fourie

•

John Keene

•

Professor Duffey

•

Carvell Webb

•

Professor Wagner

•

Dr Catchpole

•

Ian Pretorius

•

Nerina Skuy

•

Cynthia Mgijima

•

Irma Stern Trust

•

Embassy to the State of Qatar

•

Riason Naidoo and colleagues at SA
National Gallery

•

Ms June Hosford

•

Chris Baragwanath

Formed part of a team inspecting facilities
at the Mapungubwe Interpretive Centre.

•

Oswald Cupido

•

John Keene

Assessed firearms in Plumstead and at
Bellville Police Station.

•

Stephen Welz of Strauss & Co.

•

Bernadine Benson

•

Captain Charmaine Swart

Addressed concerns with Robben Island
Museum expressed by the Minister of Arts
and Culture regarding allegations made by
the Ex-Political Prisoners Association.
Informed the South African National
Gallery that the SAHRA Council had
donated the two Pemba artworks,
purchased by the organisation in 2010, to
them.
In co-operation with members of
the Heritage Railway Association of
Southern Africa (HRASA), recommended
that Blackie, the specifically declared
locomotive, should be relocated back to
the site where it was originally displayed
on Cape Town Station, or, at least, as
close as possible.
Established that a sculpture by Sydney
Khumalo, that forms part of the specifically
declared collection at Fort Hare, was not
sold at an auction.
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Figure 2: Stephan Welzpre Union Cape of Good Hope, lot 9
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Figure 3: Lionclaw Necklace

Figure 4: Kitaab (slave diaries)

Figure 5: Ian Pretorius, railway expert panel member

Figure 6: Azola and Regina, visiting Freedom Park as
part of SAMA conference 2011
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T

he Unit is relatively new with one staff member whose main responsibility is to establish
systems, policies and standards, and to provide guidance for an effective and efficient
protection of heritage resources. The Unit organised a meeting with all the heritage resources
management units of SAHRA for their input, shared challenges and their concerns on how SAHRA
can be redirected in order to provide an adequate service to the general public. All the units agreed
that there is a need for better working tools that will enable SAHRA to operate effectively, identify,
monitor, and manage the national estate, and enforce the National Heritage Resource Act. The
following recommendations were made:
a) The new checklist (which will remain manual until a cyber tracker is acquired) prohibition
notice, undertaking, and contravention notices that are formulated by the Heritage 		
Protection Unit.
b) The new working tools accepted, plus the following:
•
•
•
•

•
•
•

•

Reviewing regulations;
A need for a heritage inspector for each unit;
The training of heritage inspectors;
Regulations to avoid clashes with the community during developments around their
national heritage sites (if not yet, public regulations need to be included in the NEMA
report, or not done at all);
SAHRA will have to develop its own process of dealing with heritage practitioners who
contravene with the Act;
SAHRA needs to investigate the placing of inspectors and posters at the airports,
preventing the public from exporting heritage objects without a permit;
SAHRA needs different expertise for firearms, painting, artwork, etc. Currently they are
assisted by volunteers who are not paid by the organisation and it is often difficult to
get a quick response from these volunteers.
An issue that needs to be addressed is the correct way of dealing with the destruction
of heritage resources without the owner notifying SAHRA, and a request for the owner
to rebuild or repair the destroyed resource.

The Heritage Protection Unit plans on discussing these issues with the various units and will deal
with these matters in due course.
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Figure 1: MUCH in action
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S

AHRA’s Maritime and Underwater Cultural Heritage (MUCH) Unit has taken a unique position
on the management of South Africa’s MUCH resources. Whereas the perception of underwater cultural heritage as being solely shipwrecks has predominated globally, the MUCH Unit has
worked hard to expand the focus to non-traditional, locally applicable examples of MUCH resources
that reflect South Africa’s historical relationship with water. The Unit has used external funding to develop MUCH and bring it into heritage mainstream. The Unit has also made significant strides towards
showcasing this resource as a shared and universal inheritance. By broadening the scope of MUCH,
the Unit has been able to address its key strategic objective, namely raising awareness of an aspect of
heritage often hidden beneath the water’s surface.

Declaration
The MUCH Unit has played a key role in
grading and declaration activities for Lake
Fundudzi through consultative workshops with
the various role players and stakeholders, as
well as through the development of methods
to capacitate members of the lake community
to self-manage the site.

Heritage resources
management
The MUCH Unit is mandated to manage
MUCH resources along our coast as well
as in or around inland waters such as lakes,
rivers and dams. The Unit has processed
ten applications for permits to conduct
activities on or in the vicinity of wreck sites.
In addition, we have assessed or commented
on eight environmental and heritage impact
assessments.

Permit applications: MUCH
3
2.5
2
1.5
1
0.5
0
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EIA/HIA/AIAs
received

Commented

8

8

The Unit carried out its daily activities, including
site inspections, site monitoring, answering
public queries and other mandated functions.

Policy and legislation
South Africa stands at a crossroad of MUCH
management. This has compelled the MUCH
Unit to redraft its policy to refocus SAHRA’s
mandated functions, including permitting
and management of underwater sites. By
addressing the complex strategies associated
with managing a multifaceted resource of both
historical and commercial value, the policy
will begin to moderate current management
challenges. The policy seeks to specifically
mitigate the challenge of unchecked looting
and treasure hunting. It takes into account both
the current legislative directives and definitions
imposed by the National Heritage Resources
Act (Act 25 of 1999), as well as forwardlooking trends in global MUCH management.

Co-operative programmes
Together with Iziko Museums, the Unit planned
and implemented two fieldwork seasons on a
wreck believed to be that of the Portuguese
slave ship, Sao Jose (1794), as part of the ongoing Slave Wreck Project. Partners from Iziko
Museums, the George Washington University,
the US National Parks Service’s Submerged
Resources Centre, the Smithsonian Institute
and the National Association of Black Scuba
Divers, co-operated to locate the site and
make preliminary efforts to identify the wreck,
determine the extent of the site and assess
its condition. The Unit has also proposed a
partnership with the National Association
of Black Scuba Divers (NABS) that will see
South African youths being involved in training
programmes, idea exchanges and Youth
Summits arranged by the association.
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The Unit continued to co-operate with local
partners through discussions and planning. A
regional meeting organised by UNESCO in
Dar es Salaam, Tanzania, brought together
a wide range of heritage managers, marine
agencies and government officials to initiate
proposals for developing a regional voice for
the protection of MUCH.
A proposal for the creation of an underwater
museum on the northern coast of KZN was
prepared and submitted to the Department
of Arts and Culture by the MUCH Unit for
inclusion in the Mzansi’s Golden Economy
programme for heritage. The Unit will continue
to work in partnership with the Department
to conduct feasibility studies and to implement
the project in the coming years.
The discovery of a wreck site during
development works in the Clock Tower
Precinct of the V&A Waterfront in Cape
Town, gave the MUCH Unit a unique
opportunity to collaborate with a broad
range of stakeholders, including museums,
developers, contract archaeologists and the
public. The wreck remains, probably dating to
the late 18th century, consisted of a section of
hull, cannon balls, ballast, a broken cannon and
some smaller artefacts that will be conserved
and studied by Iziko Museums.
Continued looting of shipwreck sites around
Port Elizabeth on the Eastern Cape coast
prompted local law enforcement agencies,
together with divers and other interested
members of the public, to contact the MUCH
Unit to assist in providing knowledge and skills
relating to the National Heritage Resources
Act and associated legislation that could be
used to combat these illegal activities. The
Unit provided training to law enforcement
personnel and is developing a coastal network
for monitoring and policing.

Building capacity and raising awareness
SAHRA, together with the Netherlands-based Centre for International Heritage Activities, has
concluded its Maritime Archaeology Development Programme (MADP). This extensive capacity
building and awareness raising initiative, funded by the Embassy of the Kingdom of the Netherlands,
has exposed a broad cross section of South Africans to MUCH and has cultivated a network of
coastal institutions and individuals with the competence to assist in managing MUCH resources
along South Africa’s extensive coastline. The MADP has resulted in the identification of “legacy
sites” that will allow SAHRA to reflect the full scope of MUCH. These sites include a shipwreck
site, coastal fish weirs, an inland lake and a maritime landscape, encompassing both underwater and
terrestrial maritime sites.

Maritime Archaeology Development Programme: Training
Event
Number of participants
Comments
Natal Sharks Board: NAS*
6 NAS Introduction
Participants from KZN Wildlife,
Introduction, NAS Part I, NAS Part II 6 NAS Part I
University of the Western Cape
3 NAS Part II
2 NAS Tutor training
Castle of Good Hope: NAS
8 NAS Introduction
Old Mutual Sub-Aquatic Club
Introduction, NAS Part I
8 NAS Part I
2 NAS Tutor training
Participants from Robben Island
Robben Island: NAS Introduction,
20 NAS Introduction
Museum, University of Cape
NAS Part I, NAS Part II, NAS Part
20 NAS Part I
Town, University of the
III (In situ Conservation, Survey and
13 NAS II
Western Cape, University of
Mapping)
20 NAS III (Conservation)
Fort Hare, University of South
13 NAS III (Survey and
Africa, University of Leiden
Mapping)
(Netherlands), Swaziland,
4 Tutors (South Africa)
Canada.
4 Tutors (Netherlands)
5 Specialist tutors (Australia,
Netherlands, United Kingdom)
2 Course assessors (Australia,
United Kingdom)
Up to 15 Robben Island
Museum staff attended courses
where work commitments
allowed

*NAS: Nautical Archaeology Society
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Figure 2: A rainbow promises good diving conditions at the Barrel Wreck, Table Bay

The MUCH Unit is concluding its National
Lottery Distribution Trust Fund sponsored
National Survey of Underwater Heritage. This
pilot programme has mapped four wreck sites
that will be included in a prototype online
atlas of underwater heritage which will be
completed in the upcoming financial year.
In conjunction with the Department of Arts
and Culture, SAHRA’s Public Relations coordinated and executed a second MUCH
Youth Programme. The programme, held at
Robben Island, included learners and dignitaries
being invited to dive on the wreck site of the
Clan Stuart, and culminated in a ministerial
event on board the South African navy vessel,
the SAS Mendi, in Simon’s Town. Four learners
from each of the nine provinces, together
with their teachers, were hosted during the
programme. Robben Island Museum educators
provided guidance and activities to enhance
the experience, whilst SAHRA staff presented
the subject in more detail. The programme and
event were attended by the Deputy Minister
of Arts and Culture, Education MECs from
KwaZulu-Natal and the Eastern Cape, Chief
Netshiava from Limpopo, Lake Fundudzi, DAC
staff, SAHRA executives and dignitaries from
the South African Defence Force, the Institute
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for Maritime Technology, the Department of
Environmental Affairs, as well as journalists and
other invited guests. An additional group of
50 learners from local schools in the Western
Cape were invited to the activities taking place
on the day of the event. The SAHRA Library
assisted at the event by presenting books on
MUCH and general heritage topics, as well as
by constructing a short quiz for the learners.

Publications
A booklet entitled How the Sea Shaped Our
Land was printed and distributed to learners at
a Youth MUCH Programme in October 2011.
The publication took the form of a workbook
that gave an overview of South Africa’s
maritime history. The booklet was distributed
to 100 learners.
To ensure continued involvement in MUCH,
the Unit created a Facebook page for learners
entitled SAHRA Underwater Youth Development
Programme – it attracted 30 members.
An awareness raising “manifesto” for the
future development of MUCH in South Africa,
is to be published by the MUCH Unit. The
document, entitled Towards Best Practices in

Maritime and Underwater Cultural Heritage in
South Africa, outlines the history of MUCH in
South Africa, the challenges faced in managing
the resources and making these resources
universally accessible, and a future approach
to MUCH that is both relevant and rigorous.
A draft of this document was presented to
UNESCO in May 2011.

The MUCH Unit is continuing to strive towards
sustainable, relevant and inclusive management
of MUCH. Through policy development, site
identification, capacitation and awareness
raising, the Unit is developing a strategic path
for long-term conservation and protection of
this friable, non-renewable resource.

Stakeholders
The Unit has continued to work closely with
MUCH stakeholders. The latter include the
Centre for International Heritage Activities, the
Department of Environmental Affairs: Oceans
and Coasts, Iziko Museum, KZN Wildlife,
Robben Island Museum, the University of Cape
Town, University of Fort Hare, University of
KZN, University of South Africa, the University
of the Western Cape, and the Wildlife and
Environment Society of South Africa

Conclusion

Figure 3: Engraving detail of the keel of the
Barrel Wreck

Figure 4: Divers record wood density on the keel of the Barrel Wreck
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Figure 5: D. Colin of US National Parks Service’s Submerged Resources Unit, records
features of a wreck

Figure 6: A diver dredges sand from the Portugese slave ship Sao Jose

Figure 7: A cannon on the wreck believed
to be the Portuguese slave ship, Sao Jose

| p90

Figure 8: Sophie Winton trains learners how to
snorkel before they are taken to a wreck site
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The office of Public Relations serves to meet the core mandate as stipulated in the NHRA Act 25
of 1999, namely to profile SAHRA in its core functions in the identification, protection, promotion,
education and awareness of heritage to the public. The awareness of heritage matters within public
and media domain has grown exponentially this past year, although our resources remain limited.
The past year brought on high profiled events and commemoration ceremonies, such as the
Maritime Week 2011 (which was the largest programme for the year), and a time abuzz with the
Youth Development Programme (YDP), which the PR Office project managed with stakeholders,
including the Maritime Underwater Cultural (MUCH) Unit, Robben Island Museum (RIM) and the
Department of Arts and Culture (DAC).

programmes & Projects

Media & PR

It culminated in a weeklong programme of
activities and learning, during which the youth
selected for participation from each province,
resided at the RIM Education Centre as base
camp. On the day of the main event a press
dive was held for the media, delegates and
learners in the False Bay harbour. Here they all
got more than just their feet wet whilst scuba
diving and exploring the local underwater
shipwreck.

Press releases were generated for the above
event commemorations, as well as other
projects, including the recovered shipwreck
found in the construction site at the V & A
Waterfront, and the legal appeal outcome
regarding the ‘Arab Priest’ artwork. There is,
however, an unfortunate decline in news print,
as media houses hold the deciding power for
printing our heritage stories and information.
Nevertheless, we have established relations
with the Archival Platform, a popular online site
that focuses on local South African heritage.

In March we opened the exhibition of ‘Arab
Priest’ at the Iziko Museum in association
with the DAC and South African National
Galleries (SANG). The Qatar Embassy was
our honoured guest, as Qatar, owner of the
most highly valued SA artwork ever sold, was
vital in the negotiations to allow access to the
artwork for the South African public. Whilst
the Voortrekker Monument at Kanonkop,
Pretoria, was declared and gazetted as a
national heritage site in July last year, we
held the commemoration ceremony in
March, officiated by the Minister of Arts and
Culture. Another declared resource treasure is
Kadishewene in North West, most significant
for its cultural and archaeological landscape.
The PR Office also hosted a memorial service
for the passing of the much loved Unit Manager
of the Western Cape Built Environment Unit,
Ms Bev Knipe-Croutes.

As SAHRA hosted the ICOMOS conference in
2011, we held the official closing dinner at the
Grand Restaurant, V & A Waterfront. It was a
small, intimate event for our international and
local guests. PR also assisted the HRM Office
with an official visiting protocol for delegates
from a Chinese municipal district who came
to liaise on heritage matters in international
relations.
Public Relations experienced a major increase
surge in inquiries on various heritage matters
and topics from all spheres, including public,
private, media, education, and government
sectors. In order to stay abreast of the
current trends manifested in Cop17 World
Conference held in SA, we had hoped to
deliver an article on “Heritage Resources in a
Climate of Change”, produced by the HRM.
However, we were not able to make this
or other publication runs due to restrictions
around supply.
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PLAQUES
The PR Officer conducted site visits to
Kaditshwene and other heritage sites in the
Cradle of Humankind area regarding the
planning of the first phase for the installation
of critical site plaques. These plaques will only
be implemented once funds are allocated for
the operation – hopefully by next year. The
granite plaque for Swartkrans is also due
for installation at the Cradle. The Crown
Mines archaeology site in Johannesburg was
earmarked for planning. However, the BGG
Unit is experiencing challenges with the scope
in this project.

BRANDS & COMMUNICATIONS
The following brand and publications
developments have also commenced and
are in the concept and planning stage. The
publication manual from the Maritime and
Underwater Cultural Heritage Unit, Best
Practice, is currently under discussion. The
production of the glossy coffee table book,
Best of Soweto, which features a tribute to
the Women’s Unveiling Ceremony held
previously in Soweto, is in progress. The
SAHRA brochures will also be upgraded and
will include the latest addition to the Heritage
Resources Management Unit pool, namely the
Heritage Protection Unit.
PR published an article in the GCIS magazine
featuring heritage objects and exporting. We
also posted an advert in the centenary editions
of the Argus newspaper. Explore magazine did
a profile foreword article on SAHRA’s CEO.
Various publishers featured SAHRA in updated
educational text books for grades 9 and 10 as
part of the Tourism Curriculum, including Mac
Million and SA Career Guide.
The new SAHRIS project manager/web
developer took over the task of the SAHRA
website due to a lack of capacity within this
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unit, and also because of the better synergy
it would encompass with our forthcoming
SAHRIS database.
Finally, we are excited to embark on the long
overdue brand upgrade as we commence
planning for a communications and corporate
ID framework development in the year ahead.
As PR Office we will curate our brand evolution
and include the newly launched endorsement
branding released by the Department of Arts
and Culture.

CONCLUSION
The biggest threat faced by PR is a lack
of capacity and resources, which may have a
profound impact on delivery and execution.
The PR Office is without sufficient support
to manage various growing sub-divisions
including; Media, Multi-Media, Marketing,
Communications, Events, Project Management,
Branding Development, Stakeholder Manage
ment, etc. The PR Officer is saturated with
volumes of administration work, whilst having
to operate and perform on a strategic level.
With this shortfall there are bound to be
serious challenges until we develop adequate
support and frameworks required.

FORTHCOMING
We look forward to exploring fascinating
heritage in upcoming projects, including:
-

Founding Fathers, courtesy of our
Burial Graves and Grounds Unit
O.R. Tambo Legacy Project, courtesy
of the Built Environment Unit
Lake Fundudzi – a sacred place, 		
courtesy of the Maritime and 		
Underwater Cultural Heritage Unit
Launch of the new SAHRIS, a 		
heritage/database in open 		
source, courtesy of the Inventory
Unit

4.
5.

Looking for the HTML code and photo file link? Check out this FAQ.

About Flickr
Who we are
Take the tour
Flickr blog
Jobs
Community
Community Guidelines
Report abuse
Help
Need help? Start here!
Help forum
FAQs
About Our Ads
Apps and the API
Flickr for mobile
App Garden
API documentation
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South African Heritage Resources Agency
is delighted to invite ICOMOS delegates
to the closing dinner function at the

Grand Beach Café
on Wed 6th July at 19h00.
Set on the lip of a fashioned white beach at Granger Bay adjacent to Cape Town’s V&A
Waterfront. It’s where beach culture meets free-spirited, eclectic, romantic décor of oversize
chandeliers. Join us for chic, bistro-styled cuisine and a toast to the heritage we strive for with
old and new classics combining in a new-world fusion of beach café ambience.

Dress Code:
Smart casual

Time:
19h00 for 19h30

Directions:
Granger Bay is located between the V&A Waterfront and the Granger Apartments,
next to the old boating slip way, turn towards the cost.
We suggest your hotel or guest house arrange a taxi cab for you about 18:40
Please do RSVP with Nicky by latest Monday 4 July.
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LEGAL DISCLOSURE
The South African Heritage Resources Agency (SAHRA) is a statutory body established under the National
Heritage Resources Act No 25 of 1999, as custodians of the National Estate.
SAHRA is a National Public Entity in terms of Schedule 3A of the Public Finance Management Act No 1
of 1999 (PFMA). National Public Entities are regulated by Chapter 6, section 36 of the PFMA.
The mission of SAHRA is to be leaders in protection, promotion, development and management of
Heritage Resources in South Africa.
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Statement of responsibility
1. COMPLIANCE WITH APPROPRIATE LEGISLATION

The Chief Executive of SAHRA is responsible for all information and representations contained
in the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2012 and the related statement of financial
performance, statement of changes in net assets, and cash flow statement for the year ended 31
March 2012.
These financial standards have been prepared in conformity with the South African Standards of
Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP), including any interpretations of such standards
issued by the Accounting Practices Board.
2. BASIS USED TO PREPARE THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In this regard senior management maintains a system of accounting and reporting which provides
for the necessary internal controls to ensure that transactions are properly authorised and recorded,
assets are safeguarded against unauthorised use or disposition, and that liabilities are recognised. The
management likewise discloses to the CEO and Audit Committee and its external auditors:
(i)

Significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls that could adversely
affect its ability to record, process, and report financial data;

(ii)

Material weaknesses in the internal controls; and

(iii)

Any fraud that involves management or other employees who exercise significant roles in
internal controls.

3. MEASUREMENT OF SAHRA’S FINANCIAL POSITION AS A GOING CONCERN (BUSINESS)

SAHRA receives funding from the Department of Arts and Culture on an annual basis to cover the
entity’s operational expenses, and has ongoing projects funded by the National Lottery Board and
DAC.
Forecast funding for 2012/13
Department of Arts and Culture
Rent received
Interest received
Permit fees
Total forecast funds for 2012/13

Chief Executive Officer
31 May 2012
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R’000
41 037
720
600
15
42 372

Confirmation of the Accuracy & COMPLETENESS of the
Annual Financial statements submitted
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2011-12 FINANCIAL YEAR END

I hereby acknowledge that the annual financial statements of the South African Heritage Resources
Agency have been submitted to the Auditor-General for auditing in terms of Section 55(1)(c) of
the PFMA.
I acknowledge my responsibility for the accuracy of the accounting records and the fair presentation
of the financial statements and confirm, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the following:
•

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of
Generally Recognised Accounting Practice as prescribed by the Accounting Standards
Board and the PFMA and relevant guidelines.

•

The financial statements are complete and accurate.

•

All amounts appearing on the financial statements have been cast and cross-cast, and
accurately cross-referenced.

•

The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions.

Yours faithfully

Chief Financial Officer
31 May 2012
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Report of the Audit Committee
south african heritage resources agency
We are pleased to present the Audit Committee Report for the South African Heritage Resources
Agency for the financial year ended 31 March 2012.
Audit Committee Members and Attendance

The Audit Committee was not properly constituted during the year.
For the period from December 2010 to 30 March 2012, the Committee consisted of one member
of Council (Ms L. Robinson) and one independent person (Ms P. M. K. Mvulane). This committee
met twice, on 30 May and on 4 August 2011, to consider the 2011 annual financial statements and
to allocate responsibilities for matters arising from the 2011 external audit. There was no further
meeting or follow up.
A new Audit Committee, appointed on 17 January 2012, assumed office on 30 March 2012, some
10 weeks later. All members have the required expertise and experience in business and financial
matters. 3 Audit Committee meetings have been held, on 30 March, 14 May and 19 July 2012,
while a special meeting was held with the Auditor-General on 26 June 2012.
Name of Member				
Meetings Attended
							
Audit
Auditor							 Committee General
Independent members
Ms P. M. K. Mvulane (chairperson – resigned 30 June 2012)
2
1
Adv D. J. Mitchell (appointed as chairperson – 28 July 2012)
3
1
Ms T. Sihlaba							
2
Mr M. Dukandar (appointed 20 June 2012) 			
1
1
Non-executive members of SAHRA’s Council
Mr D. Nkaiseng							
Ms L. Robinson							

2
3

-

Audit Committee Responsibility

As the Audit Committee was not properly constituted during the financial year, it was not in a position to comply with its responsibilities as arise from sections 51(1)(a)(ii) and 76(4)(d) of the Public
Finance Management Act and Treasury Regulation 27.
Audit Committee Charter

The Audit Committee charter used in previous years was withdrawn as it did not delineate clearly
the membership, role and responsibilities of the Audit Committee. A revised and updated charter
was adopted by the committee on 14 May 2012 and approved by Council as the accounting
authority on 26 May 2012.
Internal audit

An outsourced internal audit service provider was appointed in April 2011, contrary to Council’s
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instructions and without regard to proper supply chain management prescripts. Such internal audit
work as was performed was not derived from an approved risk-based internal audit plan and was
not conducted under the control and direction of a properly constituted audit committee.
This is an area that warrants the committee’s urgent attention.
Effectiveness of Internal Control

The Auditor-General’s review of the annual financial statements and management letter have confirmed that the entity did not maintain an effective system of internal control during the year. This
finding (which is consistent with various internal audit reports) applies particularly in the areas of human resources management, fixed assets, procurement and supply chain management, and controls
over the preventing and reporting of unauthorised, irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure.
What is of particular concern to Audit Committee is that concerns raised by its predecessors and
previously recommended to management for action have not led to the elimination of ineffective
internal control practices nor to an improvement in basic bookkeeping and control routines and
disciplines. It is clear that a sense of responsibility and accountability in matters relating to controls,
risk management and compliance is lacking in key positions within the organisation.
On review of the Auditor-General’s reports and after frank and open discussions with the AuditorGeneral, the Committee concurs with the audit conclusion that internal controls were ineffective
and unreliable, that assets were not safeguarded, that liabilities and working capital were not properly managed, and that the entity did not fulfil its responsibility to comply with relevant statutory and
governance duties and prescripts.
Accounting records

It is clear from the Auditor-General’s review that proper accounting records were not maintained,
especially (for example) in that:
• c losing transactions made as at 31 March 2011 for the previous financial year-end were not
recorded in the entity’s general ledger and books of account
• n o explanation was available for journal entries totalling R10 267 551, in respect of adjustments
to fixed asset control accounts
• the entity’s fixed asset register does not provide anything near a proper or tolerable record of
the entity’s property, plant and equipment
• the calculation of leave pay owing to employees for leave due but not yet taken could not be
substantiated
These shortcomings have seriously undermined the integrity and credibility of the entity’s financial
records.
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Supply chain management practices and procedures

The entity’s supply chain management practices and procedures do not conform to National Treasury prescripts. It is clear from the Auditor-General’s review that such practices and procedures as
are in place are insufficient either to identify or to prevent inappropriate, unauthorised and irregular
expenditure. In many instances, expenditure was incurred by officials in the full knowledge that it
was irregular.
Steps were not taken to deal with the approval or condonation of irregular expenditure identified
in the course of the previous year’s audit, neither was action taken to pursue the recovery of any
such funds.
Performance management

The entity has not prepared adequately for measuring, recording and managing its performance in
the manner envisaged by National Treasury. A greater degree of coordination and leadership is
needed in defining indicators and targets relevant to selected strategic objectives and then developing appropriate systems and processes that will allow valid performance information to be generated in a reliable and verifiable manner.
Regression of audit result

The external audit reflects a regression in the quality of the entity’s financial administration and
managerial oversight:
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2004

qualified audit opinion with emphasis of matter

2005

qualified audit opinion with emphasis of matter

2006

unqualified audit opinion with emphasis of matter

2007

unqualified audit opinion

2008

unqualified audit opinion

2009

qualified audit opinion with significant emphasis of matter

2010

unqualified audit opinion with other findings on internal controls and performance 		
management information

2011

qualified audit opinion with significant other findings, covering especially the areas 		
of the completeness and integrity of accounting records, procurement and contract
management processes, controls to prevent irregular and fruitless and wasteful 		
expenditure, and inadequacies in leadership oversight and governance

2012

disclaimer of audit opinion revealing serious shortcomings in almost every area of 		
assessment

Assessment of the external audit

The Auditor-General’s diligence and thoroughness in conducting the audit review is apparent
from the many and well-researched audit findings communicated to management. A total of 114
COMAFS were issued of which more than 99 remained uncleared and indicative of inherent errors
and shortcomings.
The basis for the Auditor-General’s disclaimer includes the following:
• unsubstantiated journal entries regarding fixed assets (in excess of R10 million)
• non-disclosure of irregular expenditure
• no evidence to support the leave pay provision (which indicates inadequate control of leave
taken and leave accrued)
• inadequate control on the recording and follow up of trade receivables, which includes staff
debtors
• insufficient information regarding fruitless and wasteful expenditure
• inadequate evidence to support the existence or valuation of fixed assets (especially plant and
equipment)
• project equipment not properly controlled and in some instances, written off without authorisation
• incorrect accounting treatment for operating leases
• incorrect handling of conditional grant revenue and related expenses
• explanations not given for variances against budget
• supply chain management processes not in accordance with National Treasury prescripts
(significant deficiencies as regards the obtaining of competitive bids, the calling for tenders and in
bid adjudication)
• disciplinary steps not taken against officials who incurred or permitted irregular and fruitless and
wasteful expenditure
• effective steps not taken to collect all revenue due to the entity
• movable assets not disposed of in the prescribed manner (i.e. the interests of the State were not
protected)
What is particularly disturbing is that the entity has displayed a reluctance or inability to respond
to shortcomings highlighted by the Auditor-General in previous years and during the AG’s regular
quarterly visits. Changes and improvements that were recommended and discussed with senior
management were not implemented. Several of the explanations given by management in response
to the Auditor-General’s communicated audit findings for the 2012 year are unconvincing as they
demonstrate an underlying reluctance to recognise or deal with the identified shortcomings.
Human resource management

The entity proceeded with retrenchments despite receiving an instruction from Portfolio Committee
that retrenchments should be avoided. This included the payment of R 1 014 729 in retrenchment
and severance pay benefits, an amount which has been included in the R 22 945 000 shown for
basic salaries and wages as disclosed in note 6 to the Income Statement. A better accounting treatment would have distinguished these payments from normal and ongoing employee emoluments.
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We are concerned that at least one resignation following an unresolved disciplinary dispute was
described internally as a redundancy and retrenchment, which was not the case and which led to
false information being supplied to the South African Revenue Service.
Review controls over the payroll system were not properly performed and shortcomings highlighted by internal audit were not attended to.
Financial misconduct

Following the Auditor-General’s findings, Council has requested a forensic enquiry to establish
whether further steps are warranted on the grounds of financial misconduct.
Corporate governance

The entity does not operate to the standard of transparency and good corporate governance that
befits the stature and role of a regulatory authority.
There is a lack of cohesion between Council and senior management and amongst senior management which seriously hampers the entity’s ability to fulfil its mandate.
Evaluation of Financial Statements

The Audit Committee has:
• r eviewed and discussed the audited annual financial statements to be included in the annual
report with the Auditor-General, with management and with Council as the accounting authority
• r eviewed the Auditor-General’s management report and management’s response and has
discussed these findings and observations with the Auditor-General
• r eviewed the accounting policies and practices adopted by Council, in accordance with Standards
of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (Standards of GRAP)
• n oted and agreed with the Auditor-General those instances where the accounting treatment of
certain transactions and journalised adjustments could not be substantiated, both through the
absence of underlying evidence and the lack of oversight and supervision.
The Committee concurs with and supports the Auditor-General’s conclusion of a disclaimer on the
annual financial statements, and is of the view that the audited annual financial statements can be
accepted and read together with the Auditor-General’s report.

Adv. D. J. Mitchell, C.A. (S.A.)
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
Date:
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22 August 2012

Performance report
Vision and Mission
Vision

To provide leadership in the management of heritage resources through identification, conservation, protection and awareness of South Africa’s diverse heritage resources for all South Africans.
Mission

To foster, facilitate and promote a holistic philosophy and congruent management systems for our
heritage resources and associated assets, for present and future generations, and sustain public
awareness of their value.
Functions and legislative mandate

The following functions are recorded here to illustrate the linkages between the strategy and
mandate of the Agency. The functions are to: 1.

Establish national principles, standards and policy for the identification, recording and
management of the national estate;

2.

Co-ordinate the management of the heritage national estate by all agencies of the State and
other bodies and monitor their activities to ensure that they comply with national principles,
standards and policy for heritage resources management;

3.

Identify, record and manage nationally significant heritage resources and keep permanent
records of such work;

4.

Promote education and training in fields related to the management of the national estate;

5.

Advise, assist and provide professional expertise to any authority responsible for the
management of the national estate at provincial or local level and assist any other body
concerned with heritage resources management;

6.

Promote and encourage public understanding and enjoyment of the national estate and
public interest and involvement in the identification, assessment, recording and management
of the heritage resource management;

7.

Perform all functions without compromising any of the clauses stipulated in the SAHRA Act
and other related Acts that promote the strategic objectives of SAHRA.

The above functions will be executed in a manner that ensures:
1.

The appropriate protection over heritage resources;

2.

That effective management models of heritage resources are used;

3.

That such models can be adapted to change through developing a creative, flexible
organization that continuously learns and improves;

4.

To redress past imbalances in a holistic manner that does not compromise the rights of all
that are enshrined in the constitution;

5.

That highlights and promotes unity and diversity and contributes to the meaningful
development of women, people with disabilities and the youth;
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6.

The development of co-operation with government ministries and other stakeholders;

7.

The appropriate means for the co-ordination, monitoring and identification of South Africa’s
national heritage resources within its borders and beyond;

8.

Facilitates the setting of norms and standards through policy and protocols for best practice
in heritage management;

9.

Encourages co-operative conservation of the national estate;

10.

The capacitating and empowerment of PHRAs and Local Authorities to execute the
prescribed heritage management duties in line with the NHR Act;

11.

Heritage resources are interpreted in ways that celebrate the lives and the meaningful
contributions of all South Africans;

12.

The development of integrated socio-economic programmes that take cognisance of
national imperatives and challenges facing the country;

13.

That Indigenous Knowledge systems research through the involvement of traditional
leaders, national treasures facilitate the redefinition, conservation and management of
heritage resources in sustainable ways; and

14.

That SAHRA continues to play a critical role in the constant re-defining of appropriate
models for the management of Heritage resources by exhibiting international best practice
without losing sight of the South African context and the objectives for which it was set up
for.

stRategic Objectives
Sahra’s overall strategic objectives

1.
2.
3.
4.
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Deliver Heritage Conservation and Management as legislated (NHRA no. 25 of 1999)
with a specific focus on formal protection
Maximize the performance and effectiveness of SAHRA management and employees
Implement good corporate governance
Enhance management of heritage resources through capacity building to deliver on our
mandate

The institution will pursue the achievement of the following key objectives:

Human ReTo maximize income sources
from professional services
rendered by
SAHRA to
the public

Develop and
implement a
pricing model
for services

Implemented
pricing model

% of due
rentals received

Service delivery target or
milestones

REASONS
FOR VARIANCE

Increased rental
income as per
targets

Service delivery indicator

Output and
Outcome

Develop and Implemented
Implement a
process and
Rental Income system
Collection
Process and
supporting
system (to
enable active
management
and collection
of outstanding and due
rentals)

ACTUAL
TARGETS
MET

To maximize R50 000
rental income
from SAHRAowned properties

Strategy

Input

Key objective

Income
Other Revenue

Development
of System by
June 2011.

A rental
collection
procedure was
developed.
And approved
by the CEO.
Changes to
AccPac to
support debt
collection
were also affected.

Draft Policy
awaiting
from Audit
Committee
and then
Council

50% of rentals
due received
by March
2012.

93.51% of
rentals were
collected for
the period
2011 / 2012.

No variance

A draft policy
which includes
a pricing
model was
developed and
still needs to
be finalized.

Policy to be
approved in
the 201213 Financial
year

Approved
Approved
pricing model pricing model
by Council
by March 2012
Rand
amount from
rendered
professional
services
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R50 000
Develop a
Human Re- medium to
sources
long-term
Investment
Strategy

Developed Investment Policy
to maximize
revenue.

Targets not
met

Capacity
constraints

Fundraising policy
approved by
Council

Fundraising
Policy
approved by
Council by
June 2012

submitted
Number of
funding applications to
third parties

No variance
Four proposals 1. Funding
Proposal on
Kosi Bay - Approved
2. Funding
Proposal on
Edward Island
Gr - Declined
3. Funding
proposal Richtersveld Park
- Declined
4. Digitisation
funding
application Declined
5. Regional
Cooperation Declined

Investment
Policy informs
investment
Strategy

Investment
Policy approved by
Council by
June 2012

Investment mar- % Increase
ket scanned to
in interest
obtain highest
received
interest rates
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Service delivery target or
milestones

Service delivery indicator

Output and
Outcome
Fundraising
Policy and Plan
developed and
approved

REASONS
FOR VARIANCE

Develop a
Fundraising
Policy and
implement a
medium to
long-term
Investment
Strategy

ACTUAL
TARGETS
MET

R50 000
& Human
Resources

Strategy

Input

Key objective
Develop and
implement
a diversified
Funding and
Investment
Strategy

Terms of reference were
developed to
be circulated.

2% increase of Target not
the existing in- met
terest received
by annually

Capacity
Constraints

Capacity
constraints

The institution will pursue the achievement of the following key objectives:
Expenditure

Finalized
negotiations
with SAHRA
staff concerned

4 provinces by
March 2012

REASONS
FOR VARIANCE

All functions,
liabilities, responsibilities,
and assets
have been
devolved to
all provinces

ACTUAL
TARGET
MET

Minutes from
meetings
Agreements
between
SAHRA and
provinces

Service delivery target or
milestones

Devolve all
functions,
liabilities, responsibilities,
and assets to
all provinces

Service delivery indicator

Output and
Outcome

To maximize R50 000
the performance and
effectiveness
of SAHRA
management
and employees by:
Defining and
implementing
an effective
organisational
culture and
structure,
including
devolving
appropriate
functions to
the provinces;

Strategy

Input

Key objective

a) Organizational Development

2 PHRA’s
have been
assessed
and found
competent
(Eastern Cape
and Western
Cape) and
approved by
Council
2 PHRA’s
assessed
(Northern
Cape & KZN)
and awaiting
council approval

Staff has been
transferred
to 3 provinces, Northern Cape;
Gauteng &
Limpopo is in
the process of
finalization.
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R290 000
R310 000
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Define and
implement
SAHRA’s
management
philosophy
and culture

Leadership and
workforce
aligned to and
working from
a commonly
understood
set of principles and
operating
models that
delivers to
strategy.

Philosophy
and values
understood
and shared

2 team alignment session
completed
annually by
October 2011

REASONS
FOR VARIANCE

ACTUAL
TARGET
MET

Service delivery target or
milestones

Service delivery indicator

Output and
Outcome

Strategy

Input

Key objective

Defining,
R260 000
implementing
and communicating
SAHRA’s
management model
(inclusive of
philosophy,
culture,
values, leadership and
management
style, and
organisational
structure);

1 team
alignment
completed
during
March.

The consultation
and Processes
associated with
S189, restructuring took up
The HR unit”s
capacity for
Approx 18
months.
The Executive
made a decision
that only 1 team
alignment
Should be
conducted and
Preferably after
the conclusion
of the S189
process as the
environment
would not have
been conducive
to having it during the process.
A S189
file is available as
well as minutes
of the executive
Decision.

Leadership
behaviour
feedback
report

Feedback
report available

No variance

Feedback
report from
the system

Feedback
report available

No variance

REASONS
FOR VARIANCE

ACTUAL
TARGET
MET

Service delivery target or
milestones

Service delivery indicator

Output and
Outcome

Strategy

Input

Key objective
Implementing a Performance
Management
System;

R400 000
R100 000
R300 000

Define
Organisationorganisational al structure
structure
aligned
to deliver
to SAHRA’s
strategic
intent

Approved
organisation
structure in
place

Phase 1: HRM
approved structure implemented March 2012

Council
Approved
organizational structure
in place.
BGG staff
component
complete.
3 appointments in the
APM Unit
concluded.
Further
appointments will
be effected
in the 201213 Financial
year

The LRA ,
as per S189,
prescribes that
posts cannot be
filled externally
without accommodating
internal staff
impacted by
the restructuring. SAHRA
therefore
only filled posts
where the competencies were
not the same
as the impacted
staff and for
critical vacancies. An advert
was placed
An advert was
placed in the
Sunday Times at
the conclusion
of the process.

Human
Resources

Develop and
implement
a Performance
Management
System

Competent
and committed people
who have the
motivation
to perform
and deliver
to SAHRA’s
strategic
intent

All process
steps within
the performance
management
systems implemented.

Performance
and development contracts
in place for the
Executive and
direct reports by
June 2011, 2012,
2013.

HR 2 out of
2 completed,
CA 3 out of
3 completed,
Finance 2
out of 2
completed,
HRM 0 out
of 4 and
CEO 4 out
of 8 completed.

Into some process dependent
on the starting
date. Activities
and workload
on occasion
takes completion beyond the
deadline dates

Culture of
delivery

Quality of
KPA’s and
discussions
Parity
achieved
Leadership
behaviour
feedback
report

Half year
reviews completed for the
target group
by November
2011,2012,2013
Full year reviews
completed for
the target group
by May 2011,
2012, 2013

HR 3 out of
3, CA 3 out
of 3, Finance
2 out of 2,
HRM 0 out
of 4, CEO 0
out of 7

Into some process dependent
on the starting
date.
Activities and
workload on
occasion takes
completion
beyond the
deadline dates
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R50 000

Implementing R250 000
a revised Remuneration
and benefits
strategy and
policy

Implement
revised
disciplinary
procedures

Human
Resources

ImplementR50 000
ing a Skills
Development
Program.

REASONS
FOR VARIANCE

ACTUAL
TARGET
MET

Revise
SAHRA’s
Recruitment
and Retention Policy

Right people
in the right
place at the
right time
Competent
workforce
Capability of
people
Fair and
transparent
appointment
process

A revised
Recruitment
& Retention
policy

Approved by
A draft
Council in No- policy comvember 2012
pleted by
HR further
input is still
required
from
stakeholder
groups.

Review and
implement a
Remuneration and benefits strategy
and policy

A competitive and
transparent
remuneration
and benefits
system understood by all
staff

A revised Remunerations
and benefits
strategy and
policy.

Approved by
council in November 2012.

Sourcing ser- No variance
vice providers for the
database.

Review and
implement
disciplinary
procedures

Workforce
understanding the
framework of
consequence
management.

Revised
disciplinary
procedures
and policies

Implementation by May
2011.

Develop and
implement
the training &
development
strategy

Appropriate
and relevant
skilled and
competent
workforce
at functional,
management
and leadership levels

Strategy
document &
policy implemented.

March 2012

Completed,
approved
by council,
trained and
implemented
except for
the Satellite
staff and the
provincial
staff that
relocated to
the Satellite
office and
head office.
Draft policy
in progress

Workforce
skills plan
implemented
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Service delivery target or
milestones

Service delivery indicator

Output and
Outcome

Strategy

Input

Key objective
Implementing revised
Recruitment
and Retention strategy

Skills plan
available

No Variance

The expectation
was that staff
Impacted by
S189 would
Mainly move
into the Satellite
office and it
Would be best
to do
It then

Capacity
problems as the
team was busy
with S189

Line managers
are responsible
for ensuring
that the training
identified in the
development
plans is implemented

REASONS
FOR VARIANCE

R2 million (DAC
funding)
R1 million (DAC
funding)
R100 000

Develop a
Heritage
Resources
Information
System (SAHRIS)

Integrated
Heritage
Information
System in
place

Developed
and implemented
System

Phase 2 completed by July
2011
Phase 3
completed by
Sept. 2011
Phase 4 completed by Dec.
2011

The Drupal
Content
Management System
was set-up
and the first
demo of
version 1 of
the SAHRIS
completed.

To develop
and maintain
an electronic
heritage
resources
information system
(National
Inventory)

Human
Resources
& Data

Systematically populate
data fields
of existing
Gazetted Sites
in National
Inventory

Effective
information
system for
heritage
users

% of selected
data fields
populated

50% of
selected fields
for National
Heritage Sites
populated by
June 2011

69% Completed.

UWC contract
terminated in
November 2011
for non-delivery of
SAHRIS.
Project Manager appointed to
work on SAHRIS
in-house from
November 2011.
New Project Plan
drawn up for 3
year development
2011-2014.
No variance

50% of
selected fields
for SAHRA
Properties
populated by
September
2011
100% of
ownership
field populated
for all Gazetted Sites by
March 2012

55% Completed

No variance

4.4% of
ownership
fields were
populated for
all Gazetted
Sites.

Considering the
significantly large
number of the
entries to be populated, it required
a lot

Strategy

Enable efficient and
effective
SAHRA management and
operations

Input

ACTUAL
TARGETS
MET

Service delivery target or
milestones

Service delivery indicator

Output and
Outcome

Key objective

b) Support Functions
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Launch audit
projects to
ensure the
growth of
the National
Inventory

Number of
Projects com- Two Audit
pleted
Projects
completed by
March 2012

REASONS
FOR VARIANCE

ACTUAL
TARGETS
MET

Service delivery target or
milestones

Service delivery indicator

Output and
Outcome

Strategy

Input

Key objective

R2million
(DAC
funding)
R1,5million
(DAC
funding)
R1,5million
(DAC
funding)

more time to
source and capture
the data. This data
was also largely obtained in conjunction with the spatial
data (coordinates),
because of the
significance of the
locational data in
informing heritage
resources management.
The delays
experienced in
preparation for the
actual inventorying
necessitated that
the Genadendal
project over runs
three month into
the following financial year.
The Audit of The Walter Sisulu
the Library
University (WSU)
Anthropolproject started late
ogy Colas a result of the
lection of
discontinuation of
Walter Sisulu the Post Office
University
Museum project,
commenced therefore inventoin Feb.
rying of the out2012. 1 035 standing objects at
objects were WSU will continue
captured
beyond the current
electronically financial year.
and 720 objects photographed.
The audit of the
Genadendal
Museum
Collection
is continuing with
2568 objects
captured
electronically
and 5814
photographs
taken. All
captured
objects
are photographed.

R495 000 Development
(DAC
and Implefunding)
mentation of
new File Plan
and Registry
Procedural
Manual
Digitization
of SAHRA
files related
to heritage
resources
management

Improved
Implementaconservation tion of New
and retrieval File Plan
of information related
to the management
of heritage
resources
and the administration
of SAHRA

Policy,
Strategy and
Costing for
Digitization
% of selected files
digitized

To ensure
that the
SAHRA
Library fulfills
its legislative
mandate as
a specialized heritage
library

R300 000 Conduct a
R100 000 Review of the
R150 000 functioning of
the SAHRA
Library and
Library Policy
Development
of Library
Management
Framework
and Strategy
to increase
key literary
resources and
promotion of
the Library

Increased
key literary sources
relating to
heritage
resources
management
Increased
access to
the library

Implementation of
Management
Framework
and Library
Strategy
Increased usage of literary
resources
in Library
by Heritage
Sector

Completion of
File Plan and
approval by
NARS by June
2011
Implementation of New
File Plan by
Dec. 2011

The new
File Plan was
approved by
the National
Archivist.
The approved
File Plan
was work
shopped
with SAHRA
Staff on 5
and 6 March
2012. To be
implemented
early in next
financial year.

Investigation
and Planning
completed by
December
2011
Sourcing of
Funding by
March 2012

The registry
procedure
manual is
completed.

Appointment
of service
provider to
review library
functionality
and policy by
August 2011
Library review
and development of
strategy &
management
plan by March
2012

REASONS
FOR VARIANCE

ACTUAL
TARGETS
MET

Service delivery target or
milestones

Service delivery indicator

Output and
Outcome

Strategy

Input

Key objective
To develop
and maintain
an effective archival
system of
documentation

Investigation
and planning
completed.
Application
for funding
submitted to
DAC.
TOR developed and
issued to potential service
providers.

The delays in the
finalization of the
File Plan design
were due to the
fact that the increase in SAHRA
functions caused
consultations with
staff to take longer
than initially anticipated.
Another delay was
of external nature
as the File Plan was
sent back by the
National Archivist
on three occasions
for amendments
thereto prior to
approval
No variance

No variance
No variance

With the initial
invite for proposals
from service providers, no response
was received.
Procurement
documents were
consequently reissued, after which
only one response
was received. The
anticipated timeframes indicated
that the project
would spill over to
the new financial
year and no funds
were approved
in this regard for
2012/2013.
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Alignment
of ICT with
strategic
objectives
and business
processes of
SAHRA
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Enhancement of
healthy
working environment

Fully upUpgrade of
graded Aircon Aircon System
System
completed by
September
2011

Tender
awarded to
KRB Projects
and contract signed.
Equipment
ordered.

R100 000 Investigate
off-site IT
continuity
server and arrangements

Business
continuity
in event of
different
disaster
scenarios

Report and
budget for IT
Continuity

Appointment
of service
provider by
July 2011
Report and
budget by
September
2011

Investigation
was done
internally in
consultation
with Lateral
Dynamics of
different IT
contingency
solutions
and report
developed.

R50 000

Revision of
Health and
Safety Policy

Compliance
with requirements
of Occupational Health
and Safety
Act

Implementation of Health
and Safety
Policy

An audit was
conducted
on Health
and safety
requirements
at head office.

R65 000
R50 000
R60 000

Implementation of outcomes of IT
Governance
Project

Enhancement of organizational
performance
by effective use of
appropriate
IT infrastructure and
software
solutions

Implementation of IT
Governance
Framework,
Strategy and
Operating
System

Development of Draft
Health and
Safety Policy
by September
2011
Adoption of
new Health
and Safety
Policy by
March 2012
Work
shopping IT
Governance
Framework,
Strategy and
Operating
System by
June 2011

ACTUAL
TARGETS
MET

Upgrading of
Aircon System
at SAHRA
Head Office
(Phase 2)

REASONS
FOR VARIANCE

Service delivery target or
milestones

Service delivery indicator

Output and
Outcome

Input
R600 000
(Capital
Works
Funding)

Strategy

Key objective
Ensure
healthy and
safe working
environment

The delay experienced was caused
in that when initially
sourcing service
providers, the
cost exceeded the
tender threshold of
R500 000,00.
SAHRA therefore
had to implement
the tender process
to ensure compliance with procurement procedures
and this increased
the delivery period
of the project.
Capacity constraints

Due to the pressure of other
projects within the
Unit, this project
did not advance
further than the
audit conducted.

IT Policy
No Variance
(General),
IT Security Policy,
IT Security
Procedure
and IT Employee Code
of Conduct were
approved
and work
shopped with
SAHRA staff
on 5 and 6
March 2012.

Development
and implementation of
IT operational
processes

R200 000

Cost-effective management and
utilization
of SAHRA’s
properties

R10
million
(Capital
works
funding)
R22 million (proposed
funding)
R50 000

To enhance
R65 000
governance,
risk and
financial management

Development
and implementation of
two additional
IT operating
processes by
March 2012

No progress

Implementation of new
Financial
Reporting and
Performance
Management
Systems

Development/
Sourcing
of Financial
Reporting and
Performance
Management
Systems by
December
2011

Number of
properties
rehabilitated

Old Goal,
Grahamstown
rehabilitated
by March
2012

The upgraded AccPac
system for
Finance was
installed and
the staff sent
for training.
The contract
position of
programmer
was advertised for the
development of the
Performance
Management
System.
Terms of
Reference
for a heritage
architect was
developed
and made
available to
architectural
firms. No
appointment
made as yet.

Rehabilitation
of properties

Increase
of socioeconomic
benefits derived from
SAHRA
properties
and enhancement
of their heritage value

Development
of Property
Policy

Increased
Approved
efficiency in Property
management Policy
of SAHRA’s
properties

Development
of Property
Policy by September 2011

Create
awareness of
the budgeting process
amongst staff

Improved
understanding of
budgeting

Budget
workshop
conducted by
December
2011

A budget
workshop
conducted

New Property Policy
was not
developed.
However,
Heritage
Management
Principles
and Policy
has been
developed by
Aurecon for
SAHRA’s
Properties
No progress.

REASONS
FOR VARIANCE

ACTUAL
TARGETS
MET

Service delivery target or
milestones

Service delivery indicator

Output and
Outcome

Strategy

Input

Key objective

R80 000

Implementation
of CobiT operational framework
not possible until
an IT Manager is
appointed to take
responsibility for
the implementation
of IT Governance
within SAHRA.
Delay in contracting PHP developer
due to candidate
suitability issues.
Readvertisement
of position commenced.

Public Works
assisted with the
re-drafting of TOR,
and this must be
re-advertised. They
were consulted
because of the
complex nature of
service required.

Due to the imminent transfer of
SAHRA’s properties to PHRAs, a
Property Policy is
no longer needed.

No Variance
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Increase in
funds available for core
business
Compliance
management plan
on financial
legislation,
policies and
procedures
implemented
Improved
organizational
compliance
on financial
legislation
on policies
and procedures
R100 000 Develop addi- Improved
tional financial organipolicies
zational
compliance
on financial
legislation
on policies
and procedures

An approved
financial
reporting
framework by
September
2011
An approved
financial
reporting
framework
by December
2011
10% reduction
in costs per
operation by
2012
An approved
compliance
plan by July
2012

The financial
reporting system will be
provided by
the upgraded
AccPac
system.

Upgrade was completed in March
2012. The reporting module will be
procured in 2012
in order to generate management
reports.

No progress.

No Variance

No progress.

Capacity challenges

2 policies
revised by
March 2012

Supply Chain
Management, Petty
Cash and
S&T policies
developed.

No variance

Performance
Information
policy & Risk
framework
policy approved.

No variance

% reduction
in cost per
operation
An approved
compliance
plan

Number
of financial
policies and
procedures
reviewed and
updated

Number
1 policy
of financial
developed by
policies devel- March 2012
oped

REASONS
FOR VARIANCE

Financial
reporting
system that
will support
managerial
decision making developed
and implemented

ACTUAL
TARGETS
MET

Service delivery target or
milestones

To ensure
adherence
to other
financial
regulatory
frameworks

Human
ImplementaResources tion of a cost
reduction
strategy
Develop a
Human
Resources compliance
R50 000 and impleR60 000 mentation
R80 000 plan
R50 000

Adherence
to PFMA on
reporting
such as annual reports
and annual financial
statements

Service delivery indicator

To reduce
operational
costs

Output and
Outcome

Strategy

Input

Key objective

Human
Develop fiResources nancial reporting framework
and system

Human
Develop strategic
Resources partnerships with
organizations
which can
contribute to
SAHRA’s mission
and objectives

Strategic
partnership
agreements in
place

Signed
3
partnership agreements
agreements by March
2012

To promote the
organizational
profile and core
business

R82 500

Develop a
SAHRA’s booklet
with all HRM
units information
combined

Organizational
profile and
core business
promoted

A SAHRA
booklet
with all
HRM units
combined

R80 000

Developing and
launching of
SAHRA’s new
logo

New branding
for the
organization

New
SAHRA
logo

To raise
R90 000
awareness
through
commemorations
and celebrations
of the country’s
history

Conduct
Awareness
Number
events for
raised through of events
commemorations events
conducted
and celebrations
of the country’s
history

A
completed
and
ready to
distribute
SAHRA’s
booklet
by end of
November
2011
Approved
and
launched
new logo
(branding)
by March
2012
3 events
conducted
by March
2012

REASONS FOR
VARIANCE

To facilitate
cooperation and
collaboration
from key
stakeholders

ACTUAL
TARGETS MET

Service delivery
target or
milestones

Service delivery
indicator

Output

Strategy

Input

Key objective

c) Public Participation (Stakeholder management)

Draft
MOU with
CATHTSETA
developed.
MOU with
Heritage
Foundation
signed and
MOU with
Iziko on Arab
Priest signed.
Booklet on
maritime and
underwater
cultural
heritage
developed.

No variance

No progress

Capacity
constraints

Arab Priest,
Voortrekker
Monument,
Underwater
cultural
Heritage in
Simonstown.

No variance
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Restructuring
process of
the Unit
was finalized
too late to
develop the
content on
the entire
booklet.

| p127

d)

Heritage Resources Management
The units under Heritage resources management are as follows:

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.

Archaeology, Paleontology and Meteorites Unit
Maritime and Underwater Cultural Heritage Unit
Burial Grounds and Graves Unit
Heritage Objects Unit
Built Environment Unit
Grading and declaration
Research & Policy Development (New)
Heritage Inspectorate (New)

HRM Strategic objectives
Conservations
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Improved management and conservation of heritage resources
To develop and maintain an effective system of conserving movable heritage
To ensure archaeological and paleontological resources and meteorites are conserve
and effectively managed
To ensure a holistic and integrated conservation management of built environment and
cultural landscapes
To manage and conserve graves and burial grounds of victims of conflict in the liberation
struggle

Promotions
1.
2.
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To build capacity in the heritage resources management sector
Increase awareness of Underwater heritage

Providing input Costed
in the costing of NHRA
the NHRA by
DAC

To build
capacity in
the heritage
resources
management
sector

R400 000 Establish
a Training,
Research and
Education Unit

Established
and functional Training,
Education
and Research Unit
in Grahamstown

4 Policies by
March 2012

No progress

Report detailing input
provided to
DAC

March 2012

Number of
training programmes
developed and
resources
trained

4 Training
programmes
developed
and implemented for
Heritage
practitioners
by March
2012

Input was
No variance
provided to
the development of
TOR and
the sourcing
of service
providers
on 11 April
2011.
3 core
No variance
modules
and 3
electives
concluded.
The themes
of the modules were
informed
by research
processes.
(6 areas).

List of
Research
priorities
Number
of gaps in
curriculum
analysed

Research
Learning
priorities
areas anaidentified
lysed.
and promoted for
2 areas in
the Heritage field by
March 2012
2 learning areas analysed

REASONS
FOR VARIANCE

No of policies, procedures and
standards
reviewed
and developed.

ACTUAL
TARGET
MET

Service delivery target or
milestones

Approved
policies by
Council

Service delivery indicator

R100 000 Review, develR200 000 op and impleR250 000 ment policies,
procedures
and standards
for Heritage
Resources
Management

Output

Strategy

Input

Key objective
Improved
management and
conservation
of heritage
resources

Capacity
constraints a
research and
policy Unit
has been
approved in
the SAHRA
organogram

No variance

SOUTH AFRICAN HERITAGE RESOURCES AGENCY ANNUAL REPORT

| p129

R93 000
R120 000
R150 000
R16 000
R24 000
R30 000

Development
and maintain
critical stakeholder partnerships and
networks

Improved
conservation
and protection of heritage objects
and retain
them in the
country

To ensure a
holistic and
integrated
conservation
management
of built
environment
and cultural
landscapes
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Implementation
of management systems,
procedures and
standards to
strengthen the
protection of
relevant heritage resources

R100 000 Review curR200 000 rent approach
and practices
to facilitate
an inclusive
approach that
is representative of cultural
diversity.
Upgrade and
improve conservation
policies and
procedures

REASONS
FOR VARIANCE

ACTUAL
TARGET
MET

Service delivery target or
milestones

Number of
agreements
with critical
stakeholders

1 signed
agreement
by March
2012

Draft heritage agreement with
San Parks
endorsed
by the HRM
review
committee
of council
and noted
by Council.

Awaiting endorsement by
University of
Pretoria and
SANParks to
be finalized in
October 2012

Number of
collections
declared

1 collection
by March
2012

Objects and
the collections were
identified.

Capacity
Challenges of
Walter Sisulu University
which is under
administration

Increased
competency
in relevant
fields

Improvement in the
number of
assessments
processed

80% of assessments
received
assessed.

APM:
386 HIA/
AIA/PIA
processed
of 623
received
(62% processed).

To promote
social cohesion and fair
representivity.

Number of
sites that
reflect representivity
for declaration.

1 site to
be representative by
March 2012.

Declaration of
cultural significant collections

To ensure
R200 000
archaeological and
paleontological resources
and meteorites are
conserve and
effectively
managed

Service delivery indicator

Output

Strategy

Input

Key objective
To develop
and maintain
an effective
system of
conserving
movable
heritage

18% variance
from target Initial target
set does not
take into
consideration
the entire S38
(1) and S38
(8) process
APM unit has
to respond to.
Focusing only
on HIA/PIA/
AIA only looks
at a small portion of what is
being delivered and can
therefore not
meet 80%
Voortrekker No variance
monument
declared.
Mapikela
House identified and
graded.

No Progress The unit has
only 1 Staff
member dealing with all
the issues.

Service delivery target or
milestones

Improve
approach to
the management and
conservation
of graves.

Number
of graves
and sites
conserved,
protected
and rehabilitated.

10 sites
of burial
grounds and
graves conserved and
protected by
March 2012.

Increase
awareness of
Underwater
heritage

R50 000
R100 000
R150 000

Launch public
programmes
Audit of

Increased
level of
awareness
amongst
targeted
stakeholder
groups

Number of
public programmes
launched

4 public
programmes
launched by
March 2012

Human
Resources

Awareness
done

% increase
in awareness
amongst
targeted
groups

20%
increase in
awareness
annually

REASONS
FOR VARIANCE

Service delivery indicator

Develop operational plan for
the identification of graves

ACTUAL
TARGET
MET

Output

Human
Resources

Input

Strategy

Key objective
To manage
and conserve graves
and burial
grounds of
victims of
conflict in
the liberation
struggle

3 Graves
namely
Mapikela,
Mahabane
and Moroka
were graded. Adverts
for public
participation
were done.

Negotiations
with families
took time as
they raised
issues to be
addressed
before signing
letters of consent. Sites will
be declared in
the next council meeting
Student
External
training pro- funding and
gramme at contracted
Robben Is- capacity alland, Youth lowed team to
programme excel itself in
at Simons
this area
Town, NAS
training in
CPT and
Durban,
MUCH
booklet,
launched an
integrated
law enforcement
strategy, a
face book
page with
30 members.

2010 1
field school
and 34
participants
increase =
field schools
and 43
participants.
In 2010
1 training
school and
in 2012 =
3. In 2010
57 students
=81 in
2012. No
facebook
prior to
2012

Finances for
contracting service
provider to
develop tools
for measuring awareness
were not
available
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To
implement
good
corporate
governance

Human
Establish,
Resources and ensure
effective
functioning
of required
Oversight
Committees
as per
relevant
legislative
frameworks

Number of
internal audit
findings addressed.

60% of all
findings
addressed.

Reduction in
number of appeals against
permit committee decisions

Appeals
against permit
committee
decision
reduced by 2
annually

REASONS
FOR
VARIANCE

ACTUAL
TARGET
MET

Service
delivery
target or
milestones

Service
delivery
indicator

Output
Improved organisational
compliance
with legislation, policies
and procedures

Audit Committee, No variance
HRM Council
sub -committee,
Human Resource
and Remuneration
sub-committee,
IT and asset
governance subcommittee of
Council. Terms of
Reference all in
place.
2 audits namely
Performance
information
and budgets
performed.
1 Appeal on Arab
Priest

No variance

To be
approved
in Council’s
July 2012

Human
Functional
Resources compliance
manual for
Councillors
on legislation

Implementation of
compliance
manual by
Council

Improved over- March 2012
sight, policy
guidance and
strategic direction from SAHRA Council

Draft of Council
Charter developed
and comments
were made by
Council

Human
Develop
Resources delegation
of authority
framework

Ensure
appropriate
and required
authority is
delegated so
as to enable
effective
management

Implementation June 2011
of delegation of
authority

Draft Delegation
Receiving
of Authority
attention
framework drafted and input
from Supply
Chain
and Audit
Committee

Mitigation
of risk that
may impact
on strategic
objectives

% of identified
high level risks
reduced

To reduce
Human
potential
Resources
risk that may
prevent the
achievement
of strategic
objectives to
an acceptable
level
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Strategy

Input

Key
objective

e) Corporate Governance

Develop a
risk register,
management
framework
and plan

20% reduction Risk management
per annum
framework
Approved in
November

No variance

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO PARLIAMENT ON
SOUTH AFRICAN HERITAGE RESOURCES AGENCY
REPORT ON THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Introduction
1. I was engaged to audit the financial statements of the South African Heritage Resources

Agency, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2012, the statement
of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets and the cash flow statement for
the year then ended, and the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information as set out on pages 143 to 179.
Accounting authority’s responsibility for the annual financial statements
2. The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial

statements in accordance with South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act
of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999)(PFMA) and the National Heritage Resources Act
of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 25 of 1999), and for such internal control as the accounting
authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation of annual financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor-General’s responsibility
3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on the annual financial statements based on conducting

the audit in accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004)
(PAA), the General Notice issued in terms thereof and International Standards on Auditing.
Because of the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraphs, however,
I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit
opinion.
Basis for disclaimer
Journals
4. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be provided to support certain journals passed

by the public entity amounting to R10 267 551. The majority of the journals effects property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets. The entity’s records did not permit the application
of alternative audit procedures regarding the audit of journals. Consequently, I could not satisfy
myself as to the occurrence and accuracy of the journals posted amounting to R10 267 551.
Irregular expenditure
5. The public entity did not include all irregular expenditure in the notes to the financial statements

as required by section 55(2)(b)(i) of the PFMA. The public entity made payments in contravention
of the supply chain management requirements which were not included in irregular expenditure,
resulting in irregular expenditure disclosed in note 25 to the annual financial statements being
understated by an amount of R14 469 990.
Leave provision
6. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the provision for leave. As

disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements, the leave provision for the current financial
year is R1 162 000. The entity’s records did not permit the application of alternative audit
procedures regarding the provision of leave. Consequently, I could not satisfy myself as to the
valuation of the leave provision amounting to R1 162 000.
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Trade receivables
7.
Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be provided to support the comparative ageing of

trade receivables as disclosed in note 22 to the financial statements. The entity’s records did not
permit the application of alternative audit procedures regarding the ageing of trade receivables.
Consequently, I could not satisfy myself as to the valuation of the comparative ageing of trade
receivables amounting to R419 351.
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
8.
Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be provided to support the comparative fruitless and

wasteful expenditure amounting to R344 889 as disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements.
The entity’s records did not permit the application of alternative audit procedures regarding fruitless
and wasteful expenditure recognised. Consequently, I could not satisfy myself as to the occurrence,
completeness and accuracy of the comparative fruitless and wasteful expenditure amounting to
R344 889.
9.

Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be provided to support the approval of the write-off
of fruitless and wasteful expenditure amounting to R344 889 as disclosed in note 24 to the financial
statements. The entity’s records did not permit the application of alternative audit procedures
regarding fruitless and wasteful expenditure written off. Consequently, I could not satisfy myself as
to the occurrence and accuracy of the fruitless and wasteful expenditure written off amounting to
R344 889.

Property, plant and equipment
10. The public entity did not review the residual values and useful lives of the plant and equipment at

each reporting date in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice,
GRAP 17, Property, plant and equipment. A total of 40,6% of the public entity’s plant and equipment
are included in the financial statements at a zero net carrying amount while still being in use, resulting
in property plant and equipment being understated. I have not determined the correct carrying
amount of plant and equipment as it was impracticable to do so.
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11.

Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be provided to support that 49,1% of the public
entity’s assets are recorded in the asset register. The entity’s records did not permit the application
of alternative audit procedures regarding the completeness of assets. Consequently, I could not
satisfy myself as to the completeness, valuation and allocation of the property, plant and equipment.

12.

Property, plant and equipment were not recognised and accounted for as per GRAP 17 – the public
entity accounted for certain assets as an expense. The effects on the financial statements are that
property, plant and equipment are understated by R1 036 849 and project expenditure overstated
by R1 036 849. I have not determined the correct depreciation and accumulated depreciation
amount of plant and equipment as it was impracticable to do so.

13.

Depreciation for certain assets were not accounted for, as required by Standards of Generally
Recognised Accounting Practice, GRAP 17, Property, plant and equipment. The effects on the
financial statements are that depreciation and accumulated depreciation are understated by
R607 358. The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment disclosed is therefore overstated
by R607 358.

14. Property, plant and equipment as a whole are materially misstated due to the cumulative effect

of numerous individually, immaterial, uncorrected misstatements and limitations in scope in
the following elements making up property, plant and equipment in the statement of financial
position and the note to the financial statements:
•

The financial statements of the public entity are misstated, as the public entity did not
account for property plant and equipment, as required by Standards of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practice, GRAP 17, Property, plant and equipment.
•

Property, plant and equipment’s opening balance, and cost and carrying value in
the asset register did not agree with the amount in the trial balance. The effects on
the financial statements is that the opening balance as per the property, plant and
equipment disclosure note 7, is overstated by R458 003, and property, plant and
equipment opening balance carrying value is overstated by R252 772.

•

The acquisition of certain property, plant and equipment was accounted for as
other operating expenditure. The effects on the financial statements are that the
property, plant and equipment are understated by R19 106, and depreciation and
accumulative depreciation are understated by an unknown amount.

•

No reconciliation was performed between the asset register and the general
ledger. The effects on the financial statements are that the property, plant and
equipment cost is overstated by R32 836, and property plant and equipment
carrying value is overstated by R29 709.

•

Property, plant and equipment were depreciated past a R0 value. The effects on the
financial statements are that the property, plant and equipment are understated,
and depreciation is overstated by R3 483 respectively.

•

The property, plant and equipment disclosure note were misstated. The cost and
accumulative depreciation in note 7 of the financial statements is understated by
R11 000 (2011: R48 000 understated) for minor assets, as it was not disclosed.

•

Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be provided to support the existence of
property, plant and equipment as disclosed in the statement of financial position. The
entity’s records did not permit the application of alternative audit procedures regarding the
existence of property, plant and equipment. Consequently, I could not satisfy myself as to
the existence of the property, plant and equipment amounting to R155 759.

•

Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be provided to support the completeness,
accuracy and occurrence of disposals in property, plant and equipment as disclosed in
the statement of financial position. The entity’s records did not permit the application
of alternative audit procedures regarding the completeness, accuracy and occurrence of
disposals. Consequently, I could not satisfy myself as to the completeness, accuracy and
occurrence of the disposals amounting to R67 000.

15. Intangible assets

The public entity did not adjust the comparative figures for intangible assets disclosure note after
a correction of a prior period error, as required by Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice, GRAP 1, Presentation of financial statements. The effects on the financial statements
are that the comparative amounts for intangible assets, cost and accumulated amortisation in
note 7.1 of the annual financial statements, are understated by R545 000.
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Operating leases
16. The public entity did not account for operating leases, as required by Standards of Generally

Recognised Accounting Practice, GRAP 13, Leases. The effects on the financial statements are
that operating lease assets are understated by R21 747 893 (2011: R20 956 589 understated),
accumulated surplus understated by R20 956 589 (2011: R20 158 006 understated) and rent
received understated by R791 304 (2011: R798 583 understated).
Cash flow statement
17. Presentation of a cash flow statement, summarising the entity’s operating activities, is required

by the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice, GRAP 2, Cash flow statements.
The cash flows as at 31 March 2012 received from government and other are overstated by
R3 545 000, and cash paid to suppliers and employees is overstated by R3 545 000.

Accounts payable
18. The public entity did not adjust the comparative figures for accounts payable after the year-end

correcting journal was passed, as required by Standard of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice, GRAP 1, Presentation of financial statements. The effects on the financial statements are
that the comparative amounts for accounts payable are understated by R601 324, accumulative
surplus overstated by R334 069 and provident fund expense overstated by R267 255.
Contingent liabilities
19. The public entity did not account for provisions, as required by Standards of Generally

Recognised Accounting Practice, GRAP 19, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, and Contingent
Assets. The public entity disclosed an amount as a provision and a contingent liability. The effect
on the financial statements is that contingent liabilities disclosed in note 21 are overstated by
an amount of R1 036 298.
Related parties
20. The public entity did not account for related parties, as required by International Accounting

Standards, IAS 24, Related Parties. The public entity did not disclose the amount for deferred
revenue – earmarked funds for projects, as specified by the Department of Arts and Culture,
accurately. The effect on the financial statements is that related parties disclosed in note 18 are
understated by an amount of R37 033 000.
Conditional grant revenue
21. The public entity did not account for conditional grant revenue, as required by Standard of

Generally Recognised Accounting Practice, GRAP 23, Revenue from non-exchange transactions
(taxes and transfers). The effects on the financial statements are that conditional grant revenue
is understated by R3 545 000, and project expenditure overstated by R3 545 000.

22. The public entity did not account for conditional grant revenue, as required by Standards of

Generally Recognised Accounting Practice, GRAP 23, Revenue from non-exchange transactions
(taxes and transfers). The effects on the financial statements are that current expenditure and
transfers in note 27 are overstated by R3 545 000. The expenditure and the transfer should not
have been disclosed in note 27.
Opinion
23. Because of the significance of the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion

paragraphs, I have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide
a basis for an audit opinion. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion on the annual financial
statements.
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Emphasis of matter
24. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Restatement of corresponding figures
25. As disclosed in note 26 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 31 March 2011

have been restated as a result of an error discovered during 2012 in the financial statements
of the South African Heritage Resources Agency at, and for the year ended, 31 March 2011.
REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
26. In accordance with the PAA and the General Notice issued in terms thereof, I report the
following findings relevant to performance against predetermined objectives, compliance with
laws and regulations, and internal control, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion.
Predetermined objectives
27. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the information

in the annual performance report as set out on pages 113 to 132 of the annual report.
28. The reported performance against predetermined objectives was evaluated against the overall

criteria of usefulness and reliability. The usefulness of information in the annual performance
report relates to whether it is presented in accordance with the National Treasury annual
reporting principles and whether the reported performance is consistent with the planned
objectives. The usefulness of information further relates to whether indicators and targets are
measurable (i.e. well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable and time bound) and relevant,
as required by the National Treasury Framework, for managing programme performance
information.
29. The reliability of the information in respect of the selected objectives is assessed to determine

whether it adequately reflects the facts (i.e. whether it is valid, accurate and complete).
30. The material findings concerning the usefulness and reliability of the information, are as follows:
Usefulness of information Presentation
31. The National Treasury Guide for the preparation of the annual report requires that explanations

for major variances between the planned and reported (actual) targets should be provided in
all instances and should also be supported by adequate and reliable corroborating evidence.
Adequate and reliable corroborating evidence could not be provided for 59% of the major
variances disclosed in the annual performance report. This was due to limitations placed on
the scope of my work by the institution. Consequently, I did not obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to satisfy myself as to the validity, accuracy and completeness of the reasons for
major variances.
Measurability
32. The National Treasury Framework for managing programme performance information (FMPPI)

requires that performance targets be specific in clearly identifying the nature and required level
of performance. A total of 25% of the targets relevant to the selected objectives were not
specific in clearly identifying the nature and the required level of performance. This was due to
the fact that management was aware of the requirements of the FMPPI but did not receive the
necessary training to enable application of the principles.
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33.

The FMPPI requires that indicators/measures should have clear unambiguous data definitions
so that data is collected consistently and is easy to understand and use. Of the indicators
relevant to the selected objectives, 95% were not well defined in that clear, unambiguous data
definitions were not available to allow for data to be collected consistently. This was due to
the fact that management was aware of the requirements of the FMPPI but did not receive the
necessary training to enable application of the principles.

34.

The FMPPI requires that it must be possible to validate the processes and systems that
produce the indicator. A total of 85% of the indicators relevant to the selected objectives
were not verifiable in that valid processes and systems, that produce the information on actual
performance, did not exist. This was due to the lack of key controls in the relevant systems of
collection, collation, verification and storage of actual performance information.

Reliability of information
35. The FMPPI requires that processes and systems which produce the indicator should be

verifiable, requires that the indicator be accurate enough for its intended use and respond to
changes in the level of performance and requires that documentation addressing the systems
and processes for identifying, collecting, collating, verifying and storing information be properly
maintained. I was unable to obtain all the information and explanations I considered necessary
to satisfy myself as to the reliability of the actual reported information to 35% of the selected
objectives. This was due to limitations placed on the scope of my work, a lack of review for
the recording of actual achievements by senior management, and the lack of a document
management system with regard to actual performance achievements.
Additional matter
36. I draw attention to the following matter below. This matter does not have an impact on the

predetermined objectives audit findings reported above.
Achievement of planned targets
37. Of the total number of planned targets, only 23 (number of targets) were achieved during the

year under review. This represents 62% of total planned targets that were not achieved during
the year under review. This was mainly due to the fact that indicators and targets were not
suitably developed during the strategic planning process.
Compliance with laws and regulations
38. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the entity has complied with applicable laws

and regulations regarding financial matters, financial management and other related matters.
My findings on material non-compliance with specific matters in key applicable laws and
regulations, as set out in the General Notice issued in terms of the PAA, are as follows:
Strategic planning and performance management
39. The accounting authority did not ensure that the public entity had and maintained an effective,

efficient and transparent system of internal control regarding performance management, which
described and represented how the entity’s processes of performance planning, monitoring,
measurement, review and reporting was conducted, organised and managed as required by
section 51(1)(a)(i) of the PFMA.
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Annual financial statements, performance and annual reports
40.
The financial statements submitted for auditing were not supported by full and proper records

as required by section 55(1) ((a) and (b)) of the PFMA.
Material misstatements of non-current assets, current assets, liabilities, revenue, expenditure
and disclosure items identified by the auditors in the submitted financial statements were
subsequently corrected and the supporting records were later provided. However, the
uncorrected material misstatements and supporting records that could not be provided
resulted in the financial statements receiving a disclaimed audit opinion.
41.

The minister of the Department of Arts and Culture did not table the 2011 annual report in
the National Assembly within one month after the accounting authority received the audit
report, as required by section 65(1)(a) of the PFMA.

42.

The minister of the Department of Arts and Culture did not table a written explanation in
the National Assembly setting out the reasons why the 2011 annual report were not tabled
within six months after the end of the financial year, as required by section 65(2)(a) of the
PFMA.

Audit committees
The audit committee did not consist of at least three persons, in contravention of section
43.

77(a) of the PFMA, for at least nine months of the financial year.
44.

The majority of audit committee members were not non-executive members appointed by
the accounting authority, as is required by Treasury Regulation 27.1.4 as there were not at
least three members for nine months of the financial year.

45.

The audit committee did not meet at least twice a year, as required by section 77(b) of the
Public Finance Management Act. Only one meeting took place during the financial year on
30 March 2012.

Internal audit
46.
Internal audit was not under the control and direction of the audit committee, as required by

section 51(1)(a)(ii) of the PFMA.
Procurement and contract management
Goods and services with a transaction value below R500 000 were procured without
47.

obtaining the required price quotations, as is required by Treasury Regulation 16A6.1.
48.

Goods and services of a transaction value above R500 000 were procured without inviting
competitive bids, as is required by Treasury Regulations 16A6.1.

49.

Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that bid adjudication was done
by committees which were composed in accordance with the policies of the public entity, as
required by Treasury Regulation 16A6.2(b) and (c).

50.

Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that contracts and quotations
were awarded to suppliers whose tax matters have been declared by the South African
Revenue Service to be in order, as is required by Treasury Regulations 16A9.1(d) and the
Preferential Procurement Regulations.
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51.

Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that quotations were awarded
to bidders based on points given for criteria that were stipulated in the original invitation for
quotations, as required by SCM regulation Treasury Regulations 16A6.3(b) and Preferential
Procurement Regulations.

52.

The preference point system was not applied in all procurement of goods and services above
R30 000 as required by section 2(a) of the Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act
and Treasury Regulations 16A6.3(b).

53.

Contracts and quotations were awarded to bidders based on preference points that were
not calculated in accordance with the requirements of the Preferential Procurement Policy
Framework Act and its regulations.

54.

Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that quotations were awarded
only to bidders who submitted a declaration on whether they are employed by the state or
connected to any person employed by the state, which is prescribed in order to comply with
Treasury Regulation 16A8.3.

55.

Construction contracts were awarded to contractors that were not registered with the
Construction Industry Development Board (CIDB) in accordance with section 18(1) of the
CIDB Act.

56.

Construction projects were not always registered with the Construction Industry Development
Board (CIDB), as required by section 22 of the CIDB Act and CIDB regulation 18.

57.

A proper evaluation of major capital projects were not done prior to a final decision on the
project, as per the requirements of section 51(1)(a) of the PFMA.

Expenditure management
58. The accounting authority did not take effective steps to prevent irregular expenditure and

fruitless and wasteful expenditure, as required by section 51(1)(b)(ii) of the PFMA.
59.

Effective and appropriate disciplinary steps were not taken against officials who incurred and
permitted irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure, as required by section 51(1)(e)(iii)
of the PFMA, and sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that effective
and appropriate disciplinary steps were taken against officials who incurred and permitted
irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure, as required by section 51(1)(e)(iii) of the
PFMA.

Revenue management
60. The accounting authority did not take effective and appropriate steps to collect all money

due, as required by section 51(1)(b)(i) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulations 31.1.2(a) and
31.1.2(e).
61.
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Movable assets were disposed of in a manner that was not most advantageous to the state, as
required by Treasury Regulations 16A7.1 & 2.

Asset management and liability management
62. Proper control systems to safeguard and maintain assets were not implemented, as required

by sections 50(1)(a) and 51(1)(c) of the PFMA.
Internal control
63. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, annual performance

report and compliance with laws and regulations. The matters reported below under the
fundamentals of internal control are limited to the significant deficiencies that resulted in the
basis for disclaimer of opinion, the findings on the annual report performance report and the
findings on compliance with laws and regulations included in this report.
Leadership
64. The accounting authority and executive management did not exercise oversight responsibility

regarding financial and performance reporting and compliance and related internal controls,
resulting in material irregular expenditure incurred during the financial year and insufficient
monitoring controls to ensure the proper implementation of the overall process of planning,
budgeting, implementation and reporting of predetermined objectives.
65.

The accounting authority and executive management did not implement effective human
resource management to ensure that adequate and sufficiently skilled resources are in place
and that performance is monitored. As insufficient training was provided on predetermined
objectives, staff were not held accountable for shortcomings identified, senior management
positions were vacant for more than 12 months and there was inadequate monitoring of the
system for leave.

66.

Executive management did not establish and communicate policies and procedures to enable
and support understanding and execution of internal control objectives, processes, and
responsibilities resulting in non-compliance with the PFMA on numerous occasions.

67.

The accounting authority and executive management did not monitor the implementation of
action plans to address internal control deficiencies as material findings of external auditors
were not investigated and corrected during the current financial year.

Financial and performance management
68. Management did not implement proper record keeping in a timely manner to ensure that

complete, relevant and accurate information is accessible and available to support financial
and performance reporting, as material scope limitations on journal entries, property, plant
and equipment, leave provision and the disclosure of comparative ageing on trade receivables
were identified during the audit.
69.

Management did not implement controls over daily and monthly processing and reconciling of
transactions and physical assets.

70.

Management did not prepare regular, accurate and complete financial and performance reports
that were supported and evidenced by reliable information due to the material misstatements
and scope limitations identified during the audit.
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71.

Management did not review and monitor compliance with applicable laws and regulations
as material non-compliance with laws and regulations in terms of the PFMA and Treasury
Regulations were identified during the audit.

72.

Management did not design and implement formal controls over IT systems to ensure the
reliability of the systems and the availability, accuracy and protection of information due to the
material scope limitations identified in the leave system and the asset register.

Governance
73. The public entity did not implement appropriate risk management activities to ensure that

regular risk assessments, including consideration of procurement risks, are conducted and that
a risk strategy to address the risks was developed and monitored.

74.

The audit committee did not promote accountability and service delivery through evaluating
and monitoring responses to risks and providing oversight over the effectiveness of the
internal control environment including financial and performance reporting and compliance
76. The audit committee did not promote accountability and service delivery through
with
laws and
regulations.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
			
For the year ended 31 March 2012

				

Notes

31 March
2012

31 March
2011

R’ 000

R’ 000

Revenue
Government grants

2

43,267

41,444

Other grants, donations and project funds

3

1,901

1,130

Other revenue
Total revenue

4

747
45,915

1,341
43,915

(8,473)
(676)

Expenses
Administrative expenses
Audit fees

5

(7,904)
(1,465)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

7

(701)

(1,075)

7.1

(158)

(13)

7

(41)

(15)

6

(217)
(7,833)
(6,642)
(23,337)

(277)
(4,187)
(6,370)
(26,692)

(48,298)

(47,778)

Operating surplus/(deficit)

(2,382)

(3,863)

Interest received
Surplus/(Deficit)

157
(2,225)

319
(3,543)

Attributable to the Agency

(2,225)

(3,543)

Amortisation of intangibles
Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Bad debts expenses
Other operating expenses
Project expenditure (Annexure 1)
Salaries and benefits
Total expenses

SOUTH AFRICAN HERITAGE RESOURCES AGENCY ANNUAL REPORT

| p143

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

						
For the year ended 31 March 2012							
						

Notes

Non-distributable
reserves

Total net
Accumulated
assets and
surplus/(deficit)
reserves

R’ 000

R’ 000

R’ 000

NET ASSETS AND RESERVES
Balance at 1 April 2010
Correction of prior year
(GRAP 3)

26

Restated balance at 1 April 2010

Surplus for the year
Revaluation of heritage buildings
Correction of prior year
(GRAP 3)
Restated balance at 31 March
2011
Balance at 1 April 2011
Correction of prior year retained
earnings

Deficit for the year
Revaluation of heritage buildings
Restated balance at 31 March
2012
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26

85,057

11,881

96,938

0

194

194

85,057

12,075

97,132

7,459

(3,543)

3,915

0

(3,543)

(3,543)

7,459

0

7,459

0

0

0

92,516

8,532

101,047

92,516

8,532

101,047

0

(601)

(601)

(510)

(2,225)

(2,735)

0

(2,225)

(2,225)

(510)

0

(510)

92,006

5,705

97,711

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

		

As at 31 March 2012

				
31 March 2012
R’ 000

Notes
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Current assets
Receivables and prepayments
Cash and cash equivalents

7
7.1

94,848
348

95,975
382

8
9

37,387
42,435
79,822

485
34,787
35,272

175,018

131,629

10
11

3,489
56,050
59,539

2,835
16,199
19,034

13
12

2,198
1,873

3,174
1,811

10

116

106

11

13,581
77,307

6,454
30,580

97,711

101,048

92,006
5,705
97,711

92,516
8,532
101,048

Total assets
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Post-employment medical benefits
Deferred revenue
Current liabilities
Provisions
Trade and other payables
Post-employment medical benefits –
short-term
Deferred revenue – current
Total liabilities
TOTAL NET ASSETS

Net assets are presented by:
Reserves
Accumulated surplus

31 March 2011
R’ 000
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
				

For the year ended 31 March 2012				

				
31 March 2012
R’ 000

Notes
Cash flows from operating
activities
Cash receipts from government and other
Cash paid to suppliers and employees
Cash generated by operations
Interest received
Net cash outflows from operating
activities
Cash flows from investing
activities
Acquisition of property, plant and
equipment
Proceeds from sale of property,
plant and equipment
Net cash outflows from investing
activities
Net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
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31 March 2011
R’ 000

55,774
(48,033)
7,741
157

39,052
(43,632)
(4,580)
319

14

7,896

(4,263)

7

(357)

(1,031)

7

109

15

(248)

(1,016)

7,648

(5,279)

34,786

40,062

42,435

34,786

9

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 march 2012

					

1. Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies adopted in preparation of these financial statements are set
out below and are consistent with those applied in the previous financial year unless otherwise
stated.

1.1 Basis of Preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis and in accordance with
the effective Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP) including any
interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board.
Accounting policies for material transactions, events or conditions not covered by the above GRAP
standards have been developed in accordance with Paragraphs 7,11 and 12 of GRAP 3. Where a
standard of GRAP that has not been issued by the Accounting Standards Board, but for which an
effective date has not yet been determined by the Minister of Finance, accounting policies were
developed based on the relevant GRAP standard.

1.2 Standard of GRAP
GRAP 1: Presentation of financial statements
GRAP 2: Cash flow statements
GRAP 3: Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors
GRAP 4: The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates
GRAP 5: Borrowing costs
GRAP 6: Consolidated and separate financial statements
GRAP 7: Investments in associates
GRAP 8: Investments in joint ventures
GRAP 9: Revenue from exchange transactions
GRAP 10: Financial reporting in hyperinflationary economies
GRAP 11: Construction contracts
GRAP 12: Inventories
GRAP 13: Leases
GRAP 14: Events after the reporting date
GRAP 16: Investment property
GRAP 17: Property, plant and equipment
GRAP 19: Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
GRAP 100: Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations
GRAP 101: Agriculture
GRAP 102: Intangible assets
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IPSAS 20: Related party disclosure
IFRS 3 (AC140): Business combinations
IFRS 4 (AC141): Insurance contracts
IFRS 6 (AC143): Exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources
IFRS 7 (AC144): Financial instruments: Disclosure
IAS 12 (AC102): Income taxes
IAS 19 (AC116): Employee benefits
IAS 32 (AC125): Financial instruments: Presentation
IAS 39 (AC133): Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement
SIC – 21 (AC421): Income taxes – Recovery of revaluated non-depreciable assets
SIC – 25 (AC425): Income taxes – Changes in the tax status on a fund or its shareholders
SIC – 29 (AC429): Service concessions arrangements – Disclosures
IFRIC 2 (AC435): Members’ shares in co-operative entities and similar instruments
IFRIC 4 (AC437): Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease
IFRIC 12 (AC445): Service concession arrangements
IFRIC 13 (AC446): Customer loyalty programmes
IFRIC 15 (AC448): Agreements for the construction of real estate
IFRIC 17 (AC 450): Distributions of non-cash assets to owners
IFRIC 18 (AC451): Transfer of assets from customers
Standards on GRAP issued, but not
effective

The Agency has elected not to early adopt the
following standards of GRAP which have been
issued, but not yet effective:
GRAP 8:
Segmental reporting
GRAP 21:
Impairment of non-cash generating assets
GRAP 23: Revenue from non-exchange
transactions
GRAP 25:
Employee benefits
GRAP 26:
Impairment of cash-generating assets
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The adoption of the above standards and
interpretations will have no material impact on
the financial statements in the period of initial
application.
Standards of GRAP that may be used to
interpret the requirements of other standards
of GRAP:
GRAP 24 : Presentation of budget information
in the Financial Statements
The cash flow statement was prepared in
accordance with the direct method.
Functional and presentation currency
The functional currency of the entity is South
African Rand, which is the Agency’s functional
currency. All financial information presented has
been rounded off to the nearest thousand.

GRAP 103:
Heritage assets

Revenue recognition

GRAP 104:
Financial instruments

Revenue represents the parliamentary grant
from the government as well as the external
income.

1.2.1 Government grant	

(b) Rental income

Government grants are recognised when it is
probable that the future economic benefit will
flow to the public entity and these benefits can
be measured reliably. The grant is recognised to
the extent that there are no further obligations
arising from the receipt of the grant.

Rental income from tenants is recognised in the
statement of financial performance on a straightline basis over the term of the lease.

Government grants are assistance by a
government in the form of transfer of resources
in return for compliance with conditions related
to operating activities. Grants are recognised
on a systematic basis over periods necessary to
match them with the related costs.
Government grants are recognised initially as
deferred income when there is a reasonable
assurance that they will be received and
that the Agency will comply with the
conditions associated with the grant. Grants
that compensate the Agency for expenses
incurred, are recognised in statement of
financial performance on a systematic basis
in the same periods in which the expenses
are recognised.
1.2.2 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of a
consideration received or receivable. The
Agency recognises revenue if a) the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, b) it is
probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the entity, and c) specific criteria have
been met for the agency’s activities, as described
below. The amount is not considered to be
reliably measurable until all contingencies relating
to the transaction have been resolved.
(a) Revenue other than grants, donations, project
revenue and Agency activities
Revenue is recognised on the accrual basis and
when the significant risks and rewards of the
ownership have been transferred.

(c) Interest income
Revenue is recognised as interest accrues
in profit or loss, using the effective interest
method.
(d) Deferred revenue
Deferred revenue from the Department of
Arts and Culture is recognised on a systematic
basis in the same period in which the expenses
are recognised. Deferred revenue received
by way of conditional grants are recognised
when the conditions of the grant has been
met. Where no further conditions exist, the
amounts are recognised to income.
1.2.3 Critical accounting estimates
and judgments	

The Agency makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. Estimates and
judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised and in
any future periods affected.
Information about significant areas of
estimation uncertainty and critical judgments
in applying accounting policies that have
the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements, is
included in the following notes:
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Note 7:
Useful life and residual value assessments
of plant and equipment
Note 7:
Valuation of land and buildings
Note 10:
Measurement of defined benefit
obligations
Note 13:
Measurement of provisions
1.2.4 Revenue from
transactions	

non-exchange

Revenue from transfers is recognised when the
legal entitlement to this revenue arises. Interest
charged is recognised on a time-proportionate
basis with reference to the principal amount
receivable and effective interest rate
applicable.
Donations are recognised on a cash receipt
basis, or at fair value, or where the donation is
in the form of property, plant and equipment,
when the risks or rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the Agency.
Income from the recovery of unauthorised,
irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure is
based on legislated procedures, including those
set out in the Public Finance Management Act
(Act No.1 of 1999), and is recognised when
the recovery thereof from the responsible
councillors or officials is probable.
1.2.5 Foreign currency
translation	

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the measurement currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such translations and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the statement of
financial performance.
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1.2.6 Property, Plant and
Equipment

(i) Recognition and measurement
Land and buildings consists of heritage assets
which are defined as items held for their
unique cultural, environmental, historical,
natural or artistic significance rather than for
use in the day-to-day operations of the entity.
Heritage assets are accounted for on the
revalued model, being the fair value of the
assets, which constitutes their residual value.
No depreciation is therefore provided on
heritage assets.
Heritage assets are revalued by independent
professional valuators on a regular basis to
ensure that the fair value of the revalued
asset does not differ materially from its
carrying amount. Revaluation adjustments
are recognised directly into the statement of
changes in net assets.
Any revaluation surplus is credited to the assets
in the non-distributable reserves included in the
statement of financial position, except to the
extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease
of the same asset previously recognised in the
statement of financial position. In which case
the increase is recognised in the statement
of financial position. A revaluation deficit
is recognised in the statement of financial
position, except to the extent that it offsets an
existing surplus on the same asset recognised
in the asset revaluation reserve.
Cost includes expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the asset.
Purchased software that is integral to the
functionality of the related equipment is
capitalised as part of that equipment.
(ii) Subsequent costs
The cost of replacing part of an item of
property, plant and equipment is recognised in
the carrying amount of the item if it is probable
that the future economic benefits embodied

within the part will flow to the Agency, and that
its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of
the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and
equipment are recognised in the statement of
financial performance as incurred.

assessments consider issues such as future
market conditions, the remaining life of the
asset, and projected disposal values.

(iii) Depreciation

Initial recognition

Depreciation on assets other than land and
buildings, are calculated using the straight-line
method to write off their cost or revalued
amounts to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, at the following
rates:

An intangible asset is an identifiable nonmonetary asset without physical substance.
Examples include computer software, licences
and development costs. The Agency recognises
an intangible asset in its statement of
financial position only if it is probable that
the expected future economic benefits or
service potential (that are attributable to
the asset) will flow to the Agency, and that
the cost or fair value of the asset can be
measured reliably.

Plant and equipment
Computer equipment and
peripherals
Vessels – Research and patrol
- hull
Vessels – Propulsion system,
engine, gear box, propellers
Vessels – Deck equipment, rib,
winches, cranes, anchors
Furniture and fittings
Vehicles

5-15 years
3-12 years
20 years
20 years
5 years
5-15 years
5-15 years

1.2.7 Intangible Assets	

Internally generated intangible assets are
subject to strict recognition criteria before they
are capitalised. Research expenditure is never
capitalised, whilst development expenditure is
only capitalised to the extent that:
•

The Agency deems vessels as the only asset
category with significantly identifiable components for the purposes of depreciation.

•

(iv) Asset useful lives and residual values

•

Plant and equipment is depreciated over its
useful life, taking into account residual values
where appropriate. The useful lives of assets
are based on management’s estimation. The
actual useful lives of the assets and residual
values are assessed annually and may vary
depending on a number of factors. In reassessing asset useful lives, factors such as
technology innovation, product life cycles
and maintenance programmes are taken
into account.
The estimation of residual values of assets
is also based on management’s judgement
whether the assets will be sold or used to the
end of their useful lives, and what their condition will be like at that time. Residual value

•

the Agency intends to complete the
intangible asset for use or sale;
it is technically feasible to complete
the intangible asset;
the Agency has the resources to
complete the project; and
it is probable that the Agency will
receive future economic benefits or
service potential.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.
Where an intangible asset is acquired by the
Agency for no or nominal consideration (i.e. a
non-exchange transaction), the cost is deemed
to be equal to the fair value of that asset on
the date acquired.
Where an intangible asset is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary
assets, or a combination of monetary and nonmonetary assets, the asset acquired is initially
measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired item’s fair value was not determinable,
it’s deemed cost is the carrying amount of the
asset(s) given up.
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1.2.7.1 Subsequent Measurement – Cost
Model

Intangible assets are subsequently carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairments. The cost of an intangible asset is amortised over the useful life where that useful
life is finite. Where the useful life is indefinite,
the asset is not amortised, but is subject to an
annual impairment test.
1.2.7.2 Amortisation and Impairment

Amortisation is charged so as to write off
the cost or valuation of intangible assets over
their estimated useful lives using the straightline method. The annual amortisation rates
are based on the following estimated useful
lives:
Intangible assets years
Computer software

3-5 years

1.2.7.3 De-recognition

Intangible assets are derecognised when
the asset is disposed or when there are no
further economic benefits or service potential
expected from the use of the asset. The gain or
loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
intangible asset is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying
value and is recognised in the statement of
financial performance.
1.2.8 Impairment of non-financial
assets	

Assets, other than inventories and receivables
which are separately assessed and provided
against, where necessary, are considered for
impairment if there is a reason to believe that
impairment may exist. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. For the purpose of assessing impairment,
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assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which they are separately identifiable cash
flows (“cash generating units”). Assets that
have been identified as being impaired, are
reviewed at each reporting date.
1.2.9 Post-employment medical
benefits	

(a) Defined benefit plan
The liability recognised in the statement of
financial position in respect of defined benefit
plans, is the present value of the obligation at
the reporting date minus the fair value of plan
assets, together with adjustments for actuarial
gains/losses and past service cost. The obligation
is calculated by independent actuaries and is
determined based on assumptions relating to
the real rate of return and the rates of staff
turnover and early/normal retirement. Actuarial
valuations are performed every year.
Actuarial gains and losses arising from
experience adjustments, changes in actuarial
assumptions and amendments to these
benefits, are charged or credited to revenue
over the average remaining service lives of the
related employees.
(b) Defined contribution plan
Contributions to defined contribution funds
are charged against income as incurred.
(c) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable whenever an
employee’s employment is terminated before
the normal retirement date or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Agency
recognises termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to either terminate
the employment of current employees
according to a detailed formal plan without
the possibility of withdrawal, or to provide
termination benefits as a result of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after

the reporting date are discounted to present
value.
(d) Short-term benefits
Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long-service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.
1.2.10 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Agency has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of past events, when it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying financial
benefits will be required to settle the obligation,
and when a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made.
1.2.11 Financial Instruments	

All financial instruments are initially recognised at
fair value, plus, in the case of financial assets and
liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition. Financial instruments are
recognised when the Agency becomes a party
to their contractual arrangements.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Agency
classifies financial assets as ‘at fair value
through profit or loss’, ‘held to maturity
investments’, ‘loans and receivables’, or ‘available
for sale’.

1.2.12 Financial assets	

The Agency classifies its financial assets as loans
and receivables. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition, and re-evaluates this designation
at every reporting period.
1.2.12.1 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are measured at
amortised cost. This comprise cash in hand,
deposits held on call, and term deposits with
an initial maturity of less than three months
when purchased.
1.2.12.2 Trade and other receivables	

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method, less a provision
for impairment. This provision is based on
a review of all outstanding amounts at year
end, and is established when there is objective
evidence that the Agency will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original
terms. The amount of the provision is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the effective interest rate.
Bad debts are written off in the year in which
they are identified. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited
against the relevant revenue stream in the
statement of financial performance.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Such assets are carried at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method.
Trade receivables are subsequently measured
at the original invoice amount where the effect
of discounting is not material.
Financial instruments carried at the statement
of financial position date include cash and bank
balances, receivables, prepayments, and trade
creditors. The particular recognition methods
adopted are disclosed below.
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1.2.13 Financial liabilities and equity
instruments	

Financial liabilities are classified according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into. Financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method, with interest expense
recognised in finance charges, on an effective
interest rate basis. The effective interest rate is
the rate that accurately discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life
of the financial liability, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period. Significant financial liabilities
include trade and other payables.
1.2.13.1 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
1.2.13.2 Derecognition of financial
instruments

A financial instrument or a portion thereof will
be derecognised and a gain or loss recognised
when the Agency’s contractual rights expire,
financial assets are transferred or financial
liabilities are extinguished. On derecognition
of a financial asset or liability, the difference
between the consideration and the carrying
amount on the settlement date is included in
finance charges.
1.2.13.3 Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date an assessment is made of
whether there are any indicators of impairment
of a financial asset based on observable data
about one or more loss events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset. The
recoverable amount of financial assets carried
at amortised cost, is calculated as the present
value of expected future cash flows discounted
at the original effective interest rate of the asset.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss for financial assets decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment
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was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in
the statement of financial performance, to the
extent that the carrying value of the asset does
not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal
date.
1.2.14 Leases

A lease is an arrangement whereby the lessor
conveys to the lessee, in return for a payment, or
series of payments, the right to use an asset for
an agreed period of time. The determination of
whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease
is based on the substance of the arrangement
at inception date: whether fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a
specific asset or assets, or the arrangement
conveys a right to use the asset.
Operating leases

Leases where substantially all of the risks and
benefits of ownership are effectively retained by the
lessor, are classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases are charged to the
statement of financial performance on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.
1.2.15 Irregular or fruitless
wasteful expenditure

and

Irregular expenditure means expenditure
incurred in contravention of, or not in accordance
with, a requirement of the PFMA. Fruitless and
wasteful expenditure refers to expenditure
that was made in vain and would have been
avoided had reasonable care been exercised. All
irregular, fruitless and wasteful
expenditure
is charged against income in the period it was
incurred.

notes to the financial statements (continued)

2.

Government grants
Operating grants received

31 March
2012

31 March
2011

R' 000

R' 000

38,526

36,204

3,869
872
43,267

2,418
2,822
41,444

1,267
634
1,901

752
378
1,130

0
111
637
747

15
717
609
1,341

1,465

676

22,945
(272)
664
23,337

25,631
510
551
26,692

Conditional government grants
Transformation projects/DACT
Capital projects

3.

4.

5.

6.

Other grants, donations and project
funds
Trust funds
National Lottery projects

Other Revenue
Insurance claim refund
Other revenue received
Rental income

Audit fees
Auditors' remuneration

Salaries and Benefits
Salaries and wages
Leave pay
Provision for retirement benefit costs
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7.

Property, plant and equipment
Vessel

Land
Plant and
and
equipment
buildings

R' 000 R' 000

R' 000

Minor
Vehicles
assets

Computer
equipment
and
peripherals

Furniture
and
Total
fittings

R' 000

R' 000

R' 000

R' 000

R' 000

For the year ended 31 March 2012
Opening carrying value
Prior year error note
27,1
Prior year error note
27,1
Revaluation (deficit)/
surplus

514

92,516

380

1,575

0

(5)

365

626

44

(39)

21

95,976

95,997

0

(510)

0

0

0

0

0

(510)

0

0

21

0

11

138

42

212

(23)

0

(124)

(97)

(11)

(264)

(182)

(701)

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

(142)

0

0

(9)

(150)

491

92,006

275

1,332

0

304

438

94,848

616

92,006

799

2,756

48

2,285

1,352

99,863

(125)

0

(524)

(1,425)

(48)

(1,980)

(914)

(5,015)

491

92,006

275

1,332

0

304

438

94,848

542

85,057

324

1,845

0

573

442

88,782

Revaluation surplus

0

7,459

0

0

0

0

0

7,459

Additions

0

0

215

0

0

231

308

753

(28)

0

(158)

(240)

0

(426)

(124)

(976)

0

0

0

0

0

(13)

0

(13)

0

0

0

(30)

0

0

0

(30)

514

92,516

381

1,575

0

365

626

95,975

616

92,516

827

3,018

0

2,692

1,466

101,136

(102)

0

(449)

(1,443)

0

(2,327)

(840)

(5,161)

514

92,516

380

1,575

0

365

626

95,975

Additions
Depreciation
Impairment of assets
Disposals at net book
value
Carrying value at end
of year

For the year ended 31 March 2012
Cost or valuation
Accumulated
depreciation
Carrying value at end
of year

For the year ended 31 March 2011
Opening carrying value

Depreciation
Impairment of assets
Disposals at net book
value
Carrying value at end
of year

For the year ended 31 March 2011
Cost or valuation
Accumulated
depreciation
Carrying value at end
of year

At 31 March 2012 land & buildings which consists of heritage assets were revalued by independent valuators and
management where applicable. Valuations were made on the basis of market value.
The revaluation surplus was credited to NDR.
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31 March 2012
R’ 000
7.1

31 March 2011
R’ 000

Intangible assets
Carrying values at the beginning of the year

382

217

Cost
Accumulated amortisation

1,052
(691)

229
(12)

Acquisitions
Disposals
Amortisation
Amortisation written back on disposals

145
0
(158)
0

278
0
(112)

348

382

1,197
(849)

507
(125)

37,649
134
0
0
37,782

528
134
2
0
664

(395)
37,387

(179)
485

10,912
31,511
12
42,435

157
34,616
13
34,787

Carrying values at the end of the year
Cost
Accumulated amortisation
The Agency does not have any internally
generated intangible assets

8.

Receivables and prepayments
Trade and other receivables
Deposits refundable
Accrued income
Smooth lining of lease rentals

Provision for doubtful debts

9.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank
Short-term bank deposits
Cash in hand
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31 March 2012
R’ 000
10.
10.1

Employees benefits
Post-employment medical benefits
Change in liability
Opening balance
Service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial loss
Benefits paid
Total
Statement of financial position
Projected benefit obligation
Plan asset
Net obligation
Unrecognised actuarial gains/(losses)
Net obligation to be in statement of
financial position
Short-term portion
Long-term portion
Statement of financial performance
Service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial gain recognised
Amount recognised in statement of
financial performance
Reconciliation of financial position item
Opening value
Benefits paid
Amount recognised in statement of
financial performance
Closing value
Key assumptions
Discount rate
Medical inflation rate
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31 March 2011
R’ 000

2,941
52
259
464
(111)
3,605

2,390
41
216
400
(106)
2,941

3,605
0
3,605
0

2,941
0
2,941
0

3,605

2,941

116
3,489
3,605

106
2,835
2,941

52
259
464

41
216
400

775

657

2,941
(111)

2,390
(106)

775

657

3,605

2,941

8.50%
8.00%

9.00%
7.75%

31 March 2012
R’ 000
Sensitivity of results
1% increase in medical aid inflation
Increase in accrued liability
Increase in service cost and interest cost

1% decrease in medical aid inflation
Decreased in accrued liability
Decrease in service cost and interest cost

31 March 2011
R’ 000

4,170
15.7%
431
16.8%

3,389
15.2%
363
16.7%

3,144
12.8%
318
13.8%

2,573
12.5%
270
13.2%

10.2

Retirement benefit information
An independent valuation was done. At 31 March 2012, the Agency employed 68 staff
members. Of this, 49 are members of the defined contribution plan. Upon the last
actuarial valuation at 31 March 2012, the actuary reported the fund to be 96% funded.
The remaining 19 staff members are not members of the Old Mutual Orion Provident
Fund since they are employed on a contractual basis.

11.

Deferred Revenue
Opening balance
Funds received
Transfers
Expenses incurred

12.

13.

22,653
53,620
(6,642)
69,631

27,241
1,782
0
(6,370)
22,653

Less: Short-term portion

13,581

6,454

Long-term portion

56,050

16,199

1,164
706
4
1,874

599
1,208
4
1,811

1,433

924

Trade and other payables
Other payables
Trade payables
Rent deposits refundable

Provisions
Short-term – Provision for leave pay
Balance at the beginning of the year
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Decrease in provision
Utilised
Balance at end of the year

31 March 2012
31 March 2011
R’ 000
R’ 000
(134)
509
(137)
0
1,162
1,433

The accounting authority considers the carrying value of provisions to be at present
obligations
Provision for taxes
Balance at the beginning of the year
Movement (credit at SARS that was
offset against the liability)
Utilised
Balance at end of the year (1)

1,741

0

(705)

1,741

0
1,036

0
1,741

Total

2,198

3,174

(1) Provision for taxes relates to outstanding UIF and PAYE returns dating back to the
2001-2004 financial periods.
							

| p160

31 March
2012
R’ 000
14.

31 March
2011
R’ 000

Notes to the cash flow statement
a) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and balances with banks and investments in money market instruments. Cash and cash equivalents included in the cash flow
statement comprise the following statement of amounts indicating financial position:
Cash on hand and balances with banks
Short-term investments

10,924
31,511
42,435

171
34,616
34,787

(2,225)

(3,543)

859
(601)
217
(976)
41
46,758
664
61
(36,902)

1,088
277
2,251
15
(4,577)
551
(70)
(254)

7,896

(4,263)

b) Net cash flows from operating activities
Surplus/(deficit)
Non-cash movements
Depreciation and impairments
Retained earnings adjustment
Bad debts provision
Contribution to provisions – Current
Loss on sale of property plant and equipment
(Decrease)/increase in deferred revenue
Increase/(decrease) in post medical benefits
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables
(Increase)/Decrease in receivables and prepayments
Net cash flows from operating activities
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31 March
2012
R' 000
15.

Operating lease Expense
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals
are payable as follows:
Not later than one year
Two to five years

31 March
2011
R' 000

389
33
422

568
422
990

Operating leases include buildings with lease terms of between one to five years, with
an option to extend for a further period.
The Agency does not have an option to purchase the leased asset at the expiry of the
lease.
Other operating leases include rental agreements covering various office equipment
used by the Agency.

16.

Operating lease income
The future aggregate minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable operating leases
are as follows:
Not later than one year
94
97
Two to five years
314
318
Later than five years
62,604
62,694
63,013
63,109
Operating leases income relates to buildings owned in the provinces with lease terms
of between 1 and 75 years, with an option to extend for a further period.

17.
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Taxation
No provision has been made for SA income taxation, as the Agency is exempt from
income taxation in terms of Section 10(1)(CA)(I) of the Income Tax Act, 1962.

31 March
2012
R’ 000

31 March
2011
R’ 000

18.

Related party transactions
No related party transactions were identified.
18.1 The Department of Arts & Culture (DAC)
DAC is the controlling department of the Agency. The following are transactions with DAC:
Government grants received from DAC in terms of earmarked funds in a medium term
expenditure framework:
Operational grants received (refer to Note 2)
43,267 41,444
43,267 41,444

153
153

337
337

7
7

24,780

14,853

Entertainment
R’ 000

Workshops
R’ 000

Catering
R’ 000

Airfares & bus
tickets
R’ 000

18.2 2012 Accounting
Authority – Council

Accommodation
R’ 000

Deferred revenue – Earmarked funds for projects as specified by DAC
(see Projects – Annexure)

Consulting
R’ 000

DAC is the controlling department of the Agency. The following are outstanding balances with
DAC:

48
48

53
53

0
0

72
72
Total accounting authority
expenditure
Honorarium of R5 346.60
was paid

237
237

0
0

Entertainment
R’ 000

Consulting
R’ 000

Workshops
R’ 000

Catering
R’ 000

Airfares & bus
tickets
R’ 000

2011 Accounting
Authority – Council

Accommodation
R’ 000

Total accounting authority
598
expenditure
No payments were made to council members for honorarium for the period.

0
0

0
0

0
0

323
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18.3 Key management personnel compensation
In addition to the salaries, the Agency also provides non-cash benefits to executive officers,
and contributes to a post-retirement defined benefit plan on their behalf. In accordance with
the terms of the plan, executive officers retire at the age of 60.

989,284 31,297

-

1,020,581

697,534

-

707,734

10,200

Total

Material
benefits
received

Chief Executive Officer:
Ms S.L. Van Damme
Chief Financial Officer:
Ms B. Khumalo
Executive Officer:
Human Resources: Ms Z. Fakier
Executive Officer:
Heritage Resources: Mr D. Sibayi
Executive Officer:
Corporate Affairs: Ms H.Gous

Cellphone
allowances

Executive management
(2012)

Other cost
to company
package

18.4 Executive management and executive managements’ emoluments
The following persons are employed by the South African Heritage Resources Agency in their
respective executive capacities:

697,534

9,600

-

707,134

697,534

9,700

-

707,234

697,534

9,600

-

707,134

3,779,420 70,397

-

3,849,817

The Agency operates a remuneration system based on the total cost to company principle. As
such, all contributions to medical aid and pension funds are borne by the employee out of this
package.

Material
benefits
received

Chief Executive Officer: Ms S.L. Van Damme

989,284 33,689

-

1,022,973

Chief Financial Officer: Ms B. Khumalo

670,839

9,600

-

680,439

Executive Officer: Human Resources: Ms Z. Fakier

670,839

9,600

-

680,439

Executive Officer: Heritage Resources: Mr D. Sibayi

671,329

9,700

-

681,029

Executive Officer: Corporate Affairs: Ms H. Gous

670,839

9,600

-

680,439

3,673,130 72,189

-

3,745,319

Executive management
(2011)

Total

Cellphone
allowances

Other cost
to company
package

The following persons are employed by the South African Heritage Resources Agency in their
respective executive capacities:

The Agency operates a remuneration system based on the total cost to company principle.
As such, all contributions to medical aid and pension funds are borne by the employee out
of this package.
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19.

Events after the reporting period
The accounting authority is not aware of any other matter or circumstance since the
financial year ended 31 March 2012 and the date of this report, or otherwise dealt with
in the financial statements, which significantly affects the financial position of the Agency
and the results of its operations.							

20.

Commitments
31 March 2012
R’ 000
Lateral dynamics
Maintenance of the server for both head
office and provincial offices
GIS
Air Con Workshop
Air conditioning maintenance
(month-to-month)
Selton Cleaning Services CC
Office space cleaning services
Minolta (Pty) Ltd
Photocopiers maintenance
IA Professionals
Internal auditors
CBAR

31 March 2011
R’ 000

108

74

7

0

3

14

62

62

0

51

1,094
0
2
0
1,276
201
								
								
								
21.
Contingent liabilities
								
21.1
Current litigation in the Gauteng High Court involving a property lessor. The lessor is
of the opinion that the lease agreement SAHRA had entered into was for 5 years instead
of 3. We have entered our Notice of Intention to Defend and instructed Johannesburg
attorneys to proceed with the matter on an urgency basis. Cost: R206 160.52.		
					
								
21.2
Potential litigation involving SARS – the Revenue Service claims that we are liable 		
for amounts relating to outstanding employees tax and penalty plus interest. We are
currently proceeding with negotiations and deny liability in part. The Agency is consulting
with Attorneys. Cost: R1 036 298.13.						
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21.3

Various debt collection matters are being handled by the Legal Unit, the cause of action
in the majority of these claims is that of rental due and owing with regard to SAHRA
owned property. Of the 18 matters currently with the Legal Unit, only two are defended:
SAHRA vs Silimela – King Williams Town Magistrate Court (R173 100.00), and SAHRA
vs Xola – Paarl Magistrate Court (R6 940.00).					

								
22.
Financial risk management
22.1		
Overview							
								
The Agency has exposure to the following risk from the use of financial instruments:
										
a. credit risk							
b. liquidity risk							
c. market risk							
								
This note presents information about the Agency’s exposure to each of the above risks,
the Agency’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the
Agency’s management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout
these financial statements.							
The accounting authority has overall responsibility for establishment and oversight of
the Agency’s risk management framework.						
								
The Agency’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risk
faced by the Agency, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and
adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect
changes in market conditions and the Agency’s activities. The Agency, through its training
and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.		
					
		
						
The Agency’s Audit Committee overseas how management monitors compliance with the
Agency’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk
management framework in relation to the risk faced by the Agency. The Agency’s Audit
Committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both
regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the result of which
are reported to the Audit Committee.							
				
								
a. Credit risk							
								
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Agency if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Agency’s
receivables from customers.							
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Trade and other receivables
							
								
The Agency’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of
each tenant. The demographics of the Agency’s customer base has less of an influence on
credit risk. Geographically there is no concentration of risk.					
							
The Agency establishes an allowance for impalment that represents its estimate of incurred
losses in respect of trade and other receivables. The collective loss allowance is determined
based on historical data of payment statistics for similar financial assets.			
								
b. Liquidity risk
						
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Agency will not be able to meet its financial obligations as
they fall due. The Agency’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that
it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Agency’s
reputation.							
						
c. Market risk
						
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, will affect the
Agency’s income. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market
risk exposure within acceptable parameters, whilst optimising the return.				
										
Capital management
						
The accounting authority is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain public sector
confidence and to sustain future development of the Agency. There were no changes in the
officer’s approach to capital management of the Agency.						
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31 March 2012
ASSETS
Receivables and prepayments
Cash and cash equivalents

Floating interest
rate
R’ 000

31 March 2011
ASSETS
Receivables and prepayments
Cash and cash equivalents

LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables

Net financial assets/liabilities
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Total
R’ 000

0
42,435
42,435

649
0
649

649
42,435
43,084

0
0

(1,874)
(1,874)

(1,874)
(1,874)

42,435

(1,225)

41,210

LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables

Net financial assets/liabilities

Non-interest
bearing
R’ 000

Floating interest
rate
R’ 000

Non-interest
bearing
R’ 000

Total
R’ 000

0
34,787
34,787

528
0
528

528
34,787
35,315

0
0

(1,811)
(1,811)

(1,811)
(1,811)

34,787

(1,283)

33,504

Credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:
2012
R’ 000
Trade receivables
Impairment of trade receivables

The ageing of trade receivables at the
reporting date was:
Current
30 days
60 days
90 days
90 days plus

2011
R’ 000
524
(395)
128

419
(179)
240

(7)
17
15
(5)
600
649

101
17
15
13
382
528

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables over
the year was:
Balance at the beginning of the year
179
156
Decrease/increase in impairment provision
217
23
Balance at the end of the year
395
179
Ageing of impaired trade receivables
Current defaulted
30 days
60 days
90 days
90 days plus

0
0
0
395
395

0
0
0
179
179

Currency risk
Foreign currency risk exposure is limited to cash advances to employees undertaking
business trips abroad.
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Liquidity risk
2012
R’000

2011
R’000

The carrying amounts of financial liability at the reporting date was:
Trade and other payables
1,874
1,874

1,811
1,811

Management has assessed all payables to be due and payable in less than 12 months.
22.2

23.

Fair value estimation
The face value of cash, trade receivables and trade payables, less any estimated
credit adjustments, are the approximate fair values on 31 March 2012, as a result
of the short-term maturity of these assets and liabilities.
Reconciliation of budget surplus with the surplus in the
statement of financial performance
2012
R’ 000
Budgeted
Net surplus/(deficit) per statement of financial
performance
Adjusted for:
Income:
Increase in transfers received: Government grants
Decrease in interest received
Decrease in rental income
Increase in permit fees
Insurance refund
Conditional grants, donations and project funds
Increase in other income
Expenditure:
Decrease in administration expenses
Increase in audit fees
Decrease in other operating expenses
Increase in salaries and benefits
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Impairment of property, plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Bad debts expense
Project expenditure
Net surplus/(deficit) per approved budget
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2012
R’ 000
Actual

2012
R’ 000
(2,225)

38,526
82
480
7
38
39,133

38,526
157
637
18
6,642
93
46,073

(75)
(157)
(11)
(6,642)
(55)
(6,940)

10,270
1,450
4,926
22,487
39,133

7,904
1,465
7,833
23,337
701
158
41
217
6,642
48,298

2,366
(15)
(2,907)
(850)
(701)
(158)
(41)
(217)
(6,642)
(9,165)
-

2011
R’ 000
Budgeted
Net surplus/(deficit) per statement of financial
performance
Adjusted for:
Income:
Increase in transfers received: Government grants
Decrease in interest received
Increase in rental income
Insurance refund
Increase in permit fees
Conditional grants, donations and project funds
Increase in other income
Expenditure:
Decrease in administration expenses
Increase in audit fees
Decrease in other operating expenses
Increase in salaries and benefits
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Impairment of property, plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Bad debts expense
Project expenditure
Net surplus/(deficit) per approved budget

2011
R’ 000
Actual

2011
R’ 000
(3,543)

36,204
500
700
12
37,416
9,008
650
5,781
21,887
37,326

36,204
319
609
15
18
6,370
699
44,235

181
91
(15)
(6)
(6,370)
(699)
(6,819)

8,473
535
676
(26)
4,187
1,594
26,692 (4,805)
1,075 (1,075)
13
(13)
15
(15)
277
(277)
6,370 (6,370)
47,778 (10,452)
90
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24.

Reconciliation of fruitless and
wasteful expenditure
2012
R’ 000
Opening balance
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure current year
Non-verifiable from prior year
Condoned or written off by the Council
Transfer to receivables for recovery –
not condoned
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure awaiting
condonement

2011
R’ 000
598
13
(344)
0

0
598
0
0

0

0

267

598

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure relates to a car that was hired for a council
member to attend a meeting, and it was returned a few days after the due date.
25.

Irregular expenditure
2012
R’ 000
Reconciliation of irregular expenditure
Opening balance
Irregular expenditure current year
Recovered
Condoned or written off by the Council
Transfer to receivables for recovery –
not condoned
Irregular expenditure awaiting condonement

2011
R’ 000
20,681
903
-

7,595
13,086
-

-

-

21,584

20,681

Included in irregular expenditure balances are certain expenditure items that did not
comply fully with the provisions of the Treasury Regulations and the Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act No. 5 of 2000. At present a request is being made
to Treasury to condone the irregular expenditure.
26.

Prior year error

26.1

Property, Plant and Equipment
The net book values of vehicles, computer equipment and peripherals and furniture
and fittings were incorrectly disclosed in the Annual Financial Statements in the prior
year. The effect on the net book value of property, plant and equipment in the prior
year, was NIL.
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Intangibles are recognised in terms of GRAP102 when all recognition criteria have
been met. Certain items of intangibles were incorrectly allocated to property,
plant and equipment in the prior year at a net book value of R21 000.
The effect on net book value of property, plant and equipment should be an increase of R21 000.
Intangibles net book value should decrease by R21 000.
In compliance with GRAP 3: Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates
and errors, and the effect of the change in accounting policy has been disclosed below, to include the amounts in the accumulated surplus, which is NIL.
The impact of the change in the accounting policy is as follows:

Vehicles (see Note 7)
Computer equipment and peripherals
(see Note 7)
Furniture and fittings (see Note 7 )

Restated

Previously
disclosed

2012

2011

R’ 000

R’ 000
1,570

1,575

409

365

587

626

Property, plant and equipment (see Note 7)

95,976

95,976

Property, plant and equipment (see Note 7)

95,997

95,976

(21)

-

-

-

Intangibles

Accumulated surplus (no effect)
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26.2

Prior year error
Intangibles assets
Intangibles are recognised in terms of GRAP102 when all recognition criteria have
been met. An item of computer software was incorrectly expensed in the prior year.
In compliance with GRAP 3: Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates
and errors, and the effect of the change in accounting policy has been disclosed
below to include the amounts in the accumulated surplus.
The impact of the change in the accounting policy is as follows:

Previously
disclosed
2010
R’ 000

Restated
2010
R’ 000
Property, plant and equipment (see Note 7)

217
Restated

Intangibles
Accumulated surplus
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2010
R’ 000
(3,899)

22
Previously
disclosed
2010
R’ 000
(4,094)

R’ 000 R’ 000

R’ 000

R’ 000

Balance
2012/03/31

Transfers

Surplus/
(deficit)

Current
expenditure

Total income

Other income

Interest
income

Balance per GL
2011/04/01

27. Project funds

R’ 000 R’ 000

R’ 000

Trust funds
Mackie Niven
Oppenheimer
Geological Plaques
La Motte,
Franschhoek District
Esme Lownds Trust,
Barberton
Kleinbosch Cemetery,
Dal Josafat
Hugo Vault, Simon’s
Town
Woutersen Wessels
Vault, Cape Town
Vrijstatia Association
Bellingham,
Franschhoek District
D.R. Church,
Ladismith
Strand St Lutheran
Church, Cape Town
Lemane Cottage, Elim
Bo-Kaap, Cape Town
St Stephen’s Church,
Cape Town
Owl House, Nieu
Bethesda
SAHRA Publications
Matje’s River,
Keurbooms
Rowland & Leta Hill
Almshouses,
Bethelsdorp Mission
A. Galla Fund

11

0

0

0

0

0

0

11

318

20

0

20

0

20

0

338

12

1

0

1

0

1

0

13

23

1

0

1

0

1

0

24

2

0

0

0

0

0

0

2

9

1

0

1

0

1

0

10

2

0

0

0

0

0

0

2

11

1

0

1

0

1

0

12

3

0

0

0

0

0

0

3

8

2

0

2

0

2

0

10

13

1

0

1

0

1

0

14

53
5

3
0

0
0

3
0

0
0

3
0

0
0

56
5

6

0

0

0

0

0

0

6

34

2

0

2

0

2

0

36

20

1

0

1

0

1

0

21

34

2

0

2

0

2

0

36

6

0

0

0

0

0

0

6

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0
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A. Skakanga Fund,
Unesco
Empire Road,
Parktown
Ansteys Building,
Johannesburg
Australian War Graves
Sanlam Restoration
Trust, Waenhuiskrans
MM Hill Trust
Sharley Cribb Nursing
Home, Port Elizabeth
Sontonga Trust Fund,
Johannesburg
Fort Armstrong,
Balfour
Getty Conservation
Institute (grant)
National Geographic
Society (grant)
Sanlam Restoration
Trust, De Bult
Mamre Project
(German
Government grant)
Genadendal Bequest
Sanlam Restoration
Trust, Valdezia
Sanlam Restoration
Trust, Steinkopf
Constitutional Hill
Egazini (Eastern Cape
Government grant)
Sanlam Restoration
Trust, Potolozi
Sanlam Restoration
Trust, Moffat Mission
Sanlam Restoration
Trust, Medingen

| p176

R’ 000

R’ 000

Balance
2012/03/31

Transfers

Surplus/
(deficit)

Current
expenditure

Total income

Other income

Interest
income

Balance per GL
2011/04/01

R’ 000 R’ 000

R’ 000 R’ 000

R’ 000

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

17

1

0

1

0

1

0

18

155

0

0

0

0

0

0

155

76

5

0

5

0

5

0

81

27

2

0

2

0

2

0

29

375

23

0

23

0

23

0

398

6

0

0

0

0

0

0

6

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

3

0

0

0

0

0

0

3

13

1

0

1

0

1

0

14

9

1

0

1

0

1

0

10

13

1

0

1

0

1

0

14

1,218

65

0

65

150

(85)

0

1,133

2

0

0

0

0

0

0

2

8

0

0

0

0

0

0

8

9

0

0

0

0

0

0

9

7

0

0

0

0

0

0

7

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

1

7

0

0

0

0

0

0

7

2

0

0

0

0

0

0

2

Iccrom
Prestwich
Steinkopf Mission
Church
Mgawili Mission
Church, Sanlam
Maritime Archaeology
Development

Surplus/
(deficit)

R’ 000

R’ 000

R’ 000

58
269

0
0

0
0

0
0

4

0

0

0

6

2

0

209

61

3,068

Balance
2012/03/31

Current
expenditure

R’ 000

Transfers

Total income

Other income

Interest
income

Balance per GL
2011/04/01

R’ 000 R’ 000

R’ 000

0
0

0
0

58
269

0

0

0

4

2

0

2

0

8

1,553

1,614

1,117

497

0

706

197

1,553

1,750

1,267

483

0

3,551

2

0

0

0

0

0

0

2

23

2

0

2

0

2

0

25

97

7

0

7

0

7

0

104

12

1

0

1

0

1

0

13

134

10

0

10

0

10

0

144

0

1

0

1

0

1

1

0

341

0

341

332

9

9

0

22

0

22

2,400

(2,378) 2,378

0

0

58

0

58

1,137

(1,079) 1,079

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

422

0

422

3,869

Restoration Trust Fund
D.R. Church,
Somerset West
Arbeidsgenot,
Oudtshoorn
Bien Donne,
Franschhoek District
Bethanie Mission,
Edenburg District

DAC PROJECTS
DACT – Property
DACT – National
inventory
DACT – Mission
schools
DACT – Burials (602
and 608)
DACT – Sarah
Baartman

0
(3,447)

0
3,457
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R’ 000

R’ 000

Balance
2012/03/31

Transfers

Surplus/
(deficit)

Current
expenditure

Total income

Other income

Interest
income

Balance per GL
2011/04/01

R’ 000 R’ 000

R’ 000 R’ 000

R’ 000

National Lottery projects
Shipwrecks

1,299

51

0

51

632

(581)

0

718

Vredefort Dome
Identification
JHB Survey
Makapan
Makgabeng

21
22
1,046
1,457
753
4,598

0
2
0
67
29
149

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
2
0
67
29
149

0
0
0
1
1
634

0
2
0
66
28
(485)

0
0
0
0
0
0

21
24
1,046
1,523
781
4,113

2,099

112

0

112

54

58

0

2,157

1,014

39

0

39

390

(351)

0

663

9,366

461

0

461

41

420 (9,786)

0

88

2

0

2

71

(69)

0

19

1,186

59

0

59

234

(175)

0

1,011

1,100

82

0

82

74

8

0

1,108

0
0

0
44

0
0

0
44

0
8

0
69

0
9,786

0
9,855

(702+710+711+712+713)

Capital Projects
Upgrade of air
conditioning
Installation of video
conference facility
Restoration of Van
Riebeeck site
Kaditshwene –
conservation of site
Wonderwerk
Caves – signage
Collection and
identification of
graves
Women’s Project
Old Jail, Grahamstown
Upgrading of
women’s graves
Restoration of
women’s houses

| p178

0

0 12,000 12,000

0 12,000

0

12,000

0

0

0

0

3,000

3,000

3,000

3,000

Identification of
royal graves and
interpretation centre
Upgrading of graves:
S.M. MAKGATHO
Upgrading of graves:
J. GUMEDE
Upgrading of graves:
Z.R. MAHABANE
Upgrading of graves:
P.K.A. SEME
Upgrading of graves:
A.B. XUMA

TOTAL

Surplus/
(deficit)

R’ 000

R’ 000

Balance
2012/03/31

Current
expenditure

R’ 000

Transfers

Total income

Other income

Interest
income

Balance per GL
2011/04/01

R’ 000 R’ 000 R’ 000

R’ 000

0

0 25,000 25,000

0 25,000

0

25,000

0

0

1,000

1,000

0

1,000

0

1,000

0

0

1,000

1,000

0

1,000

0

1,000

0

0

1,500

1,500

0

1,500

0

1,500

0

0

1,500

1,500

0

1,500

0

1,500

0

0

2,000

2,000

0

2,000

0

2,000

14,853

799 47,000 47,799

872 46,960

0

61,813

22,653

1,577 48,553 50,130

6,642 43,521

3,457

69,631

Reconciliation of Project Expenditure
Project expenditure in terms of funding agreements
Expenditure overspent on projects
Total project expenditure recognised in income statement

6,642
6,642
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